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COMPANY INTRODUCTION
NAEIITHE

OVERVIEW

We are a global provider of power tools and outdoor power
equipment (“OPE”).
lithium-ion battery system technology, has enabled us to
achieve significant scale and rapid growth. We offer a
comprehensive range of products under a portfolio of well-
recognized brands, which are tailored to address the diverse

Our focus on innovation, especially

needs of our end users around the world. Our power tools
target both industrial/professional and consumer end users,
and our OPE products target both premium and mass-market
end users. We currently own five differentiated and well-
recognized brands that cover key geographies and segments,
namely EGO, FLEX, SKIL, DEVON and X-TRON.

We focus on user-centric innovation and product offerings,
which is supported by our integrated system of research
and development, manufacturing and sales and distribution
capabilities. Our broad end user base for lithium-ion battery
powered products enables us to rapidly accumulate industry
knowledge,
Leveraging such knowledge and insights, we have been able
to continuously introduce new products showcasing advanced
technology and product design capabilities. We then produce
these new, user-centric products in a consistently high-
quality manner through our smart manufacturing system

technology know-how and end-user insights.

and distributing them through our multi-channel sales and
distribution network. Our global operations and local market
knowledge enable us to expand market shares and meet end
user needs in our target markets. Our robust brand portfolio,
which resonates with our end users, also helps solidify our
market position.

OUR VISION

Better Tools. Better World.

OUR MISSION

Providing superior products to users worldwide through
continuous innovation, we are determined to become a global
leader in power tools and outdoor power equipment in the
lithium-ion, intelligent and digital era.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BIT5 =

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ANEBRBENERREE 7 EEUANEENRERE
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the {2 (FitrE C TIBEEZMBHRE) SHwT -
published audited financial statements, is set out below:

RESULTS E 3

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALFE
2018 2019 2020 2021
20184 20194 20204 20214
(In US$ thousands, except per share data)

(TXTT - BREEHRIN)

Revenue WA 690,698 843,578 1,200,902 1,757,784
(Loss)/profit before tax kAT (EE), FE (14,414) 42,348 59,511 176,098
Income tax credit/(expense) EBER (FX) 957 (6,266) (11,123) (26,377)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(E8E) /7B (13,457) 36,082 48,388 149,721
Attributable to: AN AT

Equity shareholders of the Company AN B REZS AR R (14,084) 33,976 44,359 144,544

Non-controlling interests FEIERERERS 627 2,106 4,029 5,177
Earnings per share B & T
- Basic (cents) —EX(5) (4) 9 11 36
— Diluted (cents) — 8% () (4) 9 11 36
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE -BELRER

As of December 31,
BZE12A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021

20184F 20194 20204 20214
(In US$ thousands)

(F=7)

Assets &E

Total assets BEME 745,810 867,177 1,091,467 2,056,156
Equity and liabilities EERAE

Equity attributable to equity RARERRRIEGER 149,802 182,131 259,738 797,017

shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 17,313 18,707 24,286 -
Total equity - Ft G 167,115 200,838 284,024 797,017
Total liabilities afEes 578,695 666,339 807,443 1,259,139
Total equity and liabilities m B EERE 745,810 867,177 1,091,467 2,056,156

Note: No financial information for the year ended, or as of, Mfit: ETEEZ2017F12A31BILFELEHE
December 31, 2017 has been published. Z BRI ER -

RIGZAER AR — T —FFR 5




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
=S REE

2021 was a historical year for Chervon. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong on December 30, 2021. The initial public offering not
only brings us greater market attention and resources, but
also places upon us enormous responsibilities towards our

shareholders, employees and other key stakeholders. Looking
back to the past two decades, it is clear that our relentless
focus on user-centric innovation is what drove us to achieve
significant scale, rapid growth and market leadership. | am
proud of what our Group and thousands of employees across
the globe have accomplished, collectively and individually,
under our shared vision of “Better Tools. Better World.” We
remain committed to making significant investments for
Chervon, now as a public company, to continue succeeding in
a new era.

In 2021, we continued to face challenges amidst the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic and global trade tensions, yet remained
resilient and produced remarkable results. We delivered
revenue of US$1,757.8 million, a 46.4% year-over-year growth,
reflecting strong performance across our business segments
and geographic regions. Our net profit more than tripled from
US$48.4 million to US$149.7 million, and our adjusted net
profit grew by 79.0% from US$69.8 million to US$125.0 million.
We believe our robust revenue and profit growth is propelled
by improvements to our product portfolio, brand recognition,
sales and distribution network and manufacturing capability,
among other accomplishments.

6 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Our focus on innovating and making great products,
particularly in the cordless segment, remains a key pillar
of our growth strategy. In 2021, we introduced 232 new
products, 77% of which are powered by lithium-ion batteries.
We continued promoting end-user recognition of our brand
portfolio, including EGO, FLEX, SKIL, DEVON and X-TRON,
which comprehensively cover industrial/professional and
consumer power tools and premium and mass-market OPE
products. As of year-end 2021, our products were sold to
customers in more than 100 countries and regions across
North America, Europe, Oceania and Asia through our
strong, multi-channel sales and distribution network. We also
continued investing in strengthening our smart, vertically-
integrated manufacturing system and expanding our
production capacity.

We are committed to being a responsible corporate citizen by
innovating in green products, promoting energy conservation,
reducing carbon emissions and implementing sound corporate
governance practices. Our cordless power tools and OPE
products help alleviate air pollution and reduce environmental
noises, while delivering performance, comfort, convenience, as
well as cost-savings to our end-users as they are able to use
our powerful, compatible lithium-ion battery platforms across
a wide range of tools and equipment. We believe fulfilling our
ESG responsibilities also creates value for our shareholders.

I would like to express my heart-felt gratitude towards our
customers, end-users and shareholders for their trust and
support bestowed upon us, and express my deep appreciation
for our management team, employees and suppliers for their
efforts in making 2021 a remarkable year. In 2022, we will
continue to invest in building our product portfolio, sales and
distribution network, brand recognition, production capacity
and human capital. With an unwavering commitment to user-
centric innovation and speed to market, we believe we are well
positioned to capture growth opportunities across business
segments and geographies in the months and years ahead.

Pan Longquan
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

April 29, 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

%fﬁgﬁnﬁﬂ/\ﬂ jfﬁ

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Overview

We are pleased to announce that in 2021 we have achieved
remarkable results and further expanded our overall
competitive advantages. The Group’s revenue grew by 46.4%
from US$1,200.9 million in 2020 to US$1,757.8 million in
2021,
Improvements in our product portfolio, brand recognition
and sales and distribution network have contributed to the
significant growth.

further strengthening our market leadership position.

We have made significant accomplishments across our
business units in 2021. Our power tools segment delivered
revenue growth of 33.9% from US$661.1 million in 2020 to
US$885.2 million in 2021. Our outdoor power equipment
(“OPE") segment delivered revenue growth of 62.0% from
US$533.7 million in 2020 to US$864.6 million in 2021.

Introducing new products grounded in advanced technology
and end-user insights

We continue to develop new products in-house and drive
industry transformations. Leveraging our research and

8 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E 5w B AT

REVENUE
WA

1,758

1,201

o :

2020 2021
(in US$ millions)
(B&EZET)

development capabilities, we have continuously upgraded our
product portfolio. In 2021, we introduced 232 new products in
total, and lithium-ion battery powered products accounted for
approximately 77% of the new products.

For example, in the OPE segment, we have brought to market
our riding mowers in 2021, which are equipped with brushless
motor technology and powered by removable platform-
compatible EGO lithium-ion batteries. These batteries are
one of the first of its kind to apply across riding mowers,
walk-behind mowers and handheld OPE products. We also
launched the SK/L 40V OPE tools to strongly complement our
suite of products in the mass-market OPE segment, further
strengthening our growth potential.

Lithium-ion battery powered new products

as a percentage of all new products introduced in 2021
R EMIE20214F
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In the power tool segment, we introduced a new series of
lithium-ion battery powered high-end professional tools in
North America, under our century-year old heritage brand
FLEX, representing our first but significant step ahead in the
North America professional power tool market.

Increasing end-user recognition for our brand portfolio

Supported by our end-user insights, advanced technologies
and global sales and distribution network, we continue to
increase end-user recognition for our proprietary brands in
their respective markets. We have achieved rapid growth in
large part through our five well-recognized and differentiated
brands that comprehensively cover industrial/professional and
consumer power tools and premium and mass-market OPE
products. As of December 31, 2021, we had over nine million
battery platforms sold globally under our EGO brand. In 2021,
we also sold over one million battery packs on the 20V platform
under our DEVON brand, making us a leader in China’s high-
end lithium-ion battery power tool market. Revenue from our
original brand manufacturing (“OBM”) business grew by
51.7% from US$746.3 million in 2020 to US$1,132 million in
2021, and accounted for 64.4% of our total revenue in 2021,
demonstrating the strengths of our proprietary brands.

Annual Report 2021

FEEHTASEE  ROANBEETELNEHRE
FLEX » fRILEHR T — X RER FELEENE
VeamBETR  ERERTHEMEILESEEHT
EmSBEMNE—F  EREK-

HE B A I [ P B B (] aa fEAE & 8938 AE

BPALIRAPRE « STERMUAREREEN S
RS ATE  THREREAPHIMEGRE
FESAMBNRAE - RMZATAE R RiRE
R-RAEELEBBEMABAARMEAERZE
BEHREERY  SLEREE2EEBEETIER
HEGNHEERETH T EUNSHEMARTIEN
OPEE - 8 E2021F 128318 » HIMIAEGO T
RERIEEBI0BEEMFE A - 2021F + &
MEBEAFRERN20VIEEA LEE THBB1008 @
B FROARATESHERTEHEHTE
THEREESE - KPR RERE ([OBM]) 75
U A 2020F 746 3B B XL ET51.7% 2
20215 M1 132 BT + hEM2021 FRKAR
64.4% - FRTHRMNE B RENED -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E 5w B AT

Enhancing our multi-channel sales and distribution network

We continue to enhance our global multi-channel sales and
distribution network that offers us effective touchpoints for end
users across key markets, including North America, Europe,
Oceania and Asia. We have deepened our collaboration with
leading home centers and mass market retailers, and also
strengthened our partnership with qualified distributors and
local retailers to diversify our sales channels and promote
brand recognition. By 2021, which was the first full year for our
strategic partnership with a Fortune 500 home improvement
company, power tools and OPE products under our EGO,
SKIL and FLEX brands have become available across its
stores in North America, which significantly contributed to our
revenue growth in the relevant markets. Sales of EGO-branded
OPE products through our dealer network also increased
significantly in the European and Oceania markets.

Furthermore, we have enhanced our online sales channels by
collaborating with e-commerce platforms and operating our
own e-stores. Sales of our OBM products through our pure-
play e-commerce channels in North America increased by over
100% from 2020 to 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

CRM

Improving our manufacturing technologies and production
management capabilities, and expanding our production
capacity

We continue to build competitive advantages by advancing
our manufacturing technologies and production management
capabilities. We have made long-term investments in a
vertically integrated manufacturing system, which enables us
to incorporate new technologies into core product components
such as battery packs, motors and electric control circuits.
We have focused on promoting the application of industrial
engineering and quality control technologies in our assembly
lines, and continued to improve the level of automation and
transparency in our manufacturing system by horizontally
integrating our information technology systems.

Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic

During the Reporting Period, the coronavirus disease
2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic has affected our operations
and supply chain as a result of the government-imposed
suspensions, and led to increases in the costs and time for
transportation of our products in certain regions of the world.
However, we believe that the COVID-19 pandemic has not had
a material adverse impact on our results of operations in 2021.
Our production facilities and offices generally remained open
and we undertook measures such as social distancing, mask-
wearing and mandatory virus testing for our employees. We
also believe the COVID-19 pandemic has not had a material
adverse effect on the demand from our customers and end-
users.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

At this point, we cannot accurately predict what effects the
COVID-19 pandemic will have on our business going forward,
which will depend on, among other factors, the ultimate
geographic spread of the virus, the duration of the pandemic
and the corresponding travel restrictions and business
closures imposed by government authorities. The continued
impacts of COVID-19 or any future outbreak of a contagious
disease may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Business Outlook

To drive sustainable long-term growth, we will continue to
develop new products, expand our multi-channel sales and
distributions network, enhance brand recognition, expand
production capacities and improve operational efficiency and
invest in human capital development. We will endeavor to
consistently outperform the market and deliver superior results
for our shareholders, employees and communities in a socially
and environmentally responsible manner.

B E 5w B AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR wm AT

2021
Revenue breakdown
by product category
RERERESH ® Power tools 50.4%
WA BR 4 BETE50.4%
© OPE 49.2%
OPE 49.2%
© Other 0.4%
Hfh 0.4%

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Results
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 46.4% from US$1,200.9
million in 2020 to US$1,757.8 million in 2021, primarily due to
improvements in our product portfolio, brand recognition and
sales and distribution network, as well as favorable market
conditions.

Revenue by product category

Revenue from the sales of power tools increased by 33.9%
from US$661.1 million in 2020 to US$885.2 million in 2021,
primarily driven by the growth of sales across our proprietary
brands and the expansion of our original design manufacturing
(“ODM”) business for power tools with key customers.

Revenue from the sales of OPE products increased by 62.0%
from US$533.7 million in 2020 to US$864.6 million in 2021,
primarily driven by the increased sales of our EGO-branded
OPE products across key markets and SK/L-branded OPE
products in North America, as well as the expansion of our
ODM business for our OPE products with key customers.

Revenue by geographic location

We achieved significant revenue growth across our geographic
regions in 2021. Our revenue generated from North America,
our largest geographic market, increased by 48.6% from
US$798.9 million in 2020 to US$1,187.4 million in 2021. Our
revenue from Europe increased by 36.0% from US$297.3
million in 2020 to US$404.2 million in 2021. Our revenue
from China grew by 52.3% from US$69.3 million in 2020 to
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

US$105.5 million in 2021. Our revenue from rest of the world
grew by 71.83% from US$35.4 million in 2020 to US$60.7 million
in 2021.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by 34.1% from US$368.7 million
in 2020 to US$494.5 million in 2021. During the same years,
our overall gross profit margin decreased from 30.7% to
28.1%, primarily due to the impact of increases in raw material
costs, Renminbi (“RMB”) appreciation and rising international
shipping costs. Going forward, we will seek to improve our
gross profit margins by introducing innovative products with
higher margins and improving operating efficiency, among
other measures.

Other Revenue and Other Net Loss or Gain
Other Revenue

Our other revenue, which primarily consisted of government
grants, sale of scrap materials and rental income, amounted to
US$5.2 million in 2021, as compared to US$5.8 million in 2020.

Other Net Gain or Loss

We had other net gain of US$37.9 million in 2021, as
compared to other net loss of US$3.1 million in 2020. Our
other net gain in 2021 was primarily attributable to (i) a gain
on the disposal of a subsidiary of US$22.0 million, which
was related to the sale of our interests in Nanjing Jiuhao
Electromechanical Industry Co., Ltd. (BRIEKEEZEAR
~d]) (“Jiuhao Electromechanical’) and (ii) net unrealized
gains on convertible bonds of US$19.2 million, which was
contributed by our investments in the convertible bond issued
by Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd. (&
RRIERERBRMEMDABRAET) (“Chervon Auto Precision
Technology”).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 8.9% from
US$179.4 million in 2020 to US$195.5 million in 2021, primarily
due to a significant increase in our investments in marketing
activities to maintain the momentum of sales growth, partially
offset by a decrease in warranty costs.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Our administrative and other operating expenses increased
by 25.1% from US$82.8 million in 2020 to US$103.6 million in
2021, primarily due to increases in costs and expenses related
to our initial public offering.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Research and Development Costs

Our research and development costs increased by 28.8% from
US$38.9 million in 2020 to US$50.2 million in 2021, primarily
due to our continued investments in research and development
and new product initiatives.

Net Finance Costs

Our net finance costs decreased by 4.3% from US$17.4 million
in 2020 to US$16.6 million in 2021.

Profit Before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, our profit before income tax in
2021 amounted to US$176.1 million, representing an increase
of 195.9% as compared to US$59.5 million in 2020.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense was US$26.4 million in 2021,
representing an increase of 137.1% from US$11.1 million in
2020. Our effective tax rate was 15.0% in 2021, as compared
to 18.7% in 2020, primarily due to additional tax incentives that
we obtained in 2021 as a result of increases in our research
and development activities.

Profit For The Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year increased
by 209.4% from US$48.4 million in 2020 to US$149.7 million
in 2021. Our net profit margin increased from 4.0% to 8.5%
during the respective years.

Non-HKFRSs Measure: Adjusted Net Profit

To supplement our consolidated results which are prepared
and presented in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), we utilize non-HKFRSs
adjusted net profit (“Adjusted Net Profit’) as an additional
financial measure. We derive Adjusted Net Profit from profit
for the year by excluding (i) listing expenses, (ii) equity
settled share-based payment expenses, (iii) gain on disposal
of associates, (iv) gain on disposal of a subsidiary, (v) net
unrealized gains on convertible bonds and (vi) income tax
effects of non-HKFRSs adjustments.

Adjusted Net Profit is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, HKFRSs. We believe that the presentation
of non-HKFRSs measures when shown in conjunction with the
corresponding HKFRSs measures provides useful information
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

to investors and management regarding financial and business
trends in relation to our financial condition and results of
operations, by eliminating any potential impact of items that
our management does not consider to be indicative of our
operating performance such as certain non-cash items and
the impact of certain investment transactions. We also believe
that the non-HKFRSs measures are appropriate for evaluating
the Group’s operating performance. However, the use of
this particular non-HKFRSs measure has limitations as an
analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation from,
or as a substitute for the analysis of, our results of operations
or financial conditions as reported under HKFRSs. In addition,
this non-HKFRSs financial measure may be defined differently
from similar terms used by other companies and therefore
may not be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies.

The following table reconciles our Adjusted Net Profit for the
years presented to the most directly comparable financial
measure calculated and presented in accordance with
HKFRSs, which is profit for the year:

B E 5w B AT

B(mETHRSBERETRERINTE) NE
MEEXE RREZREEERH‘EBERMMK
RARKERENPBREBBENEREN - &
FITRRR - FEEPBHRELRFEERARFEA
SEMKERE - RN - EAZFEFBTEMBHR
SR EER/INMIAFERRME - B TTER
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Year Ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
US$’000 US$’000
EY FEx
Profit for the year F AT 149,721 48,388
Add: Pl
Listing expenses EAX 7,873 272
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE 2 55 DARR 19 m B O TR =2 - 21,077
expenses
Loss on disposal of associates(" HERE A B EEO 677 131
(Gain) on disposal of a subsidiary® HE—MEWBARZ (W)@ (21,969) -
Net unrealized (gains) on convertible AR ESF AR (W) FRE® (19,230) -
bonds®
Income tax effects of non-HKFRSs IR EREER AR EH T E® 7,965 (83)
adjustments®
Adjusted net profit AT 125,037 69,835
Notes: Htat -
(1) Represents the loss on disposal of our interests in Nanjing (1) FEHERMN2021 FEMRHRITEAEEEAR

Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. (IREHRIEEEE AR AA])
in 2021 and Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (AT = REIREBRAA]) in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

(2) Represents the gain on disposal of our interests in Jiuhao
Electromechanical in 2021.

(3) Represents the net unrealized gains on our investment in
the convertible bond issued by Chervon Auto Precision
Technology.

(4) Represents income tax effects of non-HKFRSs adjustments.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Financial Position

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position.
As of December 31, 2021, the Group had US$665.0 million in
cash and cash equivalents (2020: US$166.9 million), primarily
due to strong operating cash flow performance and receipt
of net proceeds from our initial public offering. 54.4%, 25.8%,
15.8%, 1.5% and 2.4% of our cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits as of December 31, 2021 were denominated
in HK dollar, RMB, US dollar, euro and other currencies,
respectively.

Funding and Treasury Policy

The Group’s funding and finance policy aims to maintain
stable financial position and mitigate financial risks. The
Group regularly reviews its funding requirements to maintain
adequate financial resources in order to support its current
business operations as well as its future investments and
expansion plans.

Borrowings and Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had bank loans of
US$433.6 million (2020: US$337.9 million), which were
primarily denominated in RMB, and lease liabilities of US$23.2
million (2020: US$16.7 million). As of the same date, fixed-
rate and floating-rate loans account for 58.8% and 41.2%,
respectively, of the Group’s total bank loans.

As of December 31, 2021, short-term bank loans and current

portion of long-term bank loans collectively accounted for
98.0% of the total bank loans (2020: 86.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s gearing ratio (which equals total debt (including
bank loans and lease liabilities) divided by total equity)
decreased from 1.2 as of December 31, 2020 to 0.6 as of
December 31, 2021.

Working Capital

The Group’s inventories amounted to US$592.0 million as of
December 31, 2021 as compared to US$288.7 million as of
December 31, 2020, primarily due to our business expansions
and efforts to build up inventories to meet rising customer
demands. Our inventory turnover days remained relatively
stable at 127 days in 2021, as compared to 129 days in 2020.

The Group’s trade and bills receivables turnover days were at
56 days in 2021, as compared to 59 days in 2020.

The Group’s trade and bills payables turnover days were
110 days in 2021, as compared to 90 days in 2020, primarily
due to (i) the impact of inventory increases during the fourth
quarter of 2021 to meet rising customer demands, which
resulted in higher balances of bills payables, and (ii) more
favorable credit terms that we obtained from our suppliers.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in 2021 amounted to US$81.2 million
(2020: US$31.6 million), primarily due to the expansion of our
production capacity.

Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2021, our capital commitments (including
those contracted for and authorized but not contracted for)
for the construction of plant and buildings and acquisition
of machinery and equipment amounted to US$467.7 million
(2020: US$49.5 million) for the expansion of our production
capacity as disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company dated
December 17, 2021 (the “Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

Pledge of Assets

During the Reporting Period, certain assets of the Group were
pledged as security for bank loans, as further detailed below:

EELR

RBERAR - AEBHFOEECERRRITERD
R FHBOT

As of December 31,

BZ12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$’ 000 US$'000
e FET
Plant and buildings W E kETF 44,226 44,724
Leasehold land &L 25,487 25,503
Investment properties BEME = 959
Intangible assets mEEE 1,459 1,754
Inventories Ea=s 124,040 98,519
Trade and bills receivables B WA & R R % 81,562 92,175
Pledged deposits [REEECTES Y 26,524 10,413
Other assets Hih&E 4,252 6,801
Total #Et 307,550 280,848

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had pledged deposits of
US$48.3 million (2020: US$22.2 million), which will be released
upon the settlement of letters of credit and bills payables and
by the Group or the expiry of relevant banking facilities.

During the Reporting Period, certain bank facilities granted
to the Group were pledged with the shares of Chervon Auto
Precision Technology held by Chervon Precision Technology
Holdings Limited. Pursuant to the agreements on September
9, 2021 and November 23, 2021 with the relevant banks, such
pledged shares have been released.

Contingent Liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued guarantees
in respect of loans made by certain financial institutions to
Chervon Auto Precision Technology, which is an associate of
the Group, and such guarantees have been released.

During the Reporting Period, the Group also issued guarantees
to financial institutions in the People’s Republic of China
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(“PRC”) for certain indebtedness of our independent third-
party customers, who are typically qualified distributors of ours
in the PRC. As of December 31, 2021, the maximum guarantee
amount was US$10.0 million (2020: US$9.8 million) and the
guarantee issued was US$2.1 million (2020: US$1.9 million).

Significant Investments Held

For the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (including any investment in an
investee company with a value of 5% or more of the
Company'’s total assets as of December 31, 2021).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associates

On February 25, 2021, the Group has entered into an
agreement with Chervon (Nanjing) Management Services Co.,
Ltd. (RE(FER)EEREER2AA]) (“Chervon Management
Services”), which is a related party wholly owned by Mr.
Pan Longquan (“Mr. Pan”). Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group agreed to transfer 100% equity interest in Jiuhao
Electromechanical to Chervon Management Services for
a cash consideration of RMB171,160,100 (US$26,314,000
equivalent). The consideration was determined with reference
to the valuation of Jiuhao Electromechanical performed by
independent valuation firm. The registration of the transfer
was completed on March 8, 2021, upon which Jiuhao
Electromechanical ceased to be the Group’s subsidiary.

During the fourth quarter of 2021, Chervon (China) Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Chervon (China) Investment’) exercised its pre-
emptive rights to subscribe for public A-share convertible
bonds issued by Chervon Auto Precision Technology in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB118.6 million (US$18.6
million equivalent). Chervon (China) Investment is the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary and owns 23.12% of
Chervon Auto Precision Technology. Please refer to the section
headed “Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus for further
details.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the
Group did not have material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries or associates.
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Future Plans for Major Investments and Capital Assets

On January 28, 2022, Chervon (China) Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Chervon (China) Investment”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which Chervon
(China) Investment agreed to conditionally subscribe for the A
shares of Chervon Auto Precision Technology through a non-
public offering (the “Proposed Subscription”) with a total
subscription amount up to RMB500.0 million (US$78.4 million
equivalent) (the “Maximum Subscription Amount”). Pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement, the final total number of A
shares of Chervon Auto Precision Technology to be subscribed
shall represent not more than 10% of the enlarged total
issued share capital of Chervon Auto Precision Technology
upon completion of the non-public offering (the “Maximum
Subscription Threshold”). On March 30, 2022, Chervon
(China) Investment and Chervon Auto Precision Technology
entered into a supplemental subscription agreement to the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed
to include a supplemental provision to the Subscription
Agreement that, subject to the Maximum Subscription Amount
and the Maximum Subscription Threshold, the minimum
number of A Shares to be conditionally subscribed for by
Chervon (China) Investment will be not less than 15% and not
more than 30% of the actual number of A Shares of Chervon
Auto Precision Technology to be issued through the non-public
offering, while other terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement remain unchanged and in full force and effect in
all respects. The final subscription price per A share and the
final total subscription amount will be set out in a supplemental
agreement to be entered between Chervon (China) Investment
and Chervon Auto Precision Technology and the Company will
make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate. The
Company, through Chervon (China) Investment, currently holds
23.12% of Chervon Auto Precision Technology as of the date
of this report. Upon completion of the Proposed Subscription,
Chervon Auto Precision Technology will not become a
subsidiary of Chervon (China) Investment.

Save for (i) the Proposed Subscription for A shares of Chervon
Auto Precision Technology as described above and (ii) the
expansion plans as disclosed in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Group has
no specific plans for major investments or acquisitions of major
capital assets or other businesses.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange Rates

The Group manufactures and sells its products in many
countries throughout the world. As a result, there is exposure
to foreign currency risk as the Group enters into transactions
and make investments denominated in multiple currencies.
For example, changes in currency exchange rates may affect
the relative prices at which the Group and its competitors sell
products in the same market and the costs of products and
services the Group requires for its operations. The Group's
predominant exposures are in US dollar, euro and RMB. The
Group is subject to risks arising from the translation of balance
sheets and income statements of its subsidiaries to US dollars
as well as the risks arising from the export of products and
sales outside the country of manufacturing.

The Group enters into foreign exchange forward contracts with
financial institutions to mitigate its exposures to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates. Fluctuations in the foreign exchange
rates may lead to losses resulting from the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange forward contracts or similar arrangements.
Our net foreign exchange loss in 2021 amounted to US$14.1
million (2020: US$11.5 million). Our net realized and unrealized
gains on derivative financial instruments (which primarily
include foreign exchange forward contracts) in 2021 were
US$10.1 million (2020: US$8.2 million).

Investment Risk Management

Our investment strategy is grounded in the principles of
compliance, prudence, safety and effectiveness. Each
investment decision is made based on internal vetting and
discussions, considering factors such as market dynamics,
expected returns and risks involved. We believe that our
internal strategy and policies regarding investments and the
related risk management mechanisms are adequate, and that
our investment decisions have been in full compliance with our
investment strategy and policies.

EIRE N RS

SN B 2 B L B

AEERERZEBEFREENRHELER - Bt
HRARBEITHNX SRR ERNSEERFE
WEERNERER - fln - EREXBHAERTZEAR
SELREBFHFRRA-—MHHEEERNBLER
RASEEZEMTNERMRERA - REBEHE
ZRMRFENET BTRAREZENEE - K
SEERZHEMNBARMNEERBR RIRERE
ERETLMEENAR  AREOEMRNEER
KOS SHE FTE L RS

NEE RS BB ZIMNERBAEL - LUREESN
[ELE R FENH R o INEE R FE ] LB ARE
EEZHMNER S QO BUZ BN R R ME £ S
B o RMR2021FMINEBEFHEA141BEET
(2020%F : 11.5E&EEI) - BHMR2021FHITE
CRHTEMNBEREASRNZFE(EZRIEN
ERAIE4) B101BEXT (20205 : 8.2 EX
JL) °

RERMER

BANKRERBEERAR  BE  L2REUN
[RAN - EEFERKORBABEE LT wmEL
YERTHEE RHMEBLASERRERSE -
HAPIAEME - BRMAE BIRE R B AR S BUR DA K48
FEREEENTIERS  BRMNRERRD <
2T RPN RE R LK -

RIEERAR AT — B —FFR 23

A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 40.9% and 64.7% (2020: 29.0% and 64.8%)
respectively of the Group’s total revenue; and the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 9.3% and 14.7% (2020: 16.1% and 24.8%)
respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) who owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital had any interest in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The number of employees of the Group was 6,732 as of
December 31, 2021 (2020: 5,084). The total staff costs for
the Reporting Period was US$189.5 million as compared to
US$173.7 million in 2020. Pursuant to a Board resolution dated
December 30, 2020, we granted to certain qualified employees
of the Group the right to subscribe to a total of 11,670,600
ordinary shares of the Company, which resulted in equity
settled share-based expenses of US$21.1 million in 2020. We
did not incur equity settled share-based expenses during the
Reporting Period.

The Group is committed to hiring, retaining and promoting top
talents across its global teams. As part of its retention strategy,
the Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including salary and allowances, performance-
based bonuses and long term incentive programs. The Group
also provides regular and specialized training tailored to the
needs of its employees in different departments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER INFORMATION

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on December 30, 2021 (the “Listing
Date”). The Company received net proceeds (after deduction
of underwriting commissions and related costs and expenses)
from the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus),
including the full exercise of the over-allotment option, of
approximately HK$3,467.2 million. Since the Listing Date
and up to December 31, 2021, the Company had not utilized
the net proceeds from the Global Offering. The Company
intends to apply such net proceeds according to the manner,
proportions and timeline as disclosed in the Prospectus.

The unutilized net proceeds are placed in licensed banks in
PRC and Hong Kong as of the date of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of US$0.0715 per ordinary share (equivalent to HK$0.5577
per ordinary share) for the year ended December 31, 2021.
This proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) to be held on Thursday, June 2, 2022, and will
be paid to those Shareholders whose names appear on the
Company'’s register of members as of Tuesday, June 28, 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS/RECORD
DATE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, May 27, 2022 to Thursday, June 2, 2022, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
share transfers will be registered. To be eligible to attend the
AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 26, 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

Record date for determining the entitlement of the
Shareholders to the final dividend (if approved by the
Shareholders in the AGM) is Tuesday, June 28, 2022. To
qualify for the final dividend, all transfers forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, June 27,
2022. The register of members of the Company will be closed
on Tuesday, June 28, 2022, on which date no share transfers
will be registered.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date and the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules was not applicable to the Company before the Listing
Date. Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code and adopted most of the best practices
set out therein except for the following provision.

Code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code, recommends,
but does not require, that the roles of chairperson and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same person. Our Company deviates from this provision as
Mr. Pan performs both the roles of the Chairman of our Board
and the chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Pan is the
principal founder of our Group and has extensive experience
in the business operations and management of our Group. Our
Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer to Mr. Pan has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within our Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning. This structure
will enable our Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our Board considers that the balance of power and authority
will not be impaired due to this arrangement. In addition, all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of our
Board, including the relevant Board committees, and three
independent non-executive Directors. Our Board will reassess
the division of the roles of chairman and the chief executive
officer from time-to-time, and may recommend dividing the
two roles between different people in the future, taking into
account the circumstances of our Group as a whole.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions since the Listing Date. Having made specific
enquiry with the Directors, all of the Directors confirmed that
he/she has complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the period from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange to request
the Stock Exchange to exercise its discretion under Rule
8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, and the Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with
the requirements under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.
Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least
18.43% (being the minimum public float prescribed by the
Stock Exchange and the Listing Rules) of the Company’s entire
issued share capital were held by the public since the Listing
Date and up to the date of the Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE & B AT

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to
December 31, 2021:

(a) On January 21, 2022, the Company successfully issued
and allotted additional 10,787,400 Shares pursuant
to the over-allotment option, representing 15% of the
maximum number of offer shares initially available under
the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus), at
the offer price of HK$43.60 per Share.

(b) On January 28, 2022, Chervon (China) Investment, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a subscription
agreement and conditionally agreed to subscribe for A
shares of Chervon Auto Precision Technology through
non-public offering with a total subscription amount
up to RMB500.0 million (US$78.4 million equivalent).
Please refer to the section headed “Future Plans for
Major Investments and Capital Assets” for further
details.

As of the date of this report, save as disclosed above, there
was no important event affecting the Group which occurred
after the end of the Reporting Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As
of the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Minghui,
Mr. Tian Ming and Mr. Jiang Li (with Dr. Li Minghui possessing
the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
expertise).

The Audit Committee has jointly reviewed with the Board the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed the Group’s internal controls and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee
has reviewed and discussed the Annual Results.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Longquan (B8 R) (“Mr. Pan”), aged 58, is
our principal founder, executive Director, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Pan is primarily responsible
for supervising overall operations, management, strategic
planning and business development of our Group.

Mr. Pan has over 30 years of experience in the power tool
and OPE industry and 27 years of management experience
in our Group. Mr. Pan founded our principal operating
subsidiary, Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing
Chervon Industry”)” and has served as its chairman since
September 1997. On June 22, 1999, Mr. Pan was appointed
as our executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Pan currently serves as a director in a number
of our subsidiaries and as the general manager of Chervon
(China) Investment Co., Ltd.* (R (FFE)IZREBRAT)
(“Chervon China Investment”). He is also a director of
Chervon Global Holdings Limited (“Chervon Global”) and
its various subsidiaries, which are principally engaged in the
production of key automobile and mechanical components
and investment management. Mr. Pan serves as the chairman
of Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd. (F§
RRESEBEFMZMDER2AE]) (“Chervon Auto Precision
Technology”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603982.SH) since October 2012. Prior
to founding the predecessor company of our Group, Nanjing
Chervon International Trading Co., Ltd.* (BRRIEEREE S
ABRAF]) (“Chervon International Trading”) in 1994, Mr.
Pan served as a salesperson in Nanjing Machinery, Minerals,
Metals & Medicine Import and Export Company* (F R #MW 74
MR BE BR{E R H O 2 F]), a company engaged in machinery
import and export trading, from July 1988 to June 1993.

Mr. Pan received his bachelor's degree and his master’s
degree in earth sciences from Nanjing University (FRAZ) in
the PRC, in July 1985 and July 1988, respectively.

Note:

(1) Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. (B REHEXERA
7)) was renamed as Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd.
(ARRIERFARAF) while its English name remains
unchanged.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Zhang Tong (3Rf%) (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 50, is our co-
founder, executive Director and executive vice president for
the North America sales & marketing. Ms. Zhang is primarily
responsible for supervising overall operations, management,
strategic planning and sales and marketing development of
our Group in North America.

Ms. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in the power tool
and OPE products industry and management experience in
our Group. Ms. Zhang co-founded our principal operating
subsidiary, Nanjing Chervon Industry, and has served as
its director since September 1997. On June 22, 1999, Ms.
Zhang was appointed as our executive Director and executive
vice president for the North America sales and marketing.
Ms. Zhang currently serves as a director in a number of our
subsidiaries. She is also a director of Chervon Global and
its various subsidiaries, which are principally engaged in the
production of key automobile and mechanical components
and investment management. Ms. Zhang serves as a director
of Chervon Auto Precision Technology, a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603982.SH), since
October 2016.

Ms. Zhang studied foreign trade English from Hohai University
(AR E) in the PRC and graduated in July 1991. Ms. Zhang
received her master's degree in business management from
China Europe International Business School (FREXE 2T ) in the
PRC in May 2012.

30 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Rz ([Rzt]) 505 @ AR KE B
A BHITEERILXHERZHTRTRAE - K
LITBABREBEASEEILXINERBESY B
B BEAREIA R E RS R -

REZTHBEB0FNEHTAROPEERITELR
B WHEBEEASBEMNER c R T HEANT
BMNETZELWBRARAMRARERE - WE 1997
FOAREMEEE - 1199996 A22H » kX
WEEABEMORNITESTRILEHE REHENITE
BH - RETBAETERMZRMBARINES -
HJRAChervon Global M EZRWEBARIMES -
ZERNTETENSEBAIBEREMTIHFREEN
RIEEEI - RL T BE2016F10 AR EERIERE
BEREN (ELEEAFRSMETHAF - BHFR
15 1 603982.SH) V&= -

REZTRABNIBASBBINERE - WH19914F
7ARE - Rz 12012495 AES B B ST
TrERmE L -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ke Zuqian (##83) (‘Mr. Ke"), aged 61, is our co-
founder, executive Director and executive vice president
for manufacturing and supply chain. Mr. Ke is primarily
responsible for supervising manufacturing and production
processes and management of our Group.

Mr. Ke has over 20 years of experience in the power tool and
OPE products industry and management experience in our
Group. Mr. Ke joined Chervon International Trading in January
1996 as a technical director, and has served as a director and
a vice general manager of Nanjing Chervon Industry since
September 1997. On June 22, 1999, Mr. Ke was appointed
as our executive Director and executive vice president for
manufacturing. Mr. Ke currently serves as a director in a
number of our subsidiaries and as the general manager of
Nanjing Chervon Industry. He is also a director of Chervon
Global and its various subsidiaries, which are principally
engaged in the production of key automobile and mechanical
components and investment management. Mr. Ke serves as
a director of Chervon Auto Precision Technology, a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603982.
SH), since October 2016. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ke
was a lecturer in Tongji University (/& AX£) from July 1984 to
June 1992, a technical manager in TUV Rheinland (TUV{ZE] %
B /A7), a technical services provider, from July 1992 to May
1994 and a technical manager in TUV SUD (TUV/AEE AR
‘A\]), a testing and certification provider, from June 1994 to
December 1995.

Mr. Ke received his bachelor’s degree and his master’s degree
in industrial automation from Tongji University ([E/&AX2) in the
PRC in July 1984 and April 1990, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Michael John Clancy (“Mr. Clancy”), aged 66, is
our executive Director and senior vice president for the
North America sales and marketing. Mr. Clancy is primarily
responsible for supervising overall operations, management,
strategic planning and sales and marketing development of
our Group in North America.

Mr. Clancy has extensive experience in the power tool industry
and has accumulated over 30 years of experience in corporate
management.

Mr. Clancy joined our Group in September 2018 and has
since served as the chief executive officer of Chervon NA. Mr.
Clancy was appointed as our executive Director on August 4,
2021. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Clancy served as the vice
president for the national accounts unit of Skil Corporation
from 1978 to 1992, a power tool and accessory supplier which
was later acquired by our Group, the vice president of the
consumer business group of Rust-Oleum Corporation, a paint
supplier, from 1992 to 1995 the president of RotoZip Tool
Corp, a power tool and accessory supplier, from 1995 to 2000
and the senior vice president of the North American Sales
organization and the project management of Robert Bosch
Tool Corporation, a power tool and accessory supplier, from
2010 to 2016 and from 2016 to 2017, respectively.

Mr. Clancy received his bachelor's degree in business from
Western lllinois University in the U.S. in May 1977 and his
master’s degree in business administration from Depaul
University in the U.S. in February 1983. Mr. Clancy has been
one of the board members of the Outdoor Power Equipment
Institute since March 2021.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Ming (H®), aged 61, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director with effect from December
8, 2021. Mr. Tian is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board.

Mr. Tian has 20 years of extensive experience in the fields
of competitive strategy, operation management and property
investment and development. Mr. Tian worked at the Nanjing
People’'s Government (FARmARBUT) from July 1991
to October 2001, with his last position being the deputy
department head. He was also the executive secretary of
Nanjing Changjiang Waterway Bureau (MRMR/ILMEEE
/&) from December 1979 to April 1991. In December 2001, Mr.
Tian founded Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BAsFSEERHERAF)),
a company principally engaged in property development, and
has since served as its director and chief executive officer.
He has been the chairman of the board of Shanghai Landleaf
Architecture Technology Co., Ltd.* (LSRG EREBRAR])
since July 2013, a company principally engaged in providing
green construction technologies related services and the
shares of which were listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870998.NEEQ) from
February 2017 to March 2020.

Mr. Tian has served as the chairman and an executive director
in Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. (B4 BHEER
~\]) (stock code: 106.HK) since July 2013 and Landsea
Homes Corporation, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market (symbols: “LSEA”, “LSEAW”") since January 2021. He
was appointed as a director of Landsea Green Life Service
Company Limited (BAF&E4EEREABMRAF]) (stock code:
1965.HK) in December 2020, and subsequently, its chairman
of the board and a non-executive director in January 2021 and
has served since then.

Mr. Tian served on various committees, such as the vice
president of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (& B
HEEE) from October 2016 to October 2021, the president
of the CEIBS Alumni Association from April 2017 to April 2020,
and the rotating chairman of China Urban Realty Association
(FPIREEER) from April 2018 to April 2020.
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Mr. Tian received a diploma in engine management from
Nanjing Heyun School* (FIFURZEE4RL) (currently known
as Nanjing Maritime School* (FZ=MEEZH)) in the PRC in
December 1979 and a diploma in Chinese from Nanjing
Vocational Tertiary Institute* (MR L =EE24) in the PRC
in December 1988. Mr. Tian completed a master’s course
programme in administrative management from Nanjing
University (Fg R AZ) in the PRC in August 1997 and received
his master's degree in business management from China
Europe International Business School (FFEEE TEE
Bt) (“CEIBS”) in the PRC in September 2007. Mr. Tian was
awarded the “EY Entrepreneur of the Year” in the real estate
industry by Ernst & Young in October 2019.

Dr. Li Minghui (ZH &), aged 48, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director with effect from December
8, 2021. Dr. Li is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board. Dr. Li was a
lecturer in accounting from August 2003 to July 2005 and
an associate professor in accounting from August 2005 to
November 2006 at the School of Management in Xiamen
University (EF9KE). Dr. Li served as an associate professor
at the School of Business in Nanjing University (F&= AE) from
December 2006 to December 2009. Since December 2009,
Dr. Li has been a professor in accounting at the School of
Business in Nanjing University (f R A,

Dr. Li has been an independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Zhongweixin Software Technology Co., Ltd.* (F &R+
B EEERBERH AR AF]), a company principally engaged in
computer software development since August 2020 and has
also served as an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies, including Baosheng Science and
Technology Innovation Co., Ltd. (BEBEEEFKRMDERAR)
(stock code: 600973.SH) from December 2014 to May 2019,
Changchai Co., Ltd. (B4 AR 2AF]) (stock code: 000570.
SZ) from March 2015 to April 2020, Jiangsu Fasten Co., Ltd.
CIEEMBIRMHBRAR]) (stock code: 000890.SZ) from April
2015 to November 2019, Nanjing Securities Co., Ltd. (FFR&#
E AR AR (stock code: 601990.SH) since May 2016 and
GCL Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (3 ZBRIEMDBER D F)
(stock code: 002015.SZ) since June 2019.
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Dr. Li has been a director of China Audit Society (FREIZEFH2
=) since December 2009 and the vice president of Jiangsu
Audit Society* ((LE T2 ®) since January 2019.

Dr. Li received his bachelor's degree in accounting from
Nanjing University of Science and Technology (AR T
KE) in the PRC in June 1997 and his master's degree in
accounting from Shandong University of Economics (I H4E
EEBT) (currently known as Shandong University of Finance
and Economics (IIREFA&KZ)) in the PRC in June 2000. Dr.
Li obtained his doctorate degree in accounting from Xiamen
University (JEPTKXEZ) in July 2003. Dr. Li is qualified as a non-
practicing certified public accountant issued by The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December 2009.

Mr. Jiang Li (#3Z), aged 57, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director with effect from December
8, 2021. Mr. Jiang is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board.

Mr. Jiang was the founder of Nanjing Tianjia Air-conditioning
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (FARAINZEFHZEBRAF]), which was
later renamed as Nanjing Tianjia Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd.* (FRAIMIRFER AR AF]) and had been appointed
as its director and general manager in 1999, and has currently
served as the chairman of the board of the same. Mr. Jiang
served as a director of MayAir Technology (China) Co., Ltd (&
= (PE)RBRERGBRAR]) from July 2019 to March 2020
and was appointed as the chairman of its board since March
2020. Mr. Jiang has been a director of Guangzhou Smardt
Chiller Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (BMNBEELREEREFR
‘A7]) since January 2021. Mr. Jiang is also a member of the
National Professional Standardization Technical Committee*
(FEEXERECRTEES).

Mr. Jiang received his master’'s degree in business
management from China Europe International Business School
(PR EPT) in the PRC in September 2009. During his career,
Mr. Jiang was nominated as an innovative enterprise talent
by the Ministry of Science and Technology* (RHXEBAIFT 2
AA) and an excellent contributor to the cause of socialism
with Chinese characteristics in Jiangsu Province* (T#&EF
FREEEHSEREEERSE). Mr Jiang was also awarded the
first prize and the second prize in China machinery industry
science and technology* (REIMH TEMERM—FRE-F
#%) and Nanjing science and technology progress award* (/4
TR 1R,

EERSREREEES

=3
B

ZETH2009F 12 AREAFRETE2MNEST
BH2019F1 AREM I HET2enageR -

FHLETN1997 F6 AMBFREERIETIAEEFE
B 24 - WHK20005F 6 AEE B R&ES
(RBAILRMEKRE) S BB 26 - HLTRN
20037 AMBEMAS G2 LA - FiH L
B2009F 12 AR A+ B M sraline I X+
GETAD -

BINSE 57T BRI ARMNBIYIENTE
F H2021F12A8HBRER - BAEFTEEEE
BEEe W mEREET HIE -

BEERERARNEHAZIEERAR (HEEL AR
RAMERBRIFARAA) MEIARA - WK 19994
EZTAHESERAKE RIESERE - BLER
2019F 7 AZE2020F 3 AEFER (PRH) RIERHE
R ERABNESE - B20206F3 AREZ T AZ
NRIBEGEE - BEEH2021F1 ARRETEM
BERFERRIBREERAAES - BAENASR
EEEEECRTEZESKE -

B ER2009F AMBHETHEER IAER
LB - ERTEMBELET  HERA AR
REEIFtEAT RIGLEESTRFEHEER
BEENE o BAELEFR B T B2
— SRR EEEMAm RS E -

FER 35

RIEERRER AR —E=



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TEREREREEEF

==
H

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Yian (#20%), aged 53, is our chief financial officer.
Mr. Hu is primarily responsible for overseeing overall financial
operations, financing and investment activities of our Group.

Mr. Hu joined our Group in April 2003 and has since served
as the director and financial vice president of Nanjing Chervon
Industry. Mr. Hu currently also serves as a director in a
number of our subsidiaries. Mr. Hu has been a director of
Chervon Auto Precision Technology, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603982.SH), since
October 2012. Prior to joining our Group, he was a financial
manager of Nanjing Ericsson Panda Communication Co., Ltd.*
(AREEEHBIEABRAT) from November 1995 to March
2003.

Mr. Hu received his bachelor's degree in industrial accounting
from Northeast Institute of Technology (BRitT£p7) in the
PRC in June 1992 and his master's degree in international
management from The Australian National University in
Australia in June 2001.

Mr. Wu Shuming (RZH#), aged 55, is our vice president for
research and development. Mr. Wu is primarily responsible
for supervising and managing the research and development
system and leading technological development of our Group.

Mr. Wu joined our Group as an engineer in Nanjing Chervon
Industry in June 1997. Mr. Wu was appointed as the general
manager of R&D of our Group in March 2010. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Wu was an engineer in Nanjing Soil Instrument
Factory* (Fm= TR E2H) from July 1989 to May 1997.

Mr. Wu received his bachelor's degree in vacuum technology

and equipment from Hefei University of Technology (& BT 2
KE) in the PRC in July 1989.
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Mr. Wu Gang (=), aged 48, is our chief digital officer. Mr.
Wu is primarily responsible for overseeing the digital strategy
and information technology development of our Group.

Mr. Wu has extensive experience in managing the digital and
information system at various companies in the automotive
industry. He joined our Group as the chief digital officer on
April 26, 2021. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wu was the IT
system project manager of SAIC General Motors Co., Ltd.
from April 1998 to July 2005, the IT application director and
the IT PMO director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited from
August 2005 to July 2011, the chief IT director of industrial
group of Nippon China Limited from July 2011 to March 2012,
the IT director of Geely and Volvo China in April 2012 and the
chief digital officer of SAIC MAXUS Automotive Co., Ltd. from
February 2017 to July 2020.

Mr. Wu received his bachelor’'s degree in computer science
and technology from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/&%
BARE) in the PRC in July 1996 and his master's degree in
business administration from Fudan University (BB X&) in
the PRC in January 2008.

Mr. Zhang Ding (E£), aged 43, was appointed as our vice
president for product management on April 1, 2020 and
resigned with effect from March 4, 2022. Mr. Zhang was
primarily responsible for overseeing the product planning and
product management for our Group across all brands and
categories.

Mr. Zhang joined our Group in March 2003 as the sales
manager of Nanjing Chervon Industry. From 2006 to 2020,
Mr. Zhang held various positions in Nanjing Chervon Industry,
including the product manager, the product management
director and the product management senior director, and had
been the vice president for product management of Nanjing
Chervon Industry from April 2020 to March 2022.

Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’'s degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (ER/MNEINE KE) in
the PRC in June 2001 and his master’s degree in international
marketing management from The University of Leeds in the UK
in November 2002.
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Ms. Shan Xiaodong (EEE5), aged 55, is our vice president
for human resources. Ms. Shan is primarily responsible for
overseeing human resources planning and management of our
Group. Ms. Shan joined our Group in May 2017 as the vice
president for human resources in Nanjing Chervon Industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Shan was a lecturer in School
of Economics and Management of Inner Mongolia University
(AEHABLHEERER) from 1995 to 1996. Subsequently,
Ms. Shan held senior human resources management positions
in various companies, including serving as a human resources
and administrative manager at BP China Ltd. from 2001 to
2003, the vice president for Asia Pacific human resources
(BBRATEIRBE) of Hexion Inc. (previously Momentive
Specialty Chemicals) from 2003 to 2015 and the vice president
for human resources of Shanghai Fortune Map Trading Limited
(EBBEE SERAT) from 2015 to 2017.

Ms. Shan received her bachelor’'s degree in economic
management from Fudan University (B KX2) in the PRC in
July 1988 and her master’'s degree in management from BI
Norwegian School of Management in Norway in February 1999.

Mr. Peter John Melrose, aged 56, is our vice president for
the European sales & marketing. Mr. Melrose is primarily
responsible for supervising overall operations, management,
strategic planning and sales and marketing development of
our DIY power tools and OPE business in Europe. Mr. Melrose
joined our Group as a general manager of Chervon Europe
Limited in June 2007 and was appointed as the managing
director of EGO Europe GmbH since November 2015. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Melrose began his career with Black
& Decker and held various sales, marketing and product
development positions before joining NEC (UK) LTD as the
European marketing manager. Mr. Melrose continued his
career in marketing with one of the UK’s foremost companies
(Centrica plc) within its energy supply business (British Gas
Trading Ltd) and re-joined the power tool industry in Europe
as a commercial director with Global Machinery Company Pty.
Mr. Melrose received his bachelor’s degree in civil engineering
from Hatfield Polytechnic in the UK in July 1988 and his
master’'s degree in business administration (MBA) with a major
in strategic marketing from Hull University in the UK in July
1997.
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Dr. Christian Neuner, aged 46, is our vice president for FLEX.
Mr. Neuner is primarily responsible for supervising overall
operations, management, strategic planning and sales and
marketing development of the FLEX brand product.

Dr. Neuner joined our Group in August 2014 as the vice
president of corporate strategy and development of Nanjing
Chervon Industry. Dr. Neuner has subsequently held positions
in a number of our subsidiaries, including the managing
director of Chervon GmbH since October 2016, the managing
director of Flex EL since May 2017, the managing director of
Flex Geschaftsfuhrungs GmbH since June 2017 and the chief
executive officer of Flex Verwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG since
January 2018. Prior to joining our Group, Dr. Neuner served
as a project manager of Roland Berger Strategy Consultants
GmbH from May 2003 to October 2010 and a principal of
Roland Berger Management Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
from October 2010 to July 2014.

Dr. Neuner received his master’'s degree in business
administration with a major in marketing and production and
his doctorate degree in business administration from the
University of Bayreuth in Germany in May 2002 and April 2009,
respectively. Dr. Neuner has been one of the board members
of the European Power Tool Association (EPTA) since January
2020 and has been elected as the vice president of the
German Power Tool Association (ZVEI) in July 2021.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Hu Yian (#3\ %) was appointed as one of the joint
company secretaries of our Company on August 4, 2021,
which took effect on the same day.

For biographical details of Mr. Hu, please see “- Senior
Management” in this section.

Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy (A E#) was appointed as one of the
joint company secretaries of our Company on August 4, 2021,
which took effect on the same day.

Ms. Chow is a Director of Corporate Services of Tricor
Services Limited. She has over 20 years of experience in the
fields of corporate secretarial and compliance services. Ms.
Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and was qualified as chartered
secretary and chartered governance professional. She has
been admitted as a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom and an ordinary member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWE

The Board is pleased to announce the annual report (the
“Annual Report’) and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong as a private
company with limited liability under the predecessor ordinance
of the Companies Ordinance (which was in force from time to
time before March 3, 2014) on February 19, 1999, the shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on December
30, 2021 (the “Listing Date”). The Prospectus of the Company
dated December 17, 2021 has been published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://global.chervongroup.com).

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in researching, developing,
manufacturing, testing, sales, and after-sale services for power
tools, outdoor power equipment and related products. Analysis
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2021 is set out in the note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 6 to 7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 28 of the Annual Report.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its key
stakeholders is provided in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statements” on pages 6 to 7 of the Annual Report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” on page 5 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 28 of the Annual Report.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended December 31, 2021, as far as the
Board is aware, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
all material aspects.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition,
results of operations, businesses and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out as
follows:

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to the Industry

. We face active competition and resulting pricing
pressures, and we may not be able to compete
effectively against current and future competitors.

. Competitor innovations, customer and end-user
preferences and production conditions in the OPE
industry may change rapidly, and we may not be able
to sufficiently and promptly respond to such changes.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to Our Products

o Unsatisfactory performance of or defects in our
products may harm our reputation, lead to product
returns or recalls and subject us to significant product
liability litigations.

° Any mishandling of our battery cells and battery packs
may cause safety accident and disruption to the
operation of our facilities.

o We may fail to maintain our brand position among our
targeted end-user groups, and market perception and
end-user acceptance of our brands may suffer.

° We are subject to various regulatory and customer-
imposed guidelines and may not be successful in
maintaining an effective quality control system.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to Our Operations

° Our business depends in part on our ability to protect
our intellectual property rights and operating without
infringing on the rights of third parties.

o Our business depends on third-party suppliers to meet
our requirements for high-quality production and timely
delivery of raw materials and components.

o Our manufacturing capabilities depend on labor supply
and middle management, and we may not be able to
recruit, train and retain qualified personnel or maintain
a sufficient workforce.

. Our distributors may engage in misconduct or other
improper activities, as a result of which, we may be
exposed to regulatory investigations, penalties or other
negative consequences.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to Our Financial
Condition

. We may not be able to obtain adequate financing on
commercially reasonable terms on a timely basis, or at
all, and any debt financing may contain covenants that
restrict our business or operations.

o We are exposed to counterparty risk in our hedging
arrangements.
o We may not achieve optimal results in future

acquisitions, investments, partnerships or new
businesses, or may encounter difficulties in integrating
and developing the acquired assets or investments
successfully.

o Changes in taxation on our business may materially and

adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to Regulatory
Compliance

° We may not be able to obtain, maintain and renew
various permits, licenses, certificates, consents and
other approvals from administrative authorities.

° Failure in complying with quotas, duties, tariffs or other
restrictions on imports and exports may expose us to
increased costs and delay the transportation of our
products to market.

o We are subject to national and local environmental and
health and safety directives, laws and regulations, and
the violation of which may materially and adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to Doing Business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

o The economic, political and social conditions in China,
as well as government policies, laws and regulations,
could affect our business, financial conditions and
results of operations.

o Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal system
could limit the legal protections available to us and
any litigation in China may be protracted and result in
substantial costs and diversion of our resources and
management attention.

o We rely on dividends paid by our subsidiaries for our
cash needs, and any limitation on the ability of our
subsidiaries to make payments to us could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to conduct our
business.

e Fluctuations in the value of the RMB and the PRC
Government's control over foreign currency conversion
may adversely affect our business and results of
operations.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Relating to COVID-19
Epidemic

o Any prolonged spread or new occurrence of COVID-19
epidemic in the PRC or elsewhere in the world
could materially and adversely affect our business
performance, financial condition and results of
operations.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Board is responsible for evaluating and managing
material environmental, social and governance (‘ESG")
issues. Company management is responsible for developing
the Company’s ESG strategy, policy and reporting, including
assessing and managing climate-related risks, with oversight
provided by the Board. For environmental matters, our
Environmental, Health and Safety (“EHS”) department and
equipment management department are responsible for
managing environmental and climate-related risks arising
from our business operations. The EHS department identifies
key environmental factors, establishes operational control
requirements and procedures and conducts relevant
monitoring and inspections. The EHS department also reviews
and updates the operational control procedures on an annual
basis in accordance with changes to key environmental
factors, applicable laws and regulations and compliance
assessments.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, we had not been
subject to any material fines or other penalties due to non-
compliance in relation to environmental protection laws
and regulations that had a material adverse impact on our
operations and, so far as our Directors are aware after making
all reasonable enquiries, there was no threatened or pending
action by any environmental government authorities in respect
thereof.

For details of the Company’'s environmental policies
and performance, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Annual
Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Group’s ESG matters including
environmental policies and performance are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of the Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 40.9% and 64.7% respectively of the Group’s
total revenue; and the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 9.3% and 14.7%
respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) who owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital had any interest in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2021 are set out in the financial statement on page 178 of the
Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of US$0.0715 per ordinary share (equivalent to HK$0.5577
per ordinary share) for the year ended December 31, 2021.
This proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) to be held on Thursday, June 2, 2022, and will be
paid on or around Friday, July 15, 2022 to those Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members
as of Tuesday, June 28, 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS/RECORD
DATE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, May 27, 2022 to Thursday, June 2, 2022, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
share transfers will be registered. To be eligible to attend the
AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 26, 2022.

Record date for determining the entitlement of the
Shareholders to the final dividend (if approved by the
Shareholders in the AGM) is Tuesday, June 28, 2022. To
qualify for the final dividend, all transfers forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
June 27, 2022. The register of members of the Company will
be closed on Tuesday, June 28, 2022, on which date no share
transfers will be registered.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy adopted by the Company,
the declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board, and, if necessary, the approval of the shareholders
of the Company. In considering the declaration and payment
of dividends, the Board shall take into account the Group’s
results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company, the Company’s capital requirements, future
business plans and prospects and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant. Any declaration and payment,
as well as the amount, of any dividend will also be subject to
the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) and all applicable laws and regulations. The
Directors may reassess the dividend policy from time to time.

46 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

EENERMBFEER REEH

KRB E2022F5 A27H (EH T ) £2022F6
AoB (EHM) (2REEREMAB) BEHEROBS
BRTFE NErBREERRERBFRENREY
7 ZHRERETEELETABRDBEE - AFEE
BEERRERRAFRE  MEBPREERMRERSE
JAR2022F5 26 8 (2HM) TH W =+2 a1
EARARNFNBROBFELESEZFELERAA
(it AEB 2B RER1835A MAP05418) LAYE
BELFE -

ETBRREWEARARE (WRKRRBF K LER
i) ERMEer A A2022F6 A28 H (£ 5
D) BEABERERAHRE - IBEBPRKER
AR EANR2022F6 8278 (2H—) TFUE=
THRRERRFTNRNBPELEEEFFEL
ERAF (MUt AEBEFE2ERER183RA A
DEATE) AR B F & - AR AER202266 A
28R (EMZ) BEMERHBFERFE -

i S BE

BREARBRMANOREEE  REERAEEEN
BEER (WRE) BREARBRRILE EFEE
BEIRNKERER AEZEARENSERSE
BEeRE MBI - ARBIREREAEE K&
ERE - ARRNMEARFR - RREBHF B RATS
NREESAERASEBNEMNEMER - EfR
BNEIRMKEARSETBAETARRAESE
HEAR(THASKERAR ) MAABRNERIR
Moo BEATREMEZBEEE



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 5 of
the Annual Report. The summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”’) on December 30, 2021 (the “Listing
Date”). The Company received net proceeds (after deduction
of underwriting commissions and related costs and expenses)
from the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus),
including the full exercise of the over-allotment option, of
approximately HK$3,467.2 million. Since the Listing Date
and up to December 31, 2021, the Company had not utilized
the net proceeds from the Global Offering. The Company
intends to apply such net proceeds according to the manner,
proportions and timeline as disclosed in the Prospectus.

The unutilized net proceeds are placed in licensed banks in
PRC and Hong Kong as of the date of the Annual Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the
year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 34(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries in the year ended
December 31, 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set
out in note 34(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at December 31, 2021 amounted to US$131.7
million (2020: US$159.5 million), further details of which are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year ended
December 31, 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date and up to December
31, 2021, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately
RMB1.0 million charitable donations were made by the Group
(2020: RMB1.2 million).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company and its subsidiaries during the
year ended December 31, 2021 and as at the date of the

Annual Report are:

Directors of the Company:
Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Longquan (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Tong

Mr. Ke Zugian

Mr. Michael John Clancy (appointed on August 4, 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Ming (appointed on December 8, 2021)
Dr. Li Minghui (appointed on December 8, 2021)
Mr. Jiang Li (appointed on December 8, 2021)
Directors

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (resigned on August 4, 2021)
Mr. Xiao Jun (resigned on August 4, 2021)

Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company:

The following directors have served on the board of the

subsidiaries of the Company as at December 31, 2021

Place of

Name of Subsidiaries Incorporation
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MBARER AFFEMAM Name of Directors BEEgR
Chervon (HK) Ltd Hong Kong Mr. Pan Longquan ERRLE
RIE(FE)BRAF 575 Ms. Zhang Tong RY L
Mr. Ke Zugian FIERR A&
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei B S E
Chervon Overseas Holdings Limited Hong Kong Mr. Pan Longquan ERREE
RIEFIMNEBER AT &8 Ms. Zhang Tong Rzt
Mr. Ke Zugian AR E
Chervon (China) Trading Co.,Ltd PRC Mr. Pan Longquan ERREE
RIE(HE) BESBRRA HE Ms. Zhang Tong RYZL
Mr. Hu Yian Az
Chervon (China) Tools Sales Co., Ltd PRC Ms. Zhang Tong Rt
FUE(RE) TEHEEERAT i

49



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EE e

Place of
Name of Subsidiaries Incorporation
g PN DRAFMM L Name of Directors Bx=pns
Chervon Industry Co., Ltd PRC Mr. Pan Longguan ERER AL
FERHEBR AR HE Ms. Zhang Tong RY L
Mr. Ke Zugian MR EE
Mr. Hu Yian BAAZ S
Chervon Industry (Vietnam) Co. Ltd Vietnam Mr. Ren Dehong FEREE
REEE(HRE)BRQA e Mr. Ke Zugian FIAER A
Chervon (China) Investment Co., Limited PRC Mr. Pan Longguan ERRREE
RIE(RE)RERRRA HE Ms. Zhang Tong Rzt
Mr. Ke Zugian FIEER &
Chervon North America Inc. us Mr. Pan Longquan ERER KL
xE Ms. Zhang Tong b2
Mr. Hu Yian MR LA
Chervon Canada Inc. Canada Mr. Pan Longquan EREREE
mex Ms. Zhang Tong Ry xL
Mr. Howard Drabinsky Howard Drabinsky 7t £
Chervon Europe Ltd United Kingdom Mr. Pan Longquan ERREE
RE Ms. Zhang Tong R+
EGO Europe GmbH Germany Mr. Peter John Melrose Peter John Melrose st 4
=E
Chervon Australia Pty Australia Mr. Pan Longquan ERREE
BAFIE Mr. Ng Paul King-Por Ng Paul King-Por %4
Mr. Hu Yian HNREE
Chervon NZ Subsidiary Limited New Zealand ~ Mr. Pan Longquan EEREE
G| Ms. Zhang Tong R L
Mr. Richard Charles Ashby Richard Charles Ashby st 4%
Flex Geschéftsfuhrungs GmbH Germany Mr. Ke Zugian THE R SR
=5 Dr. Christian Neuner Christian Neunerf&+
FLEX Elektrowerkzeuge GmbH Germany Dr. Christian Neuner Christian Neunert& 1
2E
FLEX Power Tools BVBA Belgium Mr. Robert Charles de Koning Robert Charles de Koning%t 4
e llis:

FLEX Power Tools B.V.
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Place of

Name of Subsidiaries Incorporation

MEARER DAFMM L Name of Directors EEpH

FLEX Elektronafadi, s.r.o The Czech Dr. Christian Neuner Christian Neunert&+
Republic Mr. Jan Skala Jan Skala%t £
R AE

FLEX ltalia S.r.| Italy Dr. Christian Neuner Christian Neunert&+
BEARH Mr. Stefano Galdabino Stefano Galdabino%t £

Mr. Gert Moller Gert Mollerft &£
FLEX Electroportatif Machines et France Dr. Christian Neuner Christian Neunerf& =+
Accessoires-FEMA EE Mr. Philippe Bayet Philippe Bayet% &

Flex Power Tools Limited

SKIL B.V.

Chervon GmbH

United Kingdom
B
Netherlands
i

Germany

Mr. Ashley Senna
Dr. Christian Neuner

Mr. Pan Longquan
Mr. Peter John Melrose
Dr. Christian Neuner

Ashley Senna%t4
Christian Neunerf&+

BERERTE
Peter John Melrose %t &
Christian Neunert& =+

(==

In accordance with article 111 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Pan Longquan, Ms. Zhang Tong and Mr. Ke Zugian will
hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with article 111 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Pan Longquan, Ms. Zhang Tong and Mr. Ke Zugian will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has not received any notice in writing specifying
that the resignation or refusal to stand for election is due
to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company from the
Directors.

The particulars of Directors who are subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting are set out in the
circular to shareholders of the Company dated April 29, 2022.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director a confirmation of independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 39 of the
Annual Report.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change to any information required to be disclosed
in relation to any Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e)
and (g) under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the
publication of the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company on December 8, 2021, and the
Company has issued letters of appointment to each of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors.
The service contracts with each of the executive Directors
is for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
December 8, 2021. The letter of appointment with each of
the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors is for an initial fixed term of three years. The
service contract and the letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
service contracts and the letters of appointments may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and
the applicable Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered,
or has proposed to enter, a service contract with any member
of the Group (other than contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and
senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2021, the interests or short positions of
each Director of the Board in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the "SFO”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
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Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) are as follows:

(M

Interest in our Company

TREFRXZHWFESTA ([RETFA ) ANEAAF
N PR SRR

(M

RAEQTWER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

interest®
Nature of interest Number of shares™ IRAEL
Name of Director EE & ERME REE® BoLE®
Mr. Pan® EEEO Interest in controlled corporation 260,226,344 (L) 54.27%
R E 10,787,400 (S) 2.25%
Ms. Zhang® R +® Interest in controlled corporation 98,835,550 (L) 20.61%
SRk E R
Mr. Ke® @ Interest in controlled corporation 27,118,822 (L) 5.65%
RNl
Mr. Clancy® Clancy%c4£®  Interest in controlled corporation 480,100 (L) 0.10%
S AB RS
Notes: Htat -

54

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such
shares of the Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s
short position in such shares of the Company.

These shares are held by Panmercy Holdings Limited
(“Panmercy”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Pan, who is
also a director of Panmercy. Panmercy’s short position in
10,787,400 shares of the Company under a stock borrowing
and lending agreement ceased on 26 January 2022 when
issuance of 10,787,400 new shares pursuant to the full
exercise of the over-allotment option was completed.

These shares include (i) 97,637,750 Shares held by Green
Hope Limited (“Green Hope”), which is wholly owned by
Ms. Zhang and (ii) 1,197,800 Shares held by two offshore
employee shareholding platforms pursuant to an employee
incentive arrangement, of which Ms. Zhang is the sole
director. Ms. Zhang is deemed to be interested in these

Shares for the purposes of the SFO.

These shares are held by Klamm Limited (“Klamm”), which
is wholly owned by Mr. Ke, who is also a director of Klamm.

Mr. Clancy is interested in 480,100 Shares which are held
by NP Kun Investment Limited, which is owned by Mr.
Clancy with 47% interests. Mr. Clancy is deemed to be
interested in these Shares for the purposes of the SFO.
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(ii)  Interest in our associated corporations (i) PIEEOEE P AR
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Name of Nature of interest Name of the associated corporation/subsidiary interest
Director ~ EZEH RBEME RBEE/ WEAREH RERORAL
Mr. Pan EEE Interest in controlled Chervon Global Holdings Limited (“Chervon Global") 66.72%
corporation
REEERE Chervon Assets Management Holdings Limited 85.00%
Chervon Investment Limited 100.00%
Chervon Capital Management Limited 100.00%
Chervon Assets Holdings Limited 100.00%
Chervon (Nanjing) Management Services Co., Ltd.* 100.00%

(RE(F7)EBREERAF) (“Chervon Management Services')
R (ER) ERREERAR ([ REERRE])

Nanjing Chervon International Trading Co., Ltd.* (B R FIEERE 5HRAF) 85.00%
(“Chervon International Trading’)

AR REREHERAR ([ REARES))

Nanjing Jiuhao Electromechanical Industry Co., Ltd.* 100.00%
(ARIEHEEE£AR 2 7)) (‘Jiuhao Electromechanical’)
BRAEREERARLA ([RERE))

Chervon Precision Technology Holdings Company Limited 92.00%
(RERZRAERARLF) (“Chervon Precision Technology’)
FERERITERERAF (| RERHH])

Chervon (China) Investment Co., Ltd* (R (R E]) REBRAF) 100.00%
(“Chervon China Investment”)

RE(RE)REBRDE ([RE (PH) RE])

Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd. 35.75%
(ARFBAERERIRHERAE]) (“Chervon Auto Precision Technology”)
HRREAEEERMROBRAR ([ RETBEEHI])

Chervon Auto Precision Technology (Europe) Limited Liability Company 100.00%

RIETRERRAT — B —FFR 55
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== g5 A+
ESEWE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Name of Nature of interest Name of the associated corporation/subsidiary interest
Director ~ EE%HE BHUE BEEE/ HWEARER RERHEA L
Chervon Auto Precision Technology (Anhui) Co., Ltd.* 100.00%
(RUERERERM (24) RHERAF) (“Chervon Anhui’)
T REEERN (28 ROHBRAR ([REZH])
Ms. Zhang ~ HET Interest in controlled Chervon Global 24.66%
corporation
RiEERER Chervon Assets Management Holdings Limited 85.00%
Chervon Investment Limited 100.00%
Chervon Capital Management Limited 100.00%
Chervon Assets Holdings Limited 100.00%
Chervon Management Services 100.00%
FEERRT
Chervon International Trading 85.00%
Jiuhao Electromechnical 100.00%
WEKE
Chervon Precision Technology 92.00%
R RER
Chervon China Investment 100.00%
i (R E) &
Chervon Auto Precision Technology 35.75%
R RERAHR
Chervon Auto Precision Technology (Europe) Limited Liability Company 100.00%
T REEER (B AR
Chervon Anhui 100.00%
FERH
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Name of Nature of interest Name of the associated corporation/subsidiary interest
Director BZ4B BiEME BEEE/ WEARER RERORAL
Mr. Ke {Epie Interest in controlled Chervon Global 6.85%
corporation
REEERE Chervon Assets Management Holdings Limited 85.00%
Chervon Investment Limited 100.00%
Chervon Capital Management Limited 100.00%
Chervon Assets Holdings Limited 100.00%
Chervon Management Services 100.00%
REERRE
Chervon International Trading 85.00%
REERES
Jiuhao Electromechanical 100.00%
WERE
Chervon Precision Technology 92.00%
TR
Chervon China Investment 100.00%
g (RE) A
Chervon Auto Precision Technology 35.75%
RESERERM
Chervon Auto Precision Technology (Europe) Limited Liability Company 100.00%
T REEER (BN BRAF
Chervon Anhui 100.00%
REZH
RIEZERERAR — T —FFR 57



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE e

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER IFEREREMATHARMORIEERHDHE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN #HZ#%&&
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2021, the following persons (other than 2021412831 H * U FTAT (AR AESZHHES
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have  7TELA BEESN) IRANA IR () sk HERE AL (D th B 1R &
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares FE 5N HIEE0IE3361EBLARRABEFENE
of the Company which were recorded in the register required IR SAR » HREFS NS IEHIFEXVER
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or  F2N3DEAMRARRFENERSIAR

which were required to be disclosed to the Company under

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

interest®
Name of Nature of interest Number of shares™ RE
shareholder REER EEME iidvip= 4K BREs
Mr. Pan® EEEO Interest in controlled corporation 260,226,344 (L) 54.27%
SPEEB RS 10,787,400 (S) 2.25%
Panmercy® =Ee Beneficial owner 260,226,344 (L) 54.27%
EmEEA
Ms. Zhang®® RZ 0 Interest in controlled corporation 98,835,550 (L) 20.61%
XY EE
Green Hope® BIE® Beneficial owner 97,637,750 (L) 20.36%
EmEEA
Mr. Ke®) ] S HEG) Interest in controlled corporation 27,118,822 (L) 5.65%
XY EE
Klamm(®) A Beneficial owner 27,118,822 (L) 5.65%

EaiBA
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such
shares of the Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s
short position in such shares of the Company.

(2) Panmercy is wholly owned by Mr. Pan, who is also
a director of Panmercy. Panmercy’s short position in
10,787,400 shares of the Company under a stock borrowing
and lending agreement ceased on January 26, 2022 when
issuance of 10,787,400 new shares pursuant to the full
exercise of the over-allotment option was completed.

(3) 97,637,750 Shares are held by Green Hope, which is
wholly owned by Ms. Zhang, who is also a director of
Green Hope.

(4) 1,197,800 Shares are held by two offshore employee
shareholding platforms, Sky Roc Investment Limited and
NP Kun Investment Limited, pursuant to an employee
incentive arrangement. Ms. Zhang is the sole director of
the offshore shareholding platforms and is deemed to be
interested in these Shares for the purposes of the SFO.

(5) Klamm is wholly owned by Mr. Ke, who is also a director of
Klamm.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of the Annual Report,
the Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, none of such related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction (as the case may be).

The (i) Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Factory
Lease; (ii) Water Utility Bill Sharing Agreement; (iii) Electricity
Utility Bill Sharing Agreement; (iv) Nanjing Yaoquan Office
Lease; (v) Company Secretarial Services Agreement; and
(vi) Tax Compliance Services Agreement (as defined in the
Prospectus) constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company after listing. Details of which including (1) the
parties to the transaction and a description of their connected
relationship; (2) the transaction date; (3) description of the
transaction; (4) principal terms and historical amount; and (5)
listing rules implications, were disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and the
section headed “Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions” in the Annual Report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director and/or any of its connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, and no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended December 31,
2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended December 31, 2021 was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or minor children were granted any right to subscribe
for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of the
Annual Report, none of the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance to cover all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by any Directors or officers in the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. The relevant
provisions in the Articles of Association and such directors
and officers liability insurance were in force for the year ended
December 31, 2021 and as of the date of the Annual Report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange to request
the Stock Exchange to exercise its discretion under Rule
8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, and the Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with
the requirements under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.
Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least
18.43% (being the minimum public float prescribed by the
Stock Exchange and the Listing Rules) of the Company’s entire
issued share capital were held by the public since the Listing
Date and up to the date of the Annual Report.

EVENT AFTER THE PERIOD

The following significant event took place subsequent to
December 31, 2021:

(a) On January 21, 2022, the Company successfully issued
and allotted additional 10,787,400 shares pursuant
to the over-allotment option, representing 15% of the
maximum number of offer shares initially available under
the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus), at
the offer price of HK$43.60 per share.

(b) On January 28, 2022, Chervon (China) Investment,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Chervon (China) Investment conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the A shares of Chervon Auto Precision
Technology through non-public offering with a total
subscription amount up to RMB500.0 million (US$78.4
million equivalent).
announcements dated January 28 and March 30, 2022
for further details.

Please refer to the Company’s

As at the date of the Annual Report, save as disclosed above,
there was no important event affecting the Group which
occurred after December 31, 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has jointly reviewed with the Board the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed the Group's internal controls and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee
has reviewed and discussed the annual results of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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AUDITOR

KPMG was appointed as auditors of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2021 upon the retirement of Good Faith
CPA Firm Limited in 2020.

KPMG shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
64 to 89 of the Annual Report.

By Order of the Board

Pan Longquan

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, March 30, 2022
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The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on December
30, 2021 and the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules was not
applicable to the Company before the Listing Date.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. After listing, the Company has adopted the
CG Code as its own code of corporate governance. Save as
disclosed in the Annual Report, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code for the
period from the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report.
The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of liability arising from legal action against its
Directors, and will conduct annual review on such insurance
coverage.
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Board Composition

As at the date of the Annual Report, the Board comprised
seven Directors, including four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Longquan (Chairperson, Chief Executive Officer and
member of Nomination Committee)

Ms. Zhang Tong (member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Ke Zugian

Mr. Michael John Clancy (appointed on August 4, 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairperson of Remuneration Committee and
members of Audit and Nomination Committees)
(appointed on December 8, 2021)

Dr. Li Minghui (Chairperson of Audit Committee and
members of Remuneration Committee)

(appointed on December 8, 2021)

Mr. Jiang Li (Chairperson of Nomination Committee and
member of Audit Committee)
(appointed on December 8, 2021)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of the Annual Report.

The Board considers that the composition of the Board
provides a strong independent element with a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of the
Annual Report, the Board has met at all times the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of the
Annual Report, the Company has also complied with Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment of
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers each of them to be
independent as at the date of the Annual Report.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of the Annual Report, none of the
Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the code provision under the CG Code requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved
to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Board Diversity Policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain
the high standard of corporate governance, we have adopted
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on
December 8, 2021, which sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of our Board. Pursuant to
Board Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve board diversity by
taking into consideration of various factors, including but not
limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service.

The Company will also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board
level, including gender diversity, as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’'s competitive advantage and
enhancing its ability to attract, retain and motivate employees
from the widest possible pool of available talent.
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As at the date of the Annual Report, the seven Directors
of the Company have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills
and experience, including the areas of accounting, asset
management, consumer goods and machinery industries.
They obtained academic degrees in various majors, including
business administration, accounting, computer and marketing.
We have three independent non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the
members of our Board. Furthermore, our Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 48 years old to 66 years old. We
have also taken, and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of our Company, including
but not limited to the Board and the management levels.
While we recognize that the gender diversity at the Board
can be improved, we will continue to apply the principle of
appointments based on merits with reference to our Board
Diversity Policy.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of our Board members and compliance with relevant
codes governing board diversity under the CG Code. Our
Nomination Committee will review and revisit the Board
Diversity Policy and our diversity profile (including gender
balance) at least once annually to ensure its continued
effectiveness and discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to our Board
for consideration and approval.
corporate governance report about the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis.

We will also disclose in our

Training and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Directors would be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under
relevant statutes, rules and regulations. The Company
also arranges regular seminars to provide the Directors with
updates on the latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has from time to time
updated and provided the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.

Prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given the training
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate
governance and regulatory updates and relevant reading
materials including compliance manual/legal and regulatory
updates/seminar handouts have been provided to the Directors
for their reference and studying.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, during the
year ended December 31, 2021, the Directors received the
following trainings and updates in 2021:

ARRSBHESSEBETELRR  UBERREH
HAMBEIEE c KRB TEENRMEERHTEH
mEAE  BELBENSEEIITE -

REMA > 2REFCEXFHRESBEREE
RERREEEHNNEI - MARHENH (21

BRFMEEREEEN M gEE) DRYE

TEEUHBELEREE -

RESEFRENER > HE2021F12A31HIEF
€ BER2021FEEIUTEIREF

Reading
newspapers,
journals and

updates relating
to the economy
and business

Attending seminars
and/or conferences
and/or forums
relation to rules
and regulations

or duties of management and

the directors  duties of directors

HEFBERAR MEEEKSER

RORESHEZ EBREBEUR

WHER, S ExREZEE -

Name of Directors EEEB BERHwiE HHRSHER

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Pan Longquan ERER AL v v

Ms. Zhang Tong R L v v

Mr. Ke Zugian AR A v v

Mr. Michael John Clancy Michael John Clancyst4 v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Tian Ming HEALAE v v

Dr. Li Minghui THEE L v v

Mr. Jiang Li B A v v
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Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which requires
the roles of chairperson and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

However, the Company does not have a separate chairperson
and president and the responsibility of both chairperson and
chief executive officer vest in Mr. Pan Longquan. The Board
believes that vesting the responsibilities of both chairperson
and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring the consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
of the Group. Besides, with three independent non-executive
Directors out of a total of seven Directors in the Board, there
will be sufficient independent voice within the Board to protect
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Therefore, the Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
this structure will enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairperson of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Company at a time
when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his/her independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of Mr. Pan Longquan, Ms. Zhang Tong, Mr. Ke Zugian
and Mr. Michael John Clancy, an executive Director, has
entered into an executive director service agreement with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from December 8, 2021 and subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms and may be renewed in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the applicable
Listing Rules.

Each of Mr. Tian Ming, Dr. Li Minghui and Mr. Jiang Li, an
independent non-executive Director, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from December 8, 2021 and subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into, or has proposed to enter into, a service contract or letter
of appointment with the Group (other than contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to Article 111 (a) of the Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation. Subject to the provisions of the
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association,
the Directors to retire in every year shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last election, and as
between persons who became Directors on the same day, the
Directors to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between
themselves) be determined by lot. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, without
prejudice to the power of the Company in general meeting
in accordance with any of the provisions of the Articles of
Association to appoint any person to be a Director, the Board
shall have power, exercisable at any time and from time to
time, to appoint any other person as a Director, either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, provided
that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed
the maximum number (if any) determined pursuant to the
Articles of Association. Any Directors so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for reelection, but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at each
annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Pan Longquan, Ms.
Zhang Tong and Mr. Ke Zugian shall retire by rotation at the
AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, and for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment of Directors and
succession plans for the Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately
quarterly intervals in accordance with the CG Code. Notices
of no less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings and
that each Director can participate the board proceedings in
a meaningful and effective manner. When Directors or Board
Committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the
company secretary of the Company with copies circulated to
all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the Board
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meetings and Board Committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board meetings
are open for inspection by the Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, four Board
meetings were held by the Company. During the period form
the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report, one Board
meeting was held. The Company did not convene any general
meeting for the period from the Listing Date to the date of
the Annual Report. As the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange on December 30, 2021, for the year
ended December 31, 2021, the code provisions relating to the
number of Board Meetings convened are not applicable to the
Company. Commencing from January 1, 2022, the Company
will fully comply with the requirements under the code
provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the version effective from
January 1, 2022) by convening Board meetings at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meeting during
the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out below:
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HZE2021F12A31BILEFE - ARRIERIT T
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Attended/Eligible
to attend the
Board meeting

BEELE
Name of Directors EEREB Exgex
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Pan Longquan EEEREE 4/4
Ms. Zhang Tong 2 4/4
Mr. Ke Zugian TR T 4/4
Mr. Michael John Clancy (appointed as a Director Michael John Clancy 5t 4 11
with effect from August 4, 2021) (B2021F8H4AREZTRES)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tian Ming (appointed as a Director with HAEFE A 1/1
effect from December 8, 2021) (B2021F 12 F8EEEZ T AESE)
Dr. Li Minghui (appointed as a Director with E 1/1
effect from December 8, 2021) (B2021F12 A8 EELZ T AESR)
Mr. Jiang Li (appointed as a Director with B 1/1

effect from December 8, 2021)

(B2021F12 A8 HHEERTAESE)
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The CG Code requires that the chairperson should at least
annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors. As the
Company was only listed on December 30, 2021, no meeting
between the Chairperson and the independent non-executive
Directors was held during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
since the Listing Date. Having made specific enquiry with
the Directors, all of the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of the Annual Report. There has been no non-compliance
with the required standard set out in the CG Code from the
Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
any significant transactions entered into by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board confirmed that corporate governance is a collective
responsibility of the Directors, which corporate governance
functions includes:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

74 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

ERERRAE

EFE2RARTEEEAR
P el 2 AL o

SPRIZ SFRMESCEA 2. 1%

EEEHR CEXBABEENARAMLE  ©XF

JRERRE R ¢

(a) BIERBIARANEEEABRRRER -
YREESRHEE

(b) BAREREERER
BRER:

BB LA

(c) BEURERARBCEETEIERLREEREN
HE B R ER
(d) HIE B KE REERBEENTR

EJ)SZ’WE?H%(ZIDE) &

() WFEARREBETEEENR
ERAMEMIFEEER -

STRIEER R B

EFeCRIARTNCEEARELER EF
LEafhEREMNBIIMBETERR - ARATE
FTEREMEEHRTHENBERER - BTIREST
AIREAREIESIMIBN - UWERAQRETSTAIA
EANEATEERAREANNHEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Li Minghui, Mr. Tian Ming, Mr. Jiang Li, being all independent
non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Dr. Li Minghui (being the independent non-executive Director
with the appropriate professional qualifications).

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of our Audit Committee
are to review, supervise and approve our financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system, review
and approve connected transactions, oversee the audit
process and to provide independent advice and comments to
the Board. The written terms of reference of Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on December 30,
2021, no Audit Committee meeting was held during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

From the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report, one
meeting of the Audit Committee was held to discuss and
consider the following matters:

° reviewed final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the Auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit; and

o reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function), risk management systems,
review the annual cap of existing continued connected
transactions, and processes and the re-appointment
of the Auditor; the Board had not deviated from any
recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
Auditor.
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The attendance of each Audit Committee member at the Audit
Committee meeting during the period from the Listing Date to
the date of the Annual Report is set out in the table below:

BERZEGKEBR LT RAMBEARFRA LS
t SERNBRENTEK

3
B
N
XH
]
I8

Attended/Eligible

to attend
Name of Directors EEHS BdiEELE
Dr. Li Minghui BB 1/1
Mr. Tian Ming HER%E 1/1
Mr. Jiang Li Bt 11

The Audit Committee also met the auditor once without the
presence of the executive Directors during the period from the
Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members, including one executive Director, namely, Mr. Pan
Longquan, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Jiang Li and Mr. Tian Ming. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Jiang Li.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary responsibilities of our nomination
committee are to consider and recommend to the Board on
the appointment, removal and re-election of Directors of the
Company and to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Company on regular basis.

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Policy on Directors Nomination

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“‘Nomination Policy”) on December 8, 2021, which sets out
the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation
to the selection, appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
procedures and process as set out in the Nomination Policy:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

the Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board,
develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience at the outset to focus the search effort on
suitable candidates, where necessary;

the Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertisements, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from Shareholders with
due consideration given to the criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy;

the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as conducting interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold a
meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board
for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the
proposed appointment and the proposed remuneration
package; and

the Board will have the final authority in determining the
selection of nominees and all appointment of Directors
will be confirmed by the filing of the consent to act as
Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar
filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case may
be).

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Since the Listing Date up to the date
of the Annual Report, there was no change in the composition
of the Board.
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Due to the fact that the Company was listed on December 30, HRARFNKR2021F 128308 £ + WE =2021
2021, no Nomination Committee meeting was held during the F12A31BItFETERTIREEES S -
year ended December 31, 2021.

From the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report, one B LT HEHEEAERBEY  EREESDHT—
meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to discuss and X €% » Uil REEUNTEE !
consider the following matters:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the e WA EESRERE - RERMAERK
Board;
. assessed independence of the independent non- e AHE B FEMITE SRR

executive Directors;

. reviewed the Nomination Policy; . A RABUR
. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and . MANEFENE LR &
. considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors. . EZREFEZERIES

The attendance of each Nomination Committee member at TxREJ B LT AL EARER DI HE - 185

the Nomination Committee meeting during the period from the ZE&@&KEHFERLZEESSZNBN
Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report is set out in the
table below:

Attended/Eligible

to attend

Name of Directors EEHR BHEELE
Mr. Jiang Li Bk 1/1
Mr. Tian Ming HERE A& 11
Mr. Pan Longquan EREREE 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members, including one executive Director, namely, Ms.
Zhang Tong, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Tian Ming and Dr. Li Minghui. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian Ming.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
review and recommend to the Board the policies governing
remuneration and other benefits paid by us to our Directors
and senior management with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives as well as to regularly
monitor the reasonableness and appropriacy of levels of the
remuneration and compensation of the Directors and senior
management and to ensure the formality, transparency and
fairness of such remuneration policies. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on December 30,
2021, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held during
the year ended December 31, 2021.

From the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report, one
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held to discuss
and consider the following matters:

. recommended to the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management in respect of the year ended December

31, 2021;

o reviewed the remuneration of non-executive Directors;
and

° reviewed and recommended to the Board the

Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
all Directors and senior management.
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ERE

The attendance of each Remuneration Committee member at

TR A LW HBEEARERA IR - M

the Remuneration Committee meeting during the period from ZE&@&KEBLFHFNEEESZNBER
the Listing Date to the date of the Annual Report is set out in
the table below:

Attended/Eligible

to attend

Name of Directors EENS BEELE
Mr. Tian Ming HEREE 1/1
Ms. Zhang Tong N2 11
Dr. Li Minghui ZHAEIE L 1/1
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EERaNEEETH

The aggregate remuneration (including fees,
bonuses, allowances, benefits in kind and pension scheme
contributions) payable to the Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2021 was approximately US$2,924 million.

salaries,

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the

HZE2021F12A31HILFE  BNEZSHFHNE
H(pEEE - Hae - o4 - E=E - awmﬂ&%%
SFFEIMHEE )Z’J7%2924E%’%7c0

BEEGFHEBLENELRARINNTS B
BTARRREERENBE AL EBES %mo
LATE S EHE2021 12 A1 B IEEFEE - AR

Group. Details of the remuneration by band of the members %@ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁlﬁ(?&%E’\]J@ﬁﬁﬂﬁé\ﬁii&%
of the Board and senior management of the Company, whose 29ZE39H ) ZEHEI DK FHINES
biographies are set out on pages 29 to 39 of the Annual
Report, for the year ended December 31, 2021, are set out
below:
Number of
individuals
Band of remuneration (US$) FHER™ (X73t) AE
Nil to US$500,000 Z£%500,000% 7T 11
Over US$500,000 #838500,0002 7T 5
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company from the Listing Date
to the date of the Annual Report which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the
Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 170 to 177 of the Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to
safeguard the Company’s assets and its shareholders’
interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems on an
annual basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The Company has established comprehensive risk
management and internal control processes through which the
Company monitors, evaluates and manages the risks that the
Company is exposed to its business activities and operations,
which include but are not limited to procurement management,
sales management, inventory management, research and
development management, investment management, credit
risk, related party transaction controls, information disclosure
controls, human resources, IT management and other financial
and operational controls and monitoring procedures. Examples
of the relevant risk management and internal control measures
are as follows:

Financial Reporting Risk Management - The Company has
in place a set of accounting policies in connection with its
financial reporting risk management, such as financial report
management policies, budget management policies, financial
statements preparation policies and financial department and
staff management policies.

Information System Risk Management - The Company has
implemented relevant internal procedures and controls to
ensure that user data is protected and that leakage and loss
of such data is avoided.

Internal Control Risk Management — The legal & compliance
department of the Company reviews and updates the forms
of contracts the Company enters into with its customers and
suppliers and other relevant due diligence materials.

Human Resources Risk Management — The Company has in
place an employee handbook approved by its management
and distributed to all of its employees, which contains internal
rules and guidelines regarding best commercial practices,
work ethics, fraud prevention mechanism, negligence and
corruption.

Investment Risk Management — The investment strategy of
the Company is grounded in the principles of compliance,
prudence, safety and effectiveness and the Company
considers criteria including (i) size, expected returns and
associated risks; (ii) compliance with applicable laws and
regulations; (iii) consistency with our growth strategy; (iv)
appropriateness of enterprise resource allocation; and (v)
optimization of our portfolio when making investment decisions.
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The risk management procedure of the Company is based
on the well-defined risk identification standards, risk monitor
responsibilities and risk control measure of each major
classification. The management of the Company actively
monitors the regional economy, trend of power tools and
outdoor power equipment industry, reliance on continuing
connected transactions and changes in applicable laws
and regulations, and assesses income and expenditure
and absorptive capacity of business expansions. The
recommendations submitted by independent consultant have
been accepted by the Company and implemented in stages,
to further enhance the policies, procedures and practices of
its internal control and risk management. The risk management
procedure of the Company clearly specifies the management
duties, authorization and approval of each party in respect of
the major risk identification and management, and develops
clear written policy for significant risk management process
and circulate it to all managements and staffs. The Company’s
internal control procedures are designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives, including efficient and
stable operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The management will
review the risk assessment report on a quarterly basis and
reports to the Board on a semi-annual basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of internal control and
risk management system of the Group and is of the view that
such system is effective and adequate.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
has adopted various measures to ensure the effective
implementation of its internal control and risk management
system, including (i) establishing an Audit Committee to
review and supervise our financial reporting process and
internal control system; (ii) adopting various policies to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to risk management, connected transactions
and information disclosure; (iii) organizing training sessions
for our Directors and senior management in respect of the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and duties of
directors of companies listed in Hong Kong; (iv) conducting
regular internal training for our employees and management
on applicable laws and regulations to ensure awareness and
compliance which cover various aspects of employee behavior
during the ordinary business operations; and (v) appointing
Guotai Junan Capital Limited as our compliance adviser to
advise on ongoing compliance with the Listing Rules and other
applicable securities laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
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The Company has adopted other internal rules and policies
on December 8, 2021, which include procedures for handling
inside information in accordance with the SFO and the
Listing Rules to ensure the confidentiality of handling inside
information and the publication of respective disclosure to
the public as soon as practicable. The Company will make
corresponding information disclosure timely with regard to
information that is unlikely to maintain confidentiality, so as
to ensure effective protection of the rights and interests of
investors and stakeholders.

In conclusion, the Company believes that its internal control
and risk management system is sufficient and effective.

DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company has adopted other internal rules and policies on
December 8, 2021, which includes procedures for disclosure
policy and provides a general guide to the Company’s
directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees
in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control procedures
have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on December 8, 2021, which outlines the principles
and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to
the declaration, payment and distribution of dividends to the
Shareholders.

According to the Dividend Policy, subject to the Articles of
Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations, the Board after taking into account several factors,
has absolute discretion on whether to declare and distribute
dividends.

The Board will take into consideration, if it decides to pay
dividends, the Company’s operational results, cash flows,
financial condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions
on the payment of dividends by the Company, the capital
requirements, future business plans and prospects and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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We have adopted a general annual dividend policy of
declaring and paying dividends on an annual basis of no
less than 20% of our total net profit attributable to us for any
particular year. The declaration of dividends is subject to the
discretion of our Directors, and, if necessary, the approval
of our Shareholders. A decision to declare or to pay any
dividends and the amount of any dividends will depend on
various factors, including but not limited to our results of
operations, cash flows and financial conditions, operating
and capital expenditure requirements, distributable profits as
determined under applicable laws, our Articles of Association,
market conditions, our strategic plans and prospects for
business development, contractual limits and obligations,
payment of dividends to us by our operating subsidiaries,
taxation, and any other factors determined by our Board of
Directors from time to time to be relevant to the declaration of
dividend payments. Our future declarations of dividends may
or may not reflect our historical declarations of dividends. In
addition, our Directors may reassess our dividend policy in the
future.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided
by the Auditor to the Company for the year ended December
31, 2021 was approximately as follows:
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BHPEHRA—RFERBIER  REABEFNHE
FIREML H A B B R T DR 20% £ E T IR MR 6
EEE - BREERARMANEETHEEEL (10F
R ) BRBIRAE © BRSO ER S EIRE R E
MRS SEBIRNZHEEAER - BIFETRNHM
MELEE  ReRERMBARN - ELEREXRH
X®F - REBEERZREEOAHIEFNE - &M
MEMERAR - mHRR - RPOREEE KX
BEREAR  AaRRGIREE RAELHBELR
AHEMAORE RERRMESS T HET S
EIRBEEMABNIMEMEE - RAAROKEE
EATRE G R AT T E R B M BERSEIR ° It
S BERRRATEINFHRMANREEE -

% BB 35 BN

HZE2021F12A31BILFE © ZEAI R AR AR
HEEFT R IEE RIS FT BB RIT

Amount

&8

(US$’000)

Type of Services Bk 75 38 B (F%7m)

Audit services EiT RIS 1,332

Non-audit services related to tax consultation BRI SE M IR AT IR TS 182

Total #st 1,514
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

Directors have access to the services of the joint company
secretaries to ensure that the Board procedures are followed.
Mr. Hu Yian (“Mr. Hu"), one of the joint company secretaries,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that Board policy and procedures and
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engaged Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy (“Ms.
Chow”), a director of the Corporate Services Department of
Tricor Services Limited (a global corporate services provider),
as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. Hu in
discharging his duties as company secretary of the Company.
Ms. Chow’s primary corporate contact person at the Company
is Mr. Hu.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, Ms. Chow has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. As the Company listed on the Stock Exchange
on December 30, 2021, Mr. Hu had taken less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of the Annual Report and will be obliged to
comply with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules in 2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and understanding of the Company’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The AGM provides an opportunity for constructive
communication between the Company and the Shareholders.
The Chairperson and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company or their delegates will attend the AGMs to
answer Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend
the AGMs to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders to ensure that Shareholders’
views and concerns are appropriately addressed and
maintains a website of the Company at https://global.
chervongroup.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Such policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure that it has been implemented in a
proper and effective manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution on each substantially separate issue will be
proposed for voting at the general meeting, including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner after each general meeting.

According to Article 62 of the Articles of Association and
the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders may: (i) move a
requisition to move a resolution at the AGM; (ii) requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM"); and
(iii) propose a person for election as a Director at a general
meeting.

Requisition to Move a Resolution at an AGM

In accordance with section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, a
requisition to move a resolution at the AGM may be submitted
by any number of Shareholders representing not less than
2.50% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the
right to vote on that resolution at the AGM, or not less than 50
Shareholders having the right to vote on that resolution at the
AGM. The requisition must identify the resolution and must be
authenticated by the person(s) making it. The requisition must
be deposited at the Registered Office (as defined below), for
the attention of the joint company secretaries, not later than 6
weeks before the AGM to which the request relates, or if later,
when the Notice of AGM is dispatched.
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Requisition to Convene General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of all the members having a right to vote at general meetings
of the Company can deposit a requisition to call a general
meeting pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies
Ordinance. The requisition must state the general nature of
the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and must be
authenticated by the person(s) making it. The requisition must
be deposited at our Registered Office for the attention of the
joint company secretaries.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director at a
General Meeting

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as
a Director at a general meeting, he/she must give a written
notice to that effect to the Joint Company Secretaries. The
written notice must include the personal information of the
person proposed for election as a Director as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by such
Shareholder and the person proposed for election as a Director
indicating his/her willingness to be appointed or re-appointed
and consent of publication of his/her personal information.
Such notice shall be given within the period (or a longer period
as may be determined by the Directors from time to time)
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of such meeting and ending no later than seven days
prior to the date appointed for such meeting. Such details and
procedures are available in our website. For requesting the
Company to circulate to Shareholders a statement with respect
to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or any other
business to be dealt with at a general meeting, Shareholders
are requested to follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in section 580 of the Companies Ordinance.
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Procedure in relation to Raising Enquiry and Concerns
with the Board

Shareholders of the Company wishing to make any enquiry to
the Board may do so in writing to the Company since verbal
or anonymous ones would not generally be dealt with by the
Company.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the
registered office (the “Registered Office”) of the Company
at Unit 04, 22/F, Saxon Tower, 7 Cheung Shun Street, Lai
Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong by mail, telephone (+86 25
84994002) or e-mail chervon-ir@cn.chervongroup.com.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the below address and
provide their full names, contact details and identification in
order to give effect to such requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted amended and restated articles of
association on December 8, 2021, which has been effective
from December 16, 2021. From the Listing Date to the date of
the Annual Report, the said amended and restated articles of
association did not have any change.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(hereinafter referred to as “the Report”) issued by Chervon
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred
to as “Chervon Holdings”, “the Group” or *
the management practice and performance in the aspects of
environment, social and governance in 2021, and performance
in fulfilling environmental and social responsibilities.

we”), presenting

Reporting Scope

Unless specified, the content and the coverage of social key
performance indicators disclosed in the Report are the same
as those in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report. The environmental
key performance indicators only include the Group’s operating
premises in Nanjing, China, where the output value of the
production facilities accounts for approximately 90% of the
Group’s total output value in 2021.

Reporting Period

The Report is an annual report for the period from 1 January to
31 December 2021. To enhance the readability of the Report,
some contents or data relate to previous years or the date of
publication of the Report.

Main Reference Standards of the Report

The Report is prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEX?").

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the following
reporting principles:

Materiality: We identify major ESG issues through materiality
assessment, and the relevant processes and results have
been disclosed in the Report.

Quantitative: The Group in accordance with the requirements
of the “Key Performance Indicators”
Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as set out in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules and takes quantitative disclosure of key
performance indicators with historical data in the areas of
“environment” and “society”.

in the Environmental,
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Consistency: We follow a consistent statistical method of
disclosure and will adopt a consistent statistical method to
disclose ESG information in subsequent years to facilitate
meaningful comparisons from year to year.

Access to the Report

The Report is released online, and the Chinese and English
versions of the Report can be downloaded from the official
website of Chervon Holdings Limited (https://global.
chervongroup.com/zh) and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Report is published in both Chinese and
English. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese version
and the English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Contact Us

We attach great importance to the opinions of various
stakeholders and the public on the Report. If you have any
inquiries or suggestions on the Group's environmental, social
and governance performance, please contact us through email
(esg@cn.chervongroup.com).
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

2021 was a challenging and significant year for Chervon.
In the face of changes in global trends compounded by the
pandemic, we made an all-out effort to address various risks
and challenges, forge ahead with perseverance, seek both
stability and progress, and establish a new image for “Made in
China.”

Guided by our corporate mission of “Better Tools, Better
World,” we have always adhered to the business philosophy
of achieving coordinated economic, social and environmental
development and promoting future-oriented, environment-
friendly sustainable business practices, with the ultimate
goal of creating value and fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility.

Staying true to our original intention of “creating good
products” and striving to become an innovation-driven
global leader

Over the years, we have always put product quality first.
By relying on our strong research and development (R&D)
capabilities and production experience, we have built a
comprehensive internal control system to ensure that our
components and products meet high-quality standards. On
this basis, we are able to continually provide users with safe,
efficient and convenient power tools and outdoor garden
equipment. By continuously innovating and providing superior
products to users around the world, we aim to become a
global leader in power tools and outdoor garden equipment
in the lithium-ion, intelligent and digital era. At the same time,
we are relentlessly focusing on user-centric innovation, with a
view to creating a better user experience for consumers.

Upholding the concepts of value, quality and
sustainability

Amid global climate change and the gradual implementation
of the dual carbon goal in China,
and green product development are becoming increasingly
important, and the shift from “electric first” to “fully electric”
has become a consensus in the industry. In response to the
Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and
Social Development and the Made in China 2025 strategy,
we have formulated the Mid and Long-term Plan for Green
Development for the period from 2021 to 2025.

low-carbon operations
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With our dedicated R&D capabilities in the field of lithium-ion
battery technology, we have been able to develop products
that feature green attributes and long battery lives. Designed
with a modular architecture, our products use battery packs
as the core base module, which enables us to use highly
compatible batteries to power all of our products. Meanwhile,
by increasing the reuse rate of base modules, we are not only
able conserve resources in battery production, but also bring
more value to users.

We also actively promote the use of clean energy at our
operational sites. Chervon has undertaken various “blue roof,”
“green roof” and “geothermal resource” initiatives to promote
clean energy use, reduce greenhouse gas emissions in daily
production and operations, and enhance operational resilience
during power rationing. In the future, we plan to work with
our global partners to explore more green opportunities and
develop innovative green products.

Caring for employees and society, and responsible
corporate citizenship

Adhering to our “people-oriented” concept, we regard
employees as our corporate’s most precious asset. We are
committed to creating an equal, respectful and harmonious
working environment for all employees, and we are dedicated
to building a growth model that encourages collaborative
development and mutual growth. | would like to take this
chance to express my heartfelt gratitude to Chervon staff both
at home and abroad who have been striving for excellence
and innovation, creating high-quality products and providing
considerate services to our customers for many years.

As our business prospers, we always remember the suppliers,
distributors and customers who have accompanied us along
the way, and we maintain regular communication with them to
foster closer relationships. We have strengthened R&D and
brand building, and we strive to be a responsible corporate
citizen by actively participating in charity events so as to give
back to society. Going forward, we will continue to adhere
to the philosophy of “integrity, diligence, enthusiasm and
aspiration,” and work hand in hand with all of you as we use
technology to empower sustainable development.

Pan Longquan

Chairman
29 April 2022
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ESG STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of Chervon Holdings assumes full
responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting,
is responsible for assessing and determining the Group's
environmental, social and governance risks, and ensuring
that Chervon Holdings establishes appropriate and effective
environmental, social and governance risk management and
internal control systems.

To promote the implementation and management of ESG-
related affairs, Chervon Holdings has established a complete
and rigorous ESG governance structure. The Board of
Directors has the ultimate responsibility for the direction,
strategy, goals, performance and reporting of the Group's
sustainable development, and is responsible for oversight
ESG matters including the identification and prioritization of
key ESG issues, target commitment and actual performance
monitoring of ESG matters. It is the responsibility of the Board
of Directors to ensure the integration of ESG philosophy and
the Group’s strategy and establish an ESG Management
Committee with the participation of the vice president of EHS,
the vice president of Human Resources Department and the
director of the Legal and Compliance department. The ESG
Management Committee is responsible for reporting to the
Board of Directors to help it evaluate and sort out the Group’s
ESG risk management and internal control systems, supervise
the achievement of corporate strategic goals and enhance
corporate ESG performance.

Chervon Holdings is committed to becoming an excellent
corporate citizen, and always regards corporate environmental
responsibility and social responsibility as an important part
of the Group’s strategy. The Board of Directors attaches
great importance to the determination of important ESG
topics. Based on the corporate management strategy and
current situations, through exchanges and communication
with stakeholders, peer companies disclose indicators, and
benchmarking of industry-leading practices, the core ESG
topics are identified and screened out, to determine the
direction of ESG work and ESG reporting.
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REREME BEESGEEMEE - BHESGHEEHE
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The Report discloses the progress and effectiveness of the
Group’s ESG work in 2021. The Board of Directors and all
directors of the Group guarantee that the content of the Report
does not contain any false records, misleading statements, or
major omissions, and take individual and joint responsibility for
the authenticity, accuracy, and completeness of the Report.
Going forward, we will continue to adjust the sustainable
development management strategy and promotion method
according to the expectations of stakeholders and the actual
operation situation, to continuously improve the sustainable
development of the Group.

l. ABOUT US
Company Overview

Chervon Holdings Limited is affiliated to the CHERVON Group
and is a global solution provider specializing in product
research and development, manufacturing, testing, sales and
after-sales service of power tools, outdoor power equipment
and related industries.

Chervon Holdings is committed to user-centric innovation,
smart manufacturing and building a complete sales network to
provide global users with excellent brands and products. The
Group has established broad and close cooperation with many
of the world’s leading home centres, department chain stores,
distributors and power tool manufacturers, and its products
are sold in more than 100 countries around the world.

Through research and development, multi-channel distribution
network, advanced testing centre and vertically integrated
smart manufacturing capabilities, Chervon Holdings has
become the leading global supplier of power tools and outdoor
power equipment in the world.

Corporate Mission

Better Tools. Better World.

Chervon Holdings is determined to provide excellent products
to users through continuous innovation and become an
innovation-driven global leader in the era of lithium-ion,
intelligence and digitalization in the power tool and outdoor
power equipment industry.
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Main Products and Brands

Chervon Holdings focuses on the independent development
of innovative products. It has become a pioneer in promoting
industry transformation with entrepreneurial thinking, new
technologies and in-depth end-user insights. As one of the
first companies in the world to commercialize lithium-ion
batteries for power tools, we believe that lithium-ion battery
technology represents the development direction of the global
power tool and outdoor power equipment (“OPE”) industry
and has developed industry-leading high-voltage lithium-ion
OPE products. We currently own five differentiated and well-
recognized brands that cover key geographies and segments
for different types of end customers, namely EGO, FLEX, SKIL,
DEVON and X-TRON.

Brand Positioning

FRRE L

R g NERWE

FEEMKRmE

FREEBRETNETHABENER  UBIEEH -
FRMMAANKHARRE N - KAKESITERE
BMEERE - (EAER TR HERTEhEEL
EAREHTEMARZ —  BHMAKIEEERT
EHWEMRREEREH T EMOPEITTEMHRES
Mo WHETITERENRBERTOPEER ° £
&R IR AEGO ~ FLEX » SKIL » KB R/ A
MEECEEZRUNME  BEHRTIBHER
HETRBAREEFNMAD TS o

Main product categories Target end users

The leading brand in the global electric

[Fer-] "
[==—24 Go OPE market

2 EEHOPEMREERIE

A premium professional power tool
brand for industrial/professional markets
HETER / EERTENEREERE
PIARE

® Providing a full assortment of power
SKI‘ tools and OPE products for global
consumer markets

REHETSREREEZNEP TR
ROPEEMm

A high-end, professional power tool

DEVONO*E brand designed for greater China and

other emerging markets
BRREREMHTATSRANS
*REHTAM

A robust, durable and affordable brand
for China market in construction and
home improvement applications
HEPERERRERERERTISN®
X MEREERE

m I H

TEERER BRARAF

OPE Commercial/premium end
users

OPE GEVASL Sl

Power tools Professional end users

EHTE EERRmAP

Power tools and OPE Professional builders and

consumer end users

FHTHANOPE BEREHEERERA
=

Power tools Professional/industrial end
users

EHTE BEN/ IERKRRE

Power tools Contractors in the
construction and home-
improvement industries

EHTA BENZKKTEADRE
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Annual Awards FERE

Year Honours

BRFG e

2021 2020 China Appearance Design Excellence Award (EGO Blowers)

20214 2020 F A E SN R ETE 2 (EGOWR A H#)

2021 2020 China Patent Excellence Award (EGO String Trimmers)

20214 2020 EERNEFHE (EGOTEH)

2021 2021 Contemporary Good Design Gold Award (EGO Z6 Zero Turn Riding Mower)

20214 2021 F E R IF T4 5 (EGO Z6 TH MR RN EEH)

2021 EGO 76 Riding Mowers and High Grass Mowerswon Gold Award in Demo Park Exhibition 2021 in
Germany

20214 EGO Z6FFABNEM RS EF EHIEF2021/ZB Demo park R g & 88

2021 Lowe’s and Lowe’s Canada “2021 Vendor Partner of the Year”

20214 Lowe's Lowe'sINE X [2021 FEHERE ERH K]

2021 Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Chervon Industry') was awarded
the title of “International Famous Brand for Key Cultivation and Development in Jiangsu Province”

20214 FRRERHR AR LR (AT - RIERHR) B DIHE SIFE MEROERME ML ] 155

2021 Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. was awarded the title of “Nanjing Healthy Enterprise”

20214 RIETI R [RRTREDE I HR

2021 Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Branch won the title of “2020 Outstanding
Enterprise in Park Safety Management”

20214 RIEREMMA R EE2020F ERE L 2 BIBEF ¥ B

2021 Outstanding Award of Zijin Industrial Design Competition

20214 S TERARERRE

2021 Innovative Entrepreneur in Nanjing

20214 AR EIFTIE R R

In addition, Chervon Industry was awarded the title of “National ~ LEFN + RIERHER 2019 F 15 [ BIZK AR 2 Tk | 5%
Green Factory” and “National Industrial Design Centre” in  F[EBIZRKIZ&ZTH 0 I8 -
2019.

1 Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd (F R RIERHEHR A R]) was formally known as “Nanjing Chervon Industry
Co., Lid. (BREWHEZEERAR])". It changed to current name in January 2022.
FREEREBERARRE [ MREHEXBRAA] - KR2022F1 AIRE °
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RN

Chervon Industry was awarded The Industrial Design Centre of
the title of “National Green Chervon Industry won the title
Factory” of “National Industrial Design

RIER R TEREZE TR E5% Centre”

e

Lh L

MEIMRRTHIER

geanc Ry

2020 China Design
Excellence Award (EGO
Blowers)

2020 F R EANE R ETE TS
2 (EGOWREH# )

SERHR T £ OB ART
SERRE L B

EGO 76 Riding Mowers Lowe’s and Lowe's
and High Grass Mowers Canada “2021 Vendor
won Gold Award in Partner of the Year”
Demo Park Exhibition Lowe's zLowe's I E K
2021 in Germany [2021 FEHER &S ER
EGO Z65 R A EIEH K& PR

EEHERES202112E
Demo parkE & & 8
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Since its establishment,

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Chervon Holdings has been

following consistently the business philosophy of common
development of economy, society, and environment, promoting
sustainable business practices, and fulfilling corporate social
responsibilities, to better hold the opportunities brought by the
development of the industry.

2.1

2.1.1

100

ESG Governance
ESG Strategy and Governance Structure
ESG Policy and Strategy

To promote the fulfilment of social responsibility and
achieve the coordinated development of the corporate
and the society, we have formulated the ESG Policy
and Strategy of Chervon Holdings in accordance with
relevant China’s laws and regulations, and we set
up relevant policies under the scope of environment,
society and corporate governance to advance
sustainable development:

ESG field Related policy Content
ESGH#EH HEBE nE

Environment Environmental protection and

resource conservation

RIEIERE BRI AR -
HEZERMLE

IRFEERER

—EHEREE 8 RIRR
R HERRAENEBERY

Ehﬁ%ﬁaﬁE'MEﬂMEﬁﬁ¥%E%K%

B o
2.1 ESGEH%
2.1.1 ESGEREEHE FLEME
. ESG /7 &1 £ Bk BE
AREMSETNET  BEROLEETESH

HHER  HPERERRBEERERG
ET(RIEZERESGTT#HERERE) - TEIRIE -
HE EERER=ZMBEEIE T RIRIABER
R HEARERR

> Abide by the China’s national rules and regulations on environmental
protection and resource conservation

> Establish environmental protection and resource conservation systems
that conforms to actual operations
> Develop circular economy, and develop and use energy-saving

products
Reduce pollutant discharge and improve comprehensive utilization

\

efficiency of resources

Y VYV V VY

Climate change policy

RE

BRER

BRETEXERRRREEERE
BUNAERELNRERERERHNHE
FMREERSEER
REDEMGN  RRERGAMABHE

Pay attention to global climate change and strengthen ecological

HIREHE

EHRRBLBR
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A

protection

Supported by technology, monitoring, and mitigation of greenhouse
gas emissions

Incorporate climate change into corporate management and improve
the ability to adapt to climate change

BT 2R REE L st RRERR

REXE  BRUAEREREHN

KESREECMACEER REERIGE(EN
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ESG field Related policy Content

ESGEH HEBE AES

Social Community investment and > Participate in social welfare and build innovative communities
public welfare > Caring for the diverse population in the community, promoting urban

renewal and revival

-4 HRRERAR > BEZEHENGE  BRAREMEZRNILE
> BEMBRSTAR RENTEN ER
Occupational health and safety > Improve occupational health and safety management system
management policy > Provide employees with a safe and healthy working environment
> Ensure the safety of stakeholders
BERENZ2EREE > TEBERENZZEREZR
> REIRHZZ  RENIERSE
> BRNZEEINTE
Governance Supplier code of conduct > Control supplier access process, improve supply chain management
system, and build sustainable supply chain
> Improve social responsibility requirements for suppliers and create a

green supply environment

BR HIERTT AL > BREEREARE  TEREETREZR BRUBEMER
> REAHERNHEEEERL  TEREHERE
Integrity whistle-blower policy > Improve employees’ awareness of ethical behaviour and promote the
construction of a clean and self-disciplined work style
> Resist fraud, bribery, and other improper and corrupt behaviours
FREUE REUR > RBELERTAREES EIRZEHIHEERER
> BREHFEER 786 XBERETEERBRITA
Product quality and safe > Abide by China’s national and industry-related product quality

production requirements

Operate in compliance with regulations, accept supervision, and
improve product quality and service

> Abide by the relevant China's national regulations on production safety
Establish safety production management system and emergency plan
in line with operation

BREFERNTEERERESE

BREE  BREER YERSEREENREKT
BRETARABL T EERERTE
BURAEREENREEERRAMESER

v A

vV V.V VY
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We know that a good sustainable development
management mechanism is helpful to enhance
corporate value. We implement the ESG Policy
and Strategy of Chervon Holdings in operation and
management, and regularly improve and publicize
sustainable development systems, and actively fulfil
social responsibility, effectively achieve economic and
social benefits, short-term and long-term interests, self-
development, and social development in coordination,
as well as achieve healthy and harmonious
development between enterprises and employees,
enterprises and society, and enterprises and the
environment.

ESG Governance Structure

In terms of ESG governance, we have established
an ESG governance system jointly led by those with
governance and management, including:

(1) Governance level: We have established an
ESG Management Committee under the Board
of Directors, which is composed of the vice
president of EHS, the vice president of Human
Resources Department and the director of the
Legal and Compliance Department. The ESG
Management Committee is responsible for
strategy and decision-making on ESG matters,
as well as assessing environmental, social and
governance risks, and providing support to the
Board of Directors to ensure that the Group has
appropriate and effective environmental, social
and governance risk management and oversight
of internal control systems.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management level: We have established an
ESG Executive Team composed of the heads
of major operating functional departments
at the headquarters, including the Legal
and Compliance Department, EHS, Human
Resources Department, Administration
Department, Purchasing Department, Quality
Control and Patent Department, Infrastructure
and Energy Management and other departments.
Under the leadership of the ESG Management
Committee, the ESG Executive Team is
responsible for the publicity and guidance,
implementation monitoring and information
reporting of specific ESG matters in various
departments.

Board of Directors
Exg

ESG Management Committee

ESGEEZEE

EEE: RPCELBE

BEEXE

LEBEAM (BRRMOEEER

B~ EHS « ASERES -

e

on'E B EFED - AR RE

TTEED ~ B
CLIRE

ZEF) B E AEKBESGHIT N
- HESGEEZBEEMRET &
EﬂﬁfESG%ﬂEkﬁBFEjﬁ’] g3l

CBITEERERRX

the vice president of EHS, the vice president of Human Resources
Department and the director of the Legal and Compliance Department

EHSEIAH - ALERBAS  ZEERDAE

ESG Executive Team

ESG# 1T/ 4

Legal and Human o : : Quality Control Infrastructure
: Administration Purchasing
Compliance Resources Department and Patent and Energy
Department Department P Department Management
EEE R AN EIRED mE /& AR REE
Environmental Employee Green buildings,
. . Customer .
Anti-corruption management, management, : . Climate change,
) . . . . . relationship
and anti-unfair Occupational Occupational Community Supply chain and product Energy and
competition health and training and investment management res opnsibilit resource usage
RESHE safety development HERER AR HpEEE R E%Eﬁh”*ﬁﬁy mERE -
RAEHF REER - B OBx EDEE RIREL - IR
BEEELRe T R o RERER
RIETFRER AT —BZ—FFR 103
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2.1.2 Faif 7 &8 E 2 453 EET
. Stakeholder Engagement . BT A3

We consider and respond to the expectations and BMFEHZEERELBRCENZEREWEBRAE
demands of stakeholders, and work with stakeholders Mk - BREARET LRRELSERE -
HEHEKR -

2.1.2 Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

to promote social development and share development

results.

Stakeholders
GlEsyil oyl

Stakeholder Expectations

Nt REAR 2

Engagement Mechanisms

ARRESAKE

Responds
KAREE

Investors »  Market capitalization and profitability General meeting; information Publish reports regularly, disclose
increasement disclosure; official website information truthfully and fully, and improve
»  Environmental and social responsibility performance and create profits
performance improvement Improve corporate governance and risk
management, hold general meetings,
manage investor relations, improve
environmental and social responsibility
management
fEE o TEERFKTHER hEVN-R THEHRE 0E ZHHETESEE
o BRAHEERRRTERA [EERE: ENIIEE - EIERE
R RAGRERRERERAT - BRREA
@ RRAZBEER BARABREN
HERAER
Clients ¢ High product quality Contracts and agreements; Provide high quality products and services
o Legal rights protection customer satisfaction survey Establish a complete customer service
system and customer feedback and
complaint mechanism
EF ¢ [EMERZE FiARREE RESESNERNRE
¢ REAEER EFREERE BURENEPRBEZREPELRER
ER T
Employees o Employee salary and welfare Labour contract; employee Strictly abide by the terms of the labour
Quarantee satisfaction survey contract and improve the salary and welfare
¢ Caring for employee safety and health system
»  Equitable promotion and development Provide a safe and healthy work
opportunities environment
¢+ Complete communication mechanism, Provide employee development channels
participation of enterprise and organize employee training
management Provide equal communication channels
8T o REBTHHER CUEE BRETHDAREN - TEHHNENGE
o BEEIRERARR BEIREERE B%

o REATERNERHE
o RERREH 2E0XER
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Stakeholders
kgl oyl

Stakeholder Expectations

Engagement Mechanisms

BERS M

Responds

Nt RER 2 FLAEE

Government Bodies ¢ Laws and regulations compliance, Government related meetings Strictly abide by relevant laws and
operation compliance, and national participation regulations, continue to improve corporate
policies implement compliance management, and respond to

relevant China's national policies

B o BRTE AR EREZDR 2EPFERE S BIEETHEERLE  BENEL AR

TR LEEZIEHNR

Suppliers o Integrity, faimess and just Contracts and agreements; Adhere to the business principles of
cooperation, mutual benefit and win- regular bidding and supplier openness and transparency, actively fulfil
win, and promotion of the development  meetings contracts and agreements, implement an
of the industry open and transparent procurement model,

and create a responsible supply chain
ftEm o HifE AT DEAME-ERER RE  ETARREE: FACRERNEERE BERTARE
ﬁ%%ﬁ THRHARERAEHEE B BRAREANRESRS  TERE
s
Peers o Fair competition, honest cooperation, Communication with industry- Strengthen communication and cooperation
transparent and open information related research institutes, with peers, and jointly create a healthy and
o Compliance with industry norms and associations, media, efc. orderly competitive environment
promotion of industrial innovation Participate in industrial innovation research,
achieve mutual benefit and win-win, make
common progress, participate in industry
evaluation, and provide suggestions for
industry norms
m% o DYEFE AURAE EREPLR BTEERHRR  he IR MEEREHTREAE RASERE
o BYORRS REEXAN BRETRER EFNETRE
ﬂﬁﬁﬁa% BAR ARES

i E
BIRFE - Af %ﬁﬁk#@m
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. Materiality Assessment

We attach great importance to the identification and
management of ESG issues and collect the opinions
and feedback of stakeholders through interviews,
surveys and other activities to identify important ESG
issues and disclose them in the Report so as to improve
the corporate sustainable development management.
In 2021, through a questionnaire survey, we invite
internal stakeholders to score ESG topics in the issue
database, and thus obtain the materiality issue matrix

EERZAENG

BMERESGHBEMNZAFER - BB
# o AMEEBRENZEE T BB K
REE - ARBIESGEE#E  WERETH
HE I ETIRE - WEARIEF M
BEBREENKFE - 20214F » BAERBMES
AW - MBABFEEE S EEEE
REESGHEEHETIT D WAMBE TAR
EMEEMESBREME - BEERENTE T
ERAIFEE EZ - - HE=ESL -

of the Report. The matrix presents the substance of the
issue at three levels: high importance, importance, and
relevance.

Materiality Assessment for Chervon Holdings’s 2021 ESG Report

RIE2021 FEESGHREBEAMBETERE

01 Identification and Confirmation of ESG Matters
ESG % 8 8 Bl 7 e 52
° Comprehensively sorted out the key points of the Group’s sustainable development work and the

feedback of stakeholders, benchmarked industry hotspots and leading practices, delineated the
scope of ESG issues.

. PEHMERAEEAFEERTFEHESMEEBINRE  HETERAREELEE  Bra8®E

° Identified the industry’s focus in the field of sustainable development by referring to relevant
assessment elements such as ESG ratings in the capital market, combined with the relevant
disclosure guidelines of sustainability such as the Materiality Map formulated by the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (SASB).

. DEBARTISESGRIATHEE - oI ELRESHERBIES WA FE S5 %ERZ 52 (SASB)
TOCEEMHBE)SE  BRTTEEAFELRAENEIES -

02 Stakeholder Communication and Research

F 256 B 5 B B B R

° Conducted stakeholder interviews to collect feedback and suggestions from various stakeholders
on our sustainable development practices, as well as their views on future sustainable development
strategies.

. FMEMNSMEBTTH# - WESHEBFERMAIRERREBNREMNES - ARERRAFEEREREY
BE:

° Designed an online questionnaire on the evaluation of ESG issues and invited internal stakeholders

to score the corresponding ESG issues. Following sorting and analysis, we obtained the final survey
results, and we calculated an overall score for how satisfied internal stakeholders are with respect
to the Group’s sustainable development. The score was 4.41 (out of 5.00).

. REESCGEEMEBNMERBAES - BEANMBNZIAMT HHEESCEENELILETIT D - LRB
B HTGHEREARGREABMNEEETHEETHEZRABENERTY 594419 (RD

5.00%) °
03 Materiality Assessment
BEMEENMG
° Based on the results of the stakeholder questionnaires and considering the development of

enterprises, we conducted materiality issue assessments, ranked the materiality of each ESG issue
according to the scores, and generated a matrix chart.

. EENAETAMEENER S 0CERREN  ARELGUHZEETN - BSEESGEENEE TR
FRATDBEF - AR -
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we paid more attention to the following

issues: governance, human resource management,
employee rights, occupational health and safety,
product quality and maintenance services, customer
relationship management, business ethics and anti-
unfair competition.

B HRRER

2021¢ CRMEER -

SERRTEZMT -

Materiality Assessment Matrix of Chervon Holdings’s 2021 ESG Report

CBRBRREZE Em
% @)5551? 2 mxE

R

ANBEREE BT

e mEER
EHERTERF

RIE2021 FESGHREEEMRBEEMEE
High Importance FEEE
Governance ER
Human Resources Management ANBRERE
Employee Rights BT
Occupational Health and Safety giﬁéz(%%{%mﬁ%
. Product Quality and Maintenance Services oo 'S == S o
High Ir'llportance Customer Relationship Management EERBEER
FEEE Business Ethics and Anti-unfair Competition Fﬁ% EEERTIEEHRF
Importance
Risk and Crisis Management ﬂﬂﬁ&i‘%
o Policy Impacts B
g Indirect Energy FE B BB IR
S Raw Material Procurement RS
< W Environmental Impacts of Product Life Cycle EmAEMBHMRETE
iw Development and Trainin R NI
< pmen g 5 55
% i Supply Chain Management e g E IR
s¥ Import Corporate Citizenship and Charity JJ:%AEEA‘E%ZE
o® portance Information and Internet Security FRRfRLTE
S = Eco-efficiency Operation B ERRR
E' Relevance L]
= Greenhouse Gas Emissions 8= RN
Waste Emissions PR E R
Direct Energy HERER
Water Resources KER
Impact of the Environment and HIRBMERERNTE
Natural Resources
Climate Strategy SRR LS
Diversity and Equal Opportunity St EKE TS
Impact on operational management
HABHEEYE
RIEERER AT — T —FFIR

107



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIE e kEams

2.2 Compliance

2.2.1 Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group strictly protects corporate information security and
customer information and privacy.

Policy Guidelines

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
information security, and strictly abides by the national and
local laws and regulations on information security, such as
the Cybersecurity Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the
Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
EU General Data Protection Regulation. A series of systems
have been introduced, such as User Information Security
Management System, User Privacy Policy, Code of Ethics
and Rules and Regulations Manual, etc., which are improved
and updated according to the requirements of laws and
regulations, and publicized and implemented by employees.

Information Security

We have clarified the attribution of responsibilities in the
“Confidentiality and Information Disclosure Management
System” chapter of the Code of Ethics Conduct and
Regulations Manual.

° Legal and Compliance Department: is responsible
for the formulation of confidentiality and information
disclosure systems, as well as guidance and training
for the confidentiality and information disclosure work of
various departments.

° Human Resources Department: is responsible for the
publicity and implementation of the confidentiality
awareness of the employees, as well as managing the
signing and filing of the confidentiality agreement for
the employees.
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All employees of the Group are required to sign the
Confidentiality Agreement, and user information management
personnel are required to conduct regular Internet information
security training and assessment and we have established
an Internet information security team consisting of the
person in charge of the Group, the person in charge of other
departments, and the main technical personnel of information
management. This team is responsible for handling information
security emergencies in time. We have also regulated the
measures for dealing with leaks and improper information
disclosure in the Employee Discipline Management Measures
and Employee Discipline Regulations, and publicized and
implemented them to all employees.

Based on the established system and standardized
management system, we fully protect the information assets
of the Group, including hardware, software, data, information
security and customer intellectual property rights, and guard
against leakage, destruction, tampering, or loss of information
assets caused by external threats or improper internal
management,
Group’s reputation, and prevent and minimise the impact of
security incidents.

to ensure business operation, protect the

In 2021, the Group did not have any incidents of violations of
laws and regulations related to information security.

Privacy Protection

We focus on protecting the privacy of employees, customers,
consumers, suppliers, and business partners. There are
regulations and measures for protection of stakeholder
information and privacy in our Code of Ethical Conduct and
Regulations Manual. We use a trusted protection mechanism
to prevent the disclosure of the privacy of stakeholders,
through the User Privacy Policy and User Information Security
Management System, we inform customers of the feedback
channels for the rights and interests of both parties and user
privacy issues, and ensure that users fully understand the
privacy protection standards we follow, and have established
a full-time privacy compliance officer to help customers deal
with privacy protection-related issues in time.

Privacy Compliance Officer:
5656)

1-855-EGO-5656 (1-855-346-

In 2021, the Group did not have any incidents of violations of
laws and regulations related to privacy protection.
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2.2.2 Code of Business Ethics and Conduct

Chervon Holdings strictly abides by the Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic
of China Against Unfair Competition, Interim Provisions on
Prohibition of Commercial Bribery and other relevant laws and
regulations, and firmly opposes and explicitly prohibits corrupt
behaviour. We create a culture of uprightness, integrity, and
integrity within the Group.

At the same time, the Group has also taken various measures
to comprehensively improve the construction of anti-corruption
and compliance with business ethics mechanisms:

Compliance Policy and Process Construction

We have established the Code of Conduct and Rules and
Regulations Manual, which covers business ethics such as fair
trade, anti-bribery, gifts and hospitality. The manual specifies
the basic principles and requirements that employees should
follow in internal management and external business dealings
to ensure that all employees conduct business with integrity
and fairness within the scope of legal requirements.

Management Philosophy

Chervon Holdings adheres to the management philosophy
of resolute anti-corruption and has zero tolerance for corrupt
practices. While the Group places trust in all employees,
any employee who commits any fraudulent act will be
severely punished in accordance with the Group’s policy.
Fraudulent acts include but are not limited to embezzlement,
misappropriation, illegal possession of company property
or misrepresentation or fraudulent acquisition of company
property. Any employee who has knowledge of any fraud must
promptly report it.

Compliance Training

Training on professionalism and code of conduct is provided
to every employee after he/she joins the Group to clarify the
consequences of conflict of interest, corruption and bribery,
and ensure that all employees are familiar with and understand
the policies and procedures established by the Group to
prevent corruption and bribery, and the price of corrupt
practices.
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Third Party Compliance Pledge

In the course of cooperation with third parties, such as
customers and business partners, Chervon Holdings requires
third parties to sign the Partner Integrity Pledge, pursuant to
which business partners undertake to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of Chervon Holdings and its subsidiaries
and affiliates in business transactions, fully embody the spirit
impartiality, integrity, honest cooperation, fight
against commercial fraud, and build a cooperation relationship
based on trust, honesty, straightforwardness and integrity.

of fairness,

We have established a complaint reporting system and
implementation measures:

> Complaint channel. In the event of any potential conflict
of interest, employees can immediately report to their
superiors or the Legal and Compliance Department
(E-mail of the department: compliance@chervon.com.
cn).

> Non-retaliation commitment. We have clarified the

protection mechanism for whistle-blowers in the Code

of Ethics Conduct and Regulations Manual, and strictly

prohibit discriminatory or retaliation against whistle-

blowers.

> Serious Treatment. The Group conduct confidential and
comprehensive investigations into all allegations, and
the investigations will be carried out or managed by the
Legal and Compliance Department, Audit Department,
and Human Resources Department, striving to ensure
that any incidents of violations of norms are properly
dealt with.

In 2021, we regularly conduct training activities on ethics for
new managers, with an average training time of 1 hour per
person. We also conduct anti-corruption training and publicity
work for board members, and the main training content is anti-
corruption policies and regulations in the direction of gifts and
entertainment, related person transactions, etc. As of the end
of 2021, the Group has received a total of 15 reported cases,
of which 11 have been verified, 8 have been completed, and
the rest are under investigation.
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Going forward,

the Group will continue to improve the

implementation of anti-corruption work in two directions: on the
one hand, we will start from strengthening education, adding
lectures and case trainings on anti-corruption, so that every

employee can aware of the importance of anti-corruption,

starting from small things, guarding against lax thinking and

behaviour,
and moral standards; on the other hand,

and improving their own thinking consciousness
the Group will

continue to improve the internal reporting mechanism,
make the process more transparent and specific, fulfil the
responsibility, clarify the reward and punishment system, and

ensure the implementation of the anti-corruption work.

1l.
3.1

3.1.1

>

112

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Quality Assurance

Product Quality Assurance

Product quality compliance

Chervon Holdings always put product quality first.
Relying on its strong research and development
capabilities and production experience, the Group has
built a complete internal control standard system to
ensure that there are high-quality standards from key
components to various types and models of products,
providing users with a safe, efficient, and convenient
experience. The products sold by the Group are strictly
in accordance with the requirements of local laws and
regulations on safety regulations, electromagnetic
compatibility, environmental protection, etc., and are
implemented in the whole process of developing,
testing, and manufacturing of products.

> Product quality compliance inspection. We
complete third-party type tests at qualified
institutions according to relevant quality
standards and obtain corresponding compliance
certificates or reports.

> Product quality compliance description. We
reflect executive standard of the product
in product packaging and instructions in
accordance with regulatory requirements, so
as to accept market quality supervision and
sampling.
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Country/Region

B R &t E
United States and
Europe

China

T E

Europe

B

European Union

)
ks

United States

e

China

T E

R g NERWE

Examples of Regulations and Standards that Chervon Holdings

Complies With

BEE R IR RB

Hand-held Motor-operated Electric Tools — Safety — General
Requirements (IEC/UL/EN60745-1)

Particular Requirements for Benchtop Machinery — Safety (IEC/UL/
EN62841-3-*)

Particular Requirements for Lawn and Garden Machinery — Safety
(IEC/UL/EN62841-4-*)

(FHATABMALZRER(EC/UL/ENB0745-1))

(BRETANBEEMBHRLZRENR (IEC/UL/EN62841-3-%))

(EETASBEERBSR LR EZ R (IEC/UL/EN62841-4-7))

Hand-held Motor-operated Electric Tools — Safety — General
Requirements (GB3883.1)

Safety of Hand-held Motor-operated Electric Tools — Safety —
Particular Requirements (GB/T3883.2*%)

(FHATANBALRER(GB3883.1))

(FHATANBSEERBTURLHREZHK(GB/T3883.2"))

EN55014 — Safety Requirements for Household Appliances, Electric
Tools and Similar Apparatus

EN61000 — EMC Testing Standards for Electrical and Electronic
Products

EN55014 K MBS RN 2 2 REBITE

EN61000E F E 25 & an EMCH BIR 45

Directive on Waste electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)
(2012/19/EU)

Directive on Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) in
Electrical and Electronic Equipment

Registration, Evaluation and Authorisation of Chemical Substances
(REACH) - Regulation (1907/2006(EC))

GS Certification Requirements

EU Regulation on Persistent Organic Pollutants (POPs)

(GREEE TEREME(WEEE)E< (2012/19/EU))

(EFERREHPRGICARELEEWHERHS)ES)

{REACH%3#11907/2006(EC)»

(GSREER)

CERBBFF A MBI RM(POPs)ERR)

Formaldehyde Standards for Composite Wood Products Act (S.1660)

U.S. Toxic Substances Control Act

(EERERFPEIFEEELR)S. 1660

(CGERBESWERESE)

Requirements of Concentration Limits for Certain Restricted
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Products (GB/T/26572)

Directive No. 32: Administrative Measures for the Restriction of
the Use of Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Products

(EFEREMTRABYENREER(GB/T/26572))

(E3R2%% ERBEFERASTWERGEREEINE)
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Overall life cycle quality management

Chervon Holdings has established a complete
quality management system according to
ISO9001 and implements quality management
on the whole process of designing, developing,
manufacturing, shipping, and after-sales service
of products, and combines departmental
responsibility implementation, employee training
and education and other measures to ensure
product quality and safety.

Product design and development
process. During the researching and
developing process of new products, we
fully evaluate and test product safety to
ensure compliance with relevant quality
and safety standards.

Product manufacturing testing process.
Relying on the Group’s manufacturing and
research and development capabilities
with significant experience, we have
established a professional testing
centre, which can undertake a series of
inspections for safety assessment, safety
certification and quality testing during the
process of researching, development,
and manufacturing of products.

Product safety emergency process. In
order to prevent and deal with possible
quality and safety problems during the
manufacturing and after-sales process of
products, we have established a number
of emergency plans and measures, and
regularly conduct drills and training for
employees to reduce product safety and
quality risks.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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As of the end of 2021, the Group’s production
facility in Nanjing, China has passed the
ISO 9001:2015 quality management system
certification.
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Chervon Industry obtained ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System Certification

RIERFEZISO 9001:2015 L S E R E R REEE
Product Quality Control . BEEMEE

We have formulated strict, comprehensive and
targeted product quality acceptance standards,
and clarified the product quality inspection
process in the Product Monitoring and
Measurement Control Procedures.

According to the Product Monitoring and
Measurement Control Procedures, we have
conducted a large number of safety, reliability
and product function and performance
tests in the research and development and
manufacturing process. The tests simulate
various usage scenarios of users to ensure that
the products can meet the design indicators
in terms of structural strength, fatigue life,
environmental weather resistance, safety in
use and design performance, and have a high
design safety margin.
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Product Quality Inspection

> Test centre: Conduct quality tests on

products in the R&D and trial production
stage and mass production stage to
assess product quality.

> Inspection of materials: Confirm and

inspect the quality of purchased raw
materials and key components.

> Three inspections in the production

process: Inspect the first piece and the
production process, and conduct terminal
inspection.

> Finished product quality check: Inspect

product quality before delivery to ensure
that the products meet customer quality
requirements.

Product Warranty and Recall

We pay attention to the safety and health issues of the
sold products and follow the requirements of different
local rules for product sales such as recall management
and after-sales management. In 2021, the Group has
not to recall any products due to health and safety
reasons.

3.1.2 Innovative Product Development

Innovative Idea

We always focus on user-centred innovative ideas and are

committed to creating a better user experience for consumers.
Our research and development capabilities in the field of
lithium-ion battery system technology make our products
both environmentally friendly and have strong power reserve

performance.
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Our advanced research and development capabilities enable
us to achieve advancement in fundamental technologies such
as battery platforms, battery management systems (BMS),
motors and electric controls. We also equip our brands
and products with intelligent systems and product-specific
technologies such as dust and vibration reduction to enhance
user experience.
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Continue to Innovate

> Research and Development Capabilities. We have
research and development centres in five countries
around the world (China, the United States, Germany,
the United Kingdom, and the Netherlands), and
the research and development team consisted of
680 employees. Through team communication and
cooperation, we can obtain and learn the industry’s
first-class technology in time in multiple fields,
categories, and channels.

> Smart Manufacturing. We have focused on
building competitive advantages by advancing
our manufacturing technologies and production
management capabilities over the past 20 years.

° With respect to product assembly, we have
focused on promoting the application of
industrial engineering and quality control
technologies in our assembly lines.

o With respect to production management,
we have significantly improved the level of
automation and transparency in our logistics
system by horizontally integrating our information
technology systems.

Intellectual Property Management

We attach great importance to the protection of property
rights. On the one hand, we actively protect the intellectual
property rights formed by the Group, and on the other hand,
we respect the intellectual property rights of others to avoid
infringement. Chervon Holdings has established intellectual
property management norms such as /ntellectual Property
Management System to publicize and standardize intellectual
property protection, enhance employee awareness, effectively
protect intellectual property rights, improve the Group’s overall
strength and competitiveness on intellectual property rights,
and promote the sustainable, stable, and healthy development
of the Group.
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o We put enterprise intellectual property management e
throughout the entire process of enterprise research
and development, manufacturing, sales, import and
export, etc.

o We plan new research projects based on business e
development and product strategic needs, explore
different types of innovations according to project
progress, and submit patent applications in time.

° We encourage employees to invent and create. In order e
to promote technological innovation and the promotion
and application of scientific and technological
achievements, we give rewards to applicants and
research and development teams according to the
value of patents to help employees and the Group
make progress together.
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By the end of 2021, we have obtained a total of 1,773 patents, #HZE20214F kK * L fIC Rt FF1,77318 - &
of which 231 new patents are granted in 2021; a total of 583  FF » 2021 G ¥ ILEH EF| 23178 : Bt MEiE
registered trademarks, of which 42 are newly registered in  5831# = Hrh » 2021 FEF LM EFZ421E - BN -
2021. In addition, 126 new trademark applications are filed in 2021 F ¥ IEEIZERE 1261 -

2021.
Granted Patents of Domestic Subsidiaries in 2021
2021 FEIAME D RBHERER
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Cumulative granted patents by 2021
BE2021F R M HFHE B
New granted patents in 2021
O 2021 FF M EH EFIBE /B
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Granted Patents of Foreign Subsidiaries in 2021
2021 FE M B A REHRERER

392

ORT

Cumulative granted patents by 2021
O ME2021F R EHEFBE H

New granted patents in 2021

123 138
67
Q . :
Invention Patent Utility Model Patent Appearance Design Patent
el BERANUER HNERRET R

O 2021 FEFIEEHERHE IH

Chervon Holdings’s Granted Patents in 2021
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Case: Application of Patented Technology in Products
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Patent

BRI

Battery charging methods,
battery chargers and charging
combinations

EXRENE  EAREEULRZE
Ha

Riding lawn mowers

BRABER

Technical Features

BT

Dynamically adjust charging current according
to battery temperature and battery level to
improve battery life during fast charging
Increase charging speed and reduce charging
waiting time
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B MERRRERSNES
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For the first time, high density lithium-ion battery
packs for electrical tools are used to power
riding lawn mowers

Promote the recycling of battery packs
purchased by users for electrical tools
Energy-saving
BAERFA S EREIRAEDH I ANGKE
EHEEENAHE
EPRAPERENAREDIANE RERNA
BREERER //

¢

i

3

H
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Case: Intellectual Property Incentives
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Certificate Of Honor
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Chervon Holdings issues invention patent awards to employees

RETIREZAFTH /
3.2  Multi-party Communication 3.2 ZHEBE
3.2.1 Customer Satisfaction Management 321 BEFHEREER

In order to listen more to the positive and negative voices
from customers about products on the market side, and to
better monitor the public opinion and data of products on the
market side, the Group has formulated a series of customer
service management systems such as the Procedures for
Handling Customer Complaint and Quality Accident, Complaint
Registration Form, 245-Product Abnormality Closed-loop
Handling Process and 039-Customer Complaint Judgment
Method. We have professional customer service teams with
members from the Customer Quality Department and After-
sales Service Department to jointly provide customers with a
multi-channel, all-round information collection and feedback
mechanism.

Customer Communication Channels

> For domestic market:
° After-sales service: 400-828-9076

° The Group’s online channels: official WeChat
account, WeChat applet, QQ, self-operated
official website, etc.

. Electronic Warranty Card: By inserting the
electronic warranty card and after-sales service
in the official WeChat account, it is convenient
for users of different brands of products to
obtain service information such as the after-sales
service department and authorized maintenance
outlets in time.

BT EZMRTER B TP ET %0 H) EMIEB A
BE  BmEREMETSHNEIFEEMBE
B AEESET(EPRFMNEESTREIERE
Fr) (RFFBERLR) (245 - EMERRARRIERIZ)
(039— BEHBLHETE)FE—RIEFPIRFERE
HE - BPEEEENEFPREEN  AEFEE

RS R BB AEFIRUS R - 2Tl
5.1 8 SRR A M o
BT
> SHHEATS
° E1&RI%EE - 400-828-9076

. BAREERER  BEHRAIRE - &
E/MERF - QQ - EA o

/v’\-
HE

. BEFRER  BBREMARFEPE
ABTRERERRS - ERTF @
BEMAPEREERERRERN - &
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For overseas markets:

. Collect and transmit customer opinions through
dealer channels and local sales teams and
use customer relationship management system
(hereinafter referred to as CRM system) to
manage customer feedback information.

° In 2021, the Group received a total of 27 written
complaints or suggestions from customers and
channels, covering quality, packaging and
shipment. The response rate and resolution rate
for complaints were both 100%. For suggestions,
we actively improved and responded in time.

TS -

. BB HEEREME IS EBOET
EFERWEEREE WEREFH
FREERRZS (A THBECRMEL) #
TEPREERER

. 20215 » AEERI B REBEH
EREMFNEZEL7RE RS RE
2 REMER  HREFREEXN
R R H100% @ BREZERMLE
AEBRERUGEYS REFEIE -

=60

0H =GO BABLAFSWERE. KRLEORS,
WS =GO WHABPURA.

#EMSEHQQ: 3051884030

HEEEAERIE: 02584994508

T 5B %88 IRARANLPREEA159,
LAY

Rt
CEABEYEA: BHIS

ORISR BRI RN R IR
FILEGOWA MM, MWFALEMRAESR.

[El=iat

HARXRECORARE,
FASREAAS

SRS~ WABH AL

L
a 400-828-9076

ATHAROREY, BABTEN.
HOR: 2201

& # i
i8] ProDUCT CERTIFICATION i
BER 5

SR ENOSBR RAGHRRNRBREER
EXRT SOREEE, OEMRTRDLEHAGNE, T
FARBH RERGRIEMS

| empmwe: e OWIABEERAD
{8 emARsTIGREER S

% DEVONA#® [EHTRA> 2MBEE, RAEMNSWRS
R CERE BRI

o somaray, oA R =5,
ABANEE RS T AREE SRR,

© SRBHBAOAFIRERERISRA,
oA TEE " =7, PIRRREHARES,

« ampRRe, Auswe - RETASEERE -,

SRUARARR, EFRFAN, w2112

Example of electronic warranty card for Chervon Holdings's EGO and DEVON
RIEEBREGORMBERE REEFRIERTH

After-sales service channels:

ERRBRE

> For the domestic market: > HEBE AT
. We authorize third parties (existing dealers) to . MEMEES =5 (ARELHEA)
provide repair and replacement services for HERAAN IMERBRERE  E
products within and outside the warranty period. HBRTS
. Provide repair services according to the actual . BHEREFPEBRFRKEHRILS FER
demands of customers. 1% e
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For foreign markets:

North America and Australia. Hire a
professional third-party service company into
the maintenance system to provide after-sales
service such as maintenance and replacement.

Europe. After-sales services such as repairs and
replacements are provided by dealers.

Customer Service Management:

>

>

Positive feedback:

Active

Service Commitment. For customer complaints,
we address them in accordance with the
Customer Complaint and Quality Accident
Handling Procedures, and we promise to
complete the 8D/3D report within 14 working
days if the information returned by the customer
is complete. For the maintenance service in the
domestic market, we promise to complete the
product maintenance service within 48 hours on
working days (currently valid for all products of
DEVON and X-TRON).

Problem analysis. For product quality
complaints, we set up a problem improvement
team according to actual demands, analyse and
study customer demands, product performance,
and issue problem analysis reports to provide
improvement suggestions for the product
department.

improvement:

System analysis. The Customer Quality
Department regularly interprets and analyses
the after-sales information in the CRM system,
figures out potential product problems,
establishes a problem tracking list, actively
promotes internal improvement, and forms a
closed-loop management of product quality.

Service support. The Group's after-sales support
team provides service support for global
distribution and third-party service teams to
ensure service quality.
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>

o Customer satisfaction survey. In order to actively
seek customer feedback, we have set up the
function of automatically issuing a satisfaction
survey questionnaire after the service is
completed in the CRM system. In 2021, EGO
series products received a total of 17,441
responses to customer satisfaction surveys, of
which “very satisfied” accounted for 60% and
“overall satisfied” accounted for over 71%.

Customer Service Training:

° Internal training. We provide professional
knowledge training for customer quality team
members, such as ISO9001 quality system,
VDAG6.3 process audit, 6-sigma training, etc.;
provide new product knowledge training for
customer service representatives; through
pre-job training, help new colleagues master
service skills by the “old colleagues teach new
colleagues” method.

o External training. We organize the after-sales
service team of overseas companies to provide
guidance and training such as product fault
diagnosis and after-sales maintenance for
overseas third-party service agencies.

2022 Customer Service Improvement Plan:

124

Through the implement of the online quality
management system (hereinafter referred to as the
QMS system), the quality management of multiple
departments can be achieved, and the relevant
processes and situations of quality improvement can
be learned in time. The implement of the QMS system
will help us improve the efficiency and transparency of
customer complaint resolution and quality improvement
processes, as well as improve the sharing of internal
quality information.

Continue to improve the construction of overseas
maintenance outlets,
improve maintenance efficiency.

increase service outlets, and

Use the customer service platform to build and
empower customer service teams to continuously
improve service skills and efficiency.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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3.2.2 Sustainable Supply Chain

Sincere cooperation with suppliers is an important guarantee
for the realization of the Group’s strategy. We attach great
importance to communicate with suppliers, actively builds a
cooperation platform, and strives to establish long-term, close,
and win-win cooperation with suppliers, to provide customers
with high-quality products and services, and to promote the
sustainable and stable development of the industry. Our
suppliers are primarily providers of battery cells, electronics
parts and components and logistics and warehouse services.

In terms of supplier management, we have established a full-
life-cycle supply chain management system covering supplier
development, evaluation, access, review, and withdrawal, and
implemented the ESG concept into all aspects of procurement,
committed to building a network of first-class suppliers that
meet our sustainability requirements.

Supplier access o

RIE - dg MEaRE

ATFFAE L fEHE

HEERNBEHAERASEERBMMNEE K
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A RkEHEREZYRY  BEE  EEARANA
ERER  BFARPRUEBLAERMRY - HBTT
ERBERTRRE - RMANHEDIZEE  RHE
G BEFERHSEDNHER YRR RS H
FEm -

322
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Access assessment: Conduct access assessment of suppliers’ production capacity,

business licences and management systems based on the Supplier Selection Process,
the Supplier Assessment Report and other specifications to mitigate the risk of conflict
of interests and assess long-term stable supply capacity.

e On-site audit: In order to ensure the quality of purchased products, we conducted on-
site audits of 42 new suppliers in 2021.

HERIEA .
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Supplier management e Qualification review: Form an annual review team composed of the purchasing
manager, the operations manager and the quality manager in accordance with the
Supplier Review and Control Procedures and other documents to verify the validity
of qualification documents such as supplier licences, product certifications and
environmental testing reports.

e Social responsibility risk assessment: Based on the Supplier Review Rules and other
management policies, we conduct a comprehensive risk assessment of suppliers in
five aspects: environmental protection, employee social security payment, operations,
willingness to cooperate and plant operational safety risk, and classify suppliers
into five risk levels according to the scoring results to support decision-making for
continuous cooperation.

e Tiered management: Suppliers are managed in 3 tiers based on their capabilities and
performance. Different procurement strategies, partnership development directions and
management measures are adopted for different suppliers after considering Chervon
Holdings’s risk control requirements and suppliers’ risk ratings to strengthen risk
management and improve procurement efficiency.

e Clean procurement: Promote the signing of the Partner Integrity Pledge with
manufacturing and trade suppliers to establish a fair, transparent, honest and
trustworthy business relationship through honest cooperation.

* Environmental protection management: In accordance with the Management
Procedures for Control of Supplier’s Use of Hazardous Substances, the Process
Management Manual for Hazardous Substances and other policies, we monitor
suppliers’ implementation of ROHS Directive and other environmental requirements
stipulated by laws and regulations, as well as customers’ environmental requirements.
Suppliers of parts and components are also required to sign the Supplier Environmental
Declaration to ensure that no harmful chemical substances are used in the purchased
products.

HrEmER o EREE: BE(HEDNEEEGRERF)SXMHHEREBLR  EERE  HEKESENTF
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Communication with We hope to enhance partnership with suppliers through diversified forms of communication

suppliers using multiple channels. In addition to irregular communication, we organise special activities
such as supplier conferences, at which market analysis and corporate strategic planning
are shared. With these efforts, we work closely with our business partners for development
together.

HrEmL A BMABAZRBZVANEFE T R(CERFRANBHBER - BT THERI - ERMNMHIE
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As of the end of 2021, the Group had a total of 846 suppliers & ZE2021% K » KREERAEREBE L HB46K
in the manufacturing sector. In 2021, we conducted an annual ~ #fER ° 20214 » BMIEHEPH629 K ERgHETT
review of 629 of these suppliers, with a coverage rate of 81%. 7THFEH @ BEXLE81%  HBHSIARERM
For some suppliers whose access time is less than 6 months, 61 AMNMtER  KEBREFHETHEMER - HkE
or suppliers designated by customers, the annual review has {THEEI5E °

not yet been carried out.

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers in 2021

o

2021 FHER M IE S
Mainland China 778
W e

Hong Kong/Macau/Taiwan 25
. %@L\
7 =)

Overseas 43
LY

Case: Supplier Communication Meeting
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2021 Electronics Supplier Conference
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2021 Supplier Strategic Planning Learning Sharlng Session
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Case: Green Supply Concept
ROl BgEEEERER

In terms of environmental protection and building an environment-friendly society, we have been practicing
our environmental protection mission with practical actions, and strive to promote environmental protection
to our partners.
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On August 24, 2021, Chervon Industry, as the winner
CHERVON' %g““ff:“hfm“ Of. the NatlonaI. Green Faotory , actively ooc?perat.ed
Rt with the Ecological Environment Bureau of Jiangning
ST AR LR A Development Zone to address pollution, and quickly
KB A K-

responded to the Notice on Doing a Good Job in
2021 Performance Classification of Key Industries
and Compilation of Emergency Emission Reduction
Inventory for Heavy Pollution Weather, and issued
the Notice on Environmental Protection Requirements
for Entering Our Transportation Vehicles to ensure
that from December 1, 2021, all delivery and
transportation vehicles entering the factory (including
but not limited to self-provided vehicles, rental
vehicles, logistics company vehicles, etc.) all meet
the national V or above emission standards.
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IV. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
4.1 Talent Management
4.1.1 Standardised Employment

Chervon Holdings always implements the tenet of “people-
oriented” and strictly abides by the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations. We respect
the differences in gender, age, race, and cultural background
of applicants and oppose any form of discrimination and
unequal competition.

We recruit talents from various channels, mainly including
campus recruitment, social recruitment and internal referral,
etc.

> Campus recruitment: For fresh graduates from
domestic universities, we provide suitable positions for
outstanding graduates and introduce new talents to
the Group. We used a combination of online and offline
methods for campus recruitment activities in 2021:

o Online: Held 2 online live broadcasts, and 47
online double-selection sessions.

o Offline: Held 25 offline seminars covering 24
schools, held 9 double-selection sessions.

> Social recruitment: Targeting outstanding talents in the
market, we continue to import advanced technology
or management concepts for the Group and improve
the overall competitiveness of talents. To enhance the
talent reserve, we increased the recruitment of special
RPO channels in 2021, and conduct unified recruitment
and batch hiring of talents such as R&D engineers or
those with limited working experience, and implement
specialized training, combing with business needs.

> Internal referral: Encourage all employees to participate
in recruitment to attract more outstanding talents.
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By the end of 2021, the Group had a total of 6,732
employees?, including 4,174 male employees (62%) and 2,558
female employees (38%). Among them, there were 1,849
employees in Nanjing?®, including 1,139 male employees (62%)
and 710 female employees (38%). Among them, there were
14 employees at senior management level and above, of
which 86% were male and 14% were female. The difference
in the ratio of men to women is mainly due to the industry
characteristics and does not deviate from the Group’s equal
employment (including recruitment and promotion) principle.

Labour dispatch employees are not included.
REFELHREHET -

Only counts non-front-line employees.
BRFIE—FETAR

W w NN
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Employment Type in Nanjing
ERMEE T EFEER

= 2BET

Interns 24
B ogps

Turnover rates by Gender and by Age Group*

Full time employees 1,825

RE - g MEARE

Gender Distribution of Employees in Nanjing

EREEE I MRS

Male 1,139
N o

Female 710
LR

R R SRl B D RO BB R

Nanjing Male Female 20-40 years old Above 40 years old
EREE B egi 20-405% 4085 A £
Turnover rates 8.90% 7.79% 15.95% 0.74%
8 TRk

4 Only counts the turnover rates of non-front-line employees.
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RIETFRER AT —BZ—FFR 131



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - g NERHRE

The Group and its subsidiaries clearly prohibit the employment
of persons under the age of 18 in accordance with the
National Law on the Protection of Minors, the Regulations on
the Prohibition of Child Labour and other laws and regulations.
We conduct strict vetting during the recruitment process to
avoid misuse of child labour. All employees of the Group are
required to present their original ID cards and submit a copy
of their signed ID cards for filing when they go through the
entry procedures to ensure that the hired employees are over
the age of 18. The Human Resources Administration Centre
conducts random checks of employee information during
internal audits from time to time. If any misuse of child labour
is discovered, the situation will be corrected immediately,
employment will be terminated and the person responsible will
be held accountable. During the reporting period, there were
no incidents of child labour employed by the Group.

The Group fully respects the freedom of employment of
its employees. During the entire employment period, the
Group and its factories are prohibited from withholding valid
documents, collecting deposits, forcing employees to work
or defaulting on payment of labour. Employees are informed
of their working hours of corresponding positions before they
join the Group. If the working hours need to be adjusted due
to production needs or job changes after employment, it
shall also be carried out with the consent of the employee. If
overtime work is arranged with the consent of employees due
to production scheduling, overtime payment or compensatory
leave shall be given. If any employee proposes to resign, he/
she will go through the resignation procedures according to
the process. We have also constructed an internal monitoring
mechanism to accept complaints on irregularities and
violations through publicly available email address, address
and telephone number. During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any incidents of forced labour.

4.1.2 Health and Safety

Ensuring a safe working environment for employees is
our fundamental responsibility. We strive to create a safe
and healthy work environment, maintain the safety of each
workplace, and make every effort to avoid any hazards that
cause or may cause physical injury to our employees.
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Strengthened Leadership

On the premise of the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’'s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and other
relevant laws and regulations in our operating locations, we
continuously draw on the management concepts and methods
from leading global practices, and actively promote the
construction of the occupational health and safety system.

By the end of 2021, our Nanjing production base has obtained
ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certification and Level 2 Certification of Work Safety
Standard.

EART: 00121S30300RIL/3200
HEH
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Chervon Industry obtained ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Chervon Industry received the Certificate of Work Safety

Health and Safety Management System Certificate
RIERH#131SO 45001:2018
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Standardization
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Risk Control

We follow the Risk Management Risk Assessment Technique,
Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Special Equipment
Safety and other systems to establish the Regulations on
Hazard Identification and Risk Classification Control and
Management. We strictly implemented and carried out the
construction of the risk classification and control system in
accordance with the regulations, strived to reduce production
risks, eliminate or reduce various accident hazards and
prevent production safety accidents.

The Group conducts systematic review of the risk classification
and control system at least once a year and publishes the
review results.

Hidden Dangers Investigation

To realize the long-term mechanism of accident hidden danger
investigation and management, strengthen the supervision
and management of accident hidden dangers, prevent and
reduce the occurrence of accidents, and protect the lives
and properties of employees, we follow the /nterim Provisions
of Safety Production Accident Hidden Danger Investigation
Jurisprudence, Method of Determining Major Fire Hazards and
other norms to develop the Hidden Dangers Investigation and
Management System. We inspect the responsible departments
in accordance with the Hidden Danger Investigation List of
Basic Management, Screening List of Hidden Dangers on
Production Site, and take the identified risk points, hazards
as the core to carry out the hidden danger classification
inspection and classification management.

For the identified hidden dangers, the responsible departments
are informed to carry out rectification through the process
and required to provide timely feedback on the rectification
situation, and in accordance with the principle of “hidden
danger reporting - treatment — acceptance - closure”, the
hidden danger investigation department organizes acceptance
of the hidden danger rectification effect and issues
acceptance opinions to achieve closed-loop management. In
2021, we identified a potential safety hazard in the speed of
electric forklifts and set a limit of 5 km/h for electric forklifts in
the factory.

The Group shall conduct a systematic review of the hidden
danger investigation and treatment at least once a year and
publishes the review results.

134 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

R EE

BB ECR R E R R RGN (hEARKM
BERRERDE)EFHEEL T (ERIRE A EE
o REEMERRE)  RIBREFRRZEEME
RaoMEEBRERIE  SHREEERR
HEIFHOZBELED  BHEELRDFWEE -

ﬁ’iltizd\ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%i&a% BRETNESR
RS WHHRERETAM -

B HEE

AEREREEBHERERMES - NEEWES
AR

12 Pk RIS EHRHELE - RIES
TwMELZE  RMNBB(RE2EESTHREH
ﬁiﬁﬁ TTRE)CERNKEBBHAED R EHRE
HETCRBHEREEES)  MERETAPIRR
(ERERBRBHERE)(EERSHER W‘?FE
BEYBE BN RRE - BRIRIESRL - ETR
BOFBE - 2AORETIE-

HREHESHNBE  BRRREMNETIPISETE
W ERKRERERREN  WIRR[EE LR —
AR - Bl - B WRE - AEBEEAEIEM
HWEBEIHRAHRUT HARKER  BREH
REI © 20214 - HMIBALESNETFERER
ELZ2RE  HYUZBBRLTMEANESEHNEE
TRENSFHBS km/h AR HI

%izdéﬂ‘a$ T?FE
PR UHFERER

f%?ﬁf:{ //\/\,yb |"ifc



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERHRS

From 2019 to 2021, the Group did not have any work-related  2019-20214% » "REBRBE4AETIRITHTEMH -
deaths of employees. In 2021, the work-related injuries and 2021 » TEXATERIBROT ¢
loss of work due to work-related injuries are as follows:

2021

20214

Number of employees injured at work (unit: TIEAR (B A) 20
person)

Number of working days lost from work injuries T {518% T{FH & 753

For safety accidents, we follow the Casualty Management SR ZLZ2EH @ RFEKBUSTEREIESE) B
System, actively implement the principle of “four no let-ups” BEEFZE24E[NAFE] KA - BTSSR
in safety production, immediately analyse and summarise e £ EEWATHRE  REFFEEEE BN
accidents and issue accident investigation reports, quickly  $E5s - LABRERR L ERES - WHSESHISNE
take targeted corrective measures to firmly eliminate such &£ BE&HERER @ FULEER E—FNARELED
potential risks and hazards and notify the accident situation BB ML HEEE) -

within the Group to give safety warnings and further strengthen

safety awareness education and safety skills training.

>t

o Case: Employee Safety House
P BIRZ2ZR

/ To make employees have a deeper feeling of “safety prevention and control” and enhance the culture of
safety prevention in the park. We have set up a “Staff Safety House” in the workshop. Through the posting
of slogans, safety accident education and the introduction of the use of labour protection equipment, we
help employees to further raise awareness of safety production.

#%%I%EAF*%VJ%JﬁE%)\E@@?% CRBRERANZEHBXEAE - RMAEERERETIBEI X2
R BBEEERY  REERHEURSERAANEANBENAEYETE-—TRESLELEESH -

Employee Safety House
BEIREZR
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O

Case: Fire Drill
RO - HPTEEK

/

To further strengthen the safety management of fire and explosion prevention, effectively prevent fire and
explosion accidents, and protect the property of our unit and the lives of employees, we hold regular
firefighting training and fire drills, in which professional firefighters explain the use of firefighting equipment
and firefighting knowledge to employees so as to improve their safety awareness and firefighting skills.

RE—TINBHANBRLZE2EIER - GREH AL - BIFEREL  REABUMENRTAGRZE  BHATH
RITEM ERAMBNEI - UEEIEE - dBEXRENE AR THEBBNSMHERBEL MR RRETH
RE2EBMANIREE

Organize employees to carry out fire drill
MER B THETTEER

O

Case: Pandemic Prevention and Control

P - EAERE

/

In 2021, during the pandemic period in Nanjing, the Group paid great attention to the health and safety of
employees. To prevent and control the pneumonia epidemic caused by COVID, we improve the prevention
and control and response capabilities, effectively prevent and control the spread of the pandemic
to protect the health and lives of employees, and maintain normal work order, we introduced some
management measures in stages scientifically and effectively.

20215 - ERRMRERBRTHE  AEESERIETRERLE - AR EE BB EER A S R b
REBOETHE - RRHEMEHES  EXBEHNEFRBEEERREEISBRENLEDLE - #ELFEDN
TERRFF - BRI S T — L BB -

(1) Nucleic acid screening for all employees one by one.
A ETE —ETRMES
(2) Registering all employees, providing dormitory isolation, meal delivery, temperature taking and
other employee services.
HAMBETETER RETIRHESMRE - 22  ABAZE TR
(3) Grid-based reporting management for 3 plants in Nanjing.
YR R B AR R E AT AR L E R IR -
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Nucleic Acid Testing of Employees

B TR

4.2 Talent Development
4.2.1 Employee Rights and Benefits

The Group attaches importance to employee communication
and care, creates an equal, respectful and harmonious working
environment for employees, and maintains a harmonious and
progressive working atmosphere. The Group also focuses on
employees’ cultural activities, enriches employees’ spare time,
and continuously improves corporate services and welfare
policies. At the same time, we listen to the valuable opinions of
employees and make improvements to continuously enhance
the sense of belonging and satisfaction of employees.

Smooth Communication

We open a variety of communication channels for employees
to ensure timely and effective access to employee feedback,
helping employees to balance work and life.

> Employee opinion box: We adopt the form of QR code
and print it on the reverse side of the employee’s work
badge, so employees can scan the code at any time
to give feedback. HR regularly collates and sends it
to relevant departments for timely processing. By the
end of 2021, we collected 442 pieces of feedback from
employees, of which 200 pieces of valid feedback have
been properly followed up.

> Seminars: In 2021, we conducted 8 seminars for
frontline employees, with 200 participants, and
collected 192 questions and suggestions in the
seminars. We set up a satisfaction improvement team
and organized a dedicated person to take charge of
the 8 issues that were raised most frequently.

4.2 ATBRE
421 RI#z

AEBESRETIHEBNEAE RETAETSE
BE  BAMIFERE  RECEABME - KR
EXNTERE  TEBTIXLES  EEETH
EREE  BETECERBMNENRE - A
RESTEESRIMHENE  TEHRAEING
BRMBEE o

I 455 7 38

RMAEIMMZEBRERE  RELE - G0E
HNETSRRE EMEITFHI(EEANE -

> BITERM  RAZHBEAWITEMEE
BETIT(FMRA BEIAEERFEXRE
HRIE AR IR (F B AR MERA AP R IS SR IR - B &
2021 K - HMEWEE TREE4420% - &
FHEBRE2001& - IEEERE -

> g 2021F B Y—RETHFE
BEHRE - 2HEAZIE200A © RE#EF L
U192 RIRE ki - RIMELREEIR
TN - SHERE AR ESMeIEMBE - A
BEAHERE -

RIGEAER AR — - —FFH
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> Communication and interviews: We require team
leaders, supervisors, managers and even VPs
to conduct monthly interviews with subordinate
employees, record feedback and present it in the
monthly report.

> Satisfaction survey: We conduct 1-2 employee
satisfaction surveys every year to gain a deep
understanding of employee problems and provide
timely feedback for solutions.

Caring for Employees

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging, we provide a
platform for employees to show themselves and communicate
through a series of employee care activities to meet their
spiritual needs and enhance their sense of well-being.

> BB RAEKER  TE  KENRE

VP BAREETEE TETIHH iR
ERERUZHREARD -

> MEERAL  HMEFETI2RBTRE

ERE  ARETHETIHE MR RER
R o

BT

AERETIMHEBER  RMBEBHAER —RIIMHET
MizEEe AEIREERTIER X ABBEMNT
B MEEBIMBEER  IRABIMNFEREK-

O Case: CEIBS (China Europe International Business School) Alumni Corporate Badminton League

RO FERRLCEDERHE

/ In May 2021, CEIBS Alumni Nanjing Branch organized the first “Shunwei Fund” Cup Alumni Corporate
Doubles Badminton Team League. As the president company, Chervon Holdings took the lead in gathering
badminton fans from the Group to form a team to participate. Chairman Pan Longquan, as the president
of CEIBS Alumni Nanjing Branch, also came to watch the game and cheered for Chervon Holdings’s team.
Chervon Holdings’'s team won the second place in the league.

202155 H  AERAMRIGABE—EIEAES IMRACEPEREITERKE - REZERERSRDE
¥ TREEAEENPEREFEAR2E - EEREEFREATERABROENER  hRIRSBEL
B WARERREINHZE - RERRERUEABBETESEFERE -

ArcEiBs |$585% ) mrume
202D BREBREASE—E “IRAER” IR ) immzmxmsF |
BREWFERIT AT \

TEE RERY AR SLBKF |-
T
) A ok - -

bt

Chervon Holdings’s team won the second place in the CEIBS Alumni Corporate Badminton League

RERRBERPBRRAEEPERBRETESEFRELE
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o Case: Dragon Boat Race at Xuanwu Lake
RH : ZHREES

RIE - dg MEaRE

/ In May 2021, during the Dragon Boat Festival, to promote communication among colleagues and
strengthen team building, R&D Centre organized a dragon boat race at Xuanwu Lake for employees. A

total of 8 teams participated in this activity.

20215 A - EEHRTES - REERNEEEE  MABEKER

PHESXHKMLE -

I EERRD AR S TRTE ZEURERER - BRE

R&D Centre organized employees to race dragon boats at Xuanwu Lake

it LA E TR ZEURERER

/

4.2.2 Training and Development

We insist on building a growth model of collaborative
development and mutual achievement with our employees.
Therefore, we create a learning atmosphere in our company
through various means, establish a multi-level training system,
continuously invest in quality resources, strengthen talent
training, help our employees plan and develop their career
paths and help them continuously improve their personal
capabilities and achieve their career development goals.

In 2021, the Group provided a total of 571 hours of internal
training courses, including:

Training Type

IR I BB
Duration/Hour 91 88
BRI

Industry Leadership Compulsory

4.2.0 IFHIEZEE

BAPRSHBEES THRER - BULKEAKER
Ao Bt BABEZEECELEPEERBR
CRBYZERNBIIER  HERAEEER
MARATEBENE  BPHETREFEREBEE
5% Y B TEAGENHTERAMBEERE R
MER -

20214 «+ AEFEREAIMHFIREREREST1/)
B HEEEIE:

R&D Profession Total

B E BEL st

15.5 250.5 126 571
FRIBERRAR AT —E-—FFR 139
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In 2021, the number of participants of the Group in Nanjing
reached 1,196, with 35.1 hours of training per person.

20214  AEEFE IR LI ABEIE,196
A AR R A35.1/8 o

Management Mid-level Primary-
Employee Type Female Male Staff Staff level Staff
ZINETHER ZHET EMET EEERST REET BEEET
Training duration per person/hour 41.5 30.7 60 24.3 38
ANAZIER /N
Training ratio 52% 48% 95% 51% 59%
SElll=atl
“Hummingbird” Program % S5t El

Our industry requires a high level of technical professionals.
With business development needs, we are increasingly aware
of the importance of a dedicated talent pool. Recent college
graduates are an important way for us to recruit high-tech
talents. Our graduate recruitment demand reached 81 in 2021,
double the number in 2020.

In order to strengthen the attractiveness of our company
to graduate recruits, we have developed a special training
program for fresh university graduates, which is centrally
managed by the Group and jointly directed by the
Business Department and the HR Department to help fresh
graduates quickly integrate into the Group through relatively
comprehensive, systematic and professional training, and
accelerate the growth of fresh university graduates into
Chervon staff who can take up jobs independently within one
year.

To realize the precise positioning of special talents, we
summarized previous years’ “Hummingbird” program every
year and formulated the framework of the next year’'s program
in line with the business needs.

The framework of the 2021 “Hummingbird” program:

> Training plan: Four stages of exploration, practice,
commitment and delivery.

> Team integration: Factory visit + online operation,
timely adjust internship expectations and strengthen
learning goal management by intensive prior employee
communication.
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> Mentorship coaching: According to the department-
specific training plan, combined with HR interview and
counselling, we track vocational skills training.

> Independent undertaking: Arranging advanced
version of vocational skills training to achieve on-the-
job improvement and offline activities (such as senior
management face-to-face, etc.).

> Project delivery: Results reporting, HR and departments
develop training programs for high potential talents
through talent inventory.

Leadership Program Plan

The Group is currently in a booming period, with a scale of
business growth from quality to quantity in the next 3-5 years.
In order to empower the organization, activate talent and build
a quality talent supply chain, we have developed a leadership
program for our management level staff.

Chervon Holdings’s “Leadership Development Program
v2.0” was launched in 2021, with the theme of “Capability
Advancement, Community Operations”.

> Based on organizational needs: We set up one class for
managers and two classes for supervisors, with a total
of 72 participants in the program.

> Competency advancement: Differentiated training for
supervisors and managers, and designed advanced
courses based on their competency level.

> Course system optimization: Focus on organization,
self-improvement, team management and business
development.

RIE - dg MEaRE

> BEEH - REBAFHREETE - FAHR
EAEE - WHBR(CRRESET

> WAL AEE R
ErERA T
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> HE RN - RER - BBATRE - HRA
IS HREASBIEEBETR

BENIFAEE

AEBBMERNEBERE  ERKI-SFPER
WESINHEHARBRUKE - REEAR - A
AT ITEBEAT HESE  BAHEEEARH
ETEENAEBFE -
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> OMO teaching: Combination of online, offline and
community operation.

In order to effectively activate individual managers and thus
empower the organization, we conduct an annual review of
previous years’ leadership programs and plan the training
strategy for the following year, taking into account the
management needs.

> OMOTTHER : ML - RTMHEELH

=%

RAEBMEEEABMERE EMmBEEs  8FR
MBEHEFRENBBETERTE  THEEE
B T SRAR BT F A B o

2021 Leadership Program

2021F BB N 1E B 1557

V. GREEN AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
5.1 Emissions Management

We strictly comply with many local environmental protection
and pollution prevention laws, regulations and standards,
including the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, the Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air
Pollutants, and the Pollution Control Standards for Hazardous
Waste Storage. The Group has established corresponding
management system such as Environmental Management
Operation Control Procedures, Solid Waste Management
Regulations. At the same time, each operation site will conduct
internal supervision and management of emissions of waste
gas, wastewater, and waste according to the standards
of local environmental protection authorities to ensure that
emissions meet the standards.
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By the end of 2021, the Group’s Nanjing production base has #HZE2021F K AEBEFEREELZMEBIBISO
obtained 1SO 14001:2015 environmental management system  14001:2015R B EIEE ZRE -
certification.

N DK 4 AIEEH
ER%S: 00121E30368R3L/3200
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Chervon Industry obtained ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System Certificate
RIERHZESISO 14001:2015 B FE BB R REFE

Our emissions mainly consist of waste gas, wastewater and ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ?ﬁﬁ(%ﬁ*ﬁig’j%@ﬁ C RBEIK R EEEWY) o
waste. We rely on our environmental management system to  HIPIEKERREEE R - HIT)5RPERE - B
implement pollution prevention strategies and cooperate with HE=FHES f’lf CEBER Y R EEEYEIT A MG
external third parties to effectively monitor and treat emissions TRERIE o

and waste.
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> Waste Gas

The main sources of industrial waste gas in our operations
are waste gas from drip painting motor workshops, injection
workshops and product testing. In order to ensure that waste
gas emissions meet the requirements of the Comprehensive
Emission Standards for Air Pollutants, we have installed
and operated waste gas treatment facilities (such as water
curtain dust removal systems, bag dust removal systems, and
active carbon absorption treatment devices). The relevant
departments maintain daily operation records, conduct routine
maintenance, inspection and repair of waste gas emission
equipment, exhaust systems and waste gas treatment
devices, and keep the inspection records according to the
related requirements. We manage emissions by adhering to
emission requirements which are stricter than the national
standards, cooperate with irregular surprise inspections
from the environmental protection departments and engage
professional third-party institutions to perform testing regularly
as required by the Environment Bureau.
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o Case: RTO Waste Gas Treatment System

RiE - HgLEamE

£% - RTOEREERSR

In 2021, Chervon Industry responded to the national control of VOCs and invested in the construction of

an RTO waste gas treatment system in the motor workshops with a view to improving the efficiency of

waste gas treatment and reducing emissions.

20214 + RIBRHTZRERR
BERURIERR - [%

HiER ARy N EE
EBERE -

 EERBEMB/ARRTRTOBERGIERS -

VARRE — 4R Tt

In 2022, we plan to further reduce waste gas emissions after installing the RTO exhaust gas treatment

system.

20224 - HMETEIRTOREREGRIE Rt & TRk 1% -

—

BESRUBLHE TAE ©

Installation of the RTO waste gas treatment equipment in progress

RTOEHRX G L EEREIER

SRR

/

> Wastewater

Our wastewater is divided into industrial wastewater and
domestic wastewater.

Industrial wastewater mainly comes from mechanic
processing workshops and contains emulsified wastewater.

° For the areas that produce a large amount of industrial
wastewater, we have built sewage pipelines for
wastewater to run through to the target sewage
treatment plant.

° For industrial wastewater discharged sporadically, we
use special drainage trucks to transfer the wastewater
to the sewage treatment plant.

>

JEEAK
RPREKEE D BMLE - TEBEKFEERENK -
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° We have formulated the Specification for the
Maintenance and Management of Online Automatic
COD,, Analyser System, the Operating Procedures for
Online COD,, Analyser System and the Management
Regulations for Wastewater Treatment System and
have dedicated personnel responsible for the operation
of sewage treatment plants to ensure that the plants
operate normally, and wastewater is only discharged
to the sewage pipeline network after meeting the
standards.

o The EHS Department organises all departments to
formulate and implement the wastewater reduction plan.

Domestic wastewater mainly comes from staff canteens and
toilets and is discharged after being filtered and precipitated
using grease traps.

o We have set up isolation nets in the canteen water
storage ditch and cofferdams in the sewerage ditch of
the food waste room.

o Professional cleaners are hired regularly to clean and
service the grease traps and domestic wastewater
pipelines to prevent sewage overflow.

> Solid Waste

We follow the principles of reducing, recycling and harmless
solid waste control.

In order to reduce the impact of waste on the surrounding
ecological environment, effectively control various wastes
generated by the Group, and avoid waste hazards to the
environment and human health, we have formulated the Solid
Waste Management Regulations and Waste Material Disposal
Management Specifications, which are strictly enforced in
actual operation, and to achieve responsibility implementation.

° The waste generating department is responsible for
the classified collection and storage of the waste and
for the daily management of the departmental waste
temporary storage place.
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o EHS department is the competent department for e
waste disposal, responsible for the qualification and
disposal agreement review of all waste disposal units,
as well as the collection, classification, legal disposal
and comprehensive supervision and management of
hazardous waste.

o EHS and related departments are responsible for the e
sorting, storage and daily cleaning of general waste, as
well as the disposal of general waste.

° For hazardous waste, we stipulate that we need to fill e
out the Internal Transfer Order of Hazardous Waste
and transfer it to the hazardous waste warehouse after
confirmation by environmental engineers, and the EHS
department is responsible for disposal.

Indicator

B

Emission

B

Total GHG emissions (tons CO, equivalent)

AERBEREE (M-RiREE

GHG (Scope 1) emissions (tons CO, equivalent)

RERLS (BE ) e (H_StiREE

GHG (Scope 2) emissions (tons CO, equivalent)

RERE (SBE ) RE (H_SmES

Total sewage discharge (ton)

VEIKBER AR E (ME)

Sewage discharge per unit of product (ton/thousand units)

B B S KBRS (W F 8 )

Total amount of hazardous waste (ton)

EEEEYELRS ()

Amount of hazardous waste per unit product (kg/thousand units)
BUEMEERENEES (TR TEL)

Total amount of industrial solid waste (ton)
TXEREEYELEE ()

Amount of industrial solid waste per unit product (kg/thousand units)
BEMTXEEEEYELS (TR, TB6)

Total amount of recyclable waste (ton)

BJ O Yo RE EE Y E A A (IR )

Amount of recyclable waste per unit product (kg/thousand units)
BUEMABWEEMESS (TR TEML)

Total VOCs emission (kg)

VOCs#Hm#E (F=)

VOCs emission per unit product (g/thousand units)

BERNVOCSHNE (2 FEAL)

EHSHPIRBEEMBEENTIEEF - BEM
EEEVREBEUNEGNREHATZ

T EERBREZRMOME

MR EEER

D RERE

EHSKAEHHMBE —REZYHHE
FHEEEBELIE A REEVNE

=

HRERERY  BAREFTER(ERE
YA EBEERE B ) W AC IR I TIZAN IR IR B
EERERMARE - MEHSHMARRKE -

RIEEFRER AR —E=

=

2021
20215

23,824.0

1,036.11

22,921.67

292,960.0

19.7

250.0

16.8

4,811.0

323.3

4,561.0

306.5

2,279.8

1563.22
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With the growth of production capacity and output, it is
difficult to reduce the total amount of emissions, but the
Group will continue to reduce emissions per unit of production
through refined management and improvement of production
processes. On the basis of legal compliance, the emissions
per unit of production can be reduced by upgrading
production facilities and emission treatment facilities, accurate
forecasting and scientific production scheduling.

5.2 Energy and Resource Use

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment
Impacts, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation and many other laws and regulations in
the places where we operate and have established various
systems such as the Environmental Operation and its Control
Procedures within the Group to regulate the use of energy and
resources.

By the end of 2021, the Group’s Nanjing production base
has passed the ISO 50001:2018 energy management system
certification.
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Chervon Industry obtained ISO 50001:2018 Energy Management System Certification
RIERHZESISO 50001:20184 R EIRE R REFZ

Energy Saving Management Measures FIREE RIS It

. According to the Management Measures for Energy e RIZREHSEPIAR B FT 6l E R (B BE PR FE B 12
Saving and Consumption Reduction formulated by WE) BELFEMBERBERER - A%
the EHS department and combined with the actual BEPIHIEARFREERERTE

consumption of the previous year, organize each
department to formulate the energy cost reduction plan
for the current year.

. Require each department to control the consumption of e EREHMPIEK T FEE - LRIERE
water, electricity, gas and other resources and energy, ESEITEES - RO EE - UREE®D
compare and analyse the data to reduce the resource K& - LB

and energy consumption of products.

. Educate employees to establish energy-saving e HEEBIMWEEER - BOIRIE - BHR
awareness, operate carefully and strive to reduce ESBFE ©

consumption.
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Water Resources Management

The Group’s water is basically from municipal water, and there
is no major issue in the acquisition of water resources.

Environment and Natural Resources

We pay much attention on the economical use of natural
resources and strive to build a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise to achieve the harmonious
and sustainable development of people, resources and the
environment. Although our production and operations do not
directly involve natural resources, we fully consider the impact
of our construction activities on the surrounding environment
when building new production sites and conduct environmental
impact assessments in accordance with regulatory
requirements to ensure that our construction practices do not
affect biodiversity or damage the environment.

Key Environmental Performance

Indicator
b

Energy Usage

BE R 2 A

Total electricity consumption (kWh)
HEE (TRE)

Natural gas consumption (m?)
RAFHEFEE (LTTK)

Gasoline (litres)

FURDEREE (FH)

Diesel (litres)

SmEEE (F)

Comprehensive energy consumption (ton of standard coal)
A RRBREE (MEEAER)

Energy consumption per unit product (ton of standard coal/thousand units)

BRI EMEREES (MZEE F8h)

Water Usage

KEREMA

Total water consumption (10 thousand ton)

FKE (BHE)

Water consumption per unit product (ton/thousand units)
BfyEmFEKE (W FE)
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2021
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With the growth of production capacity and output, there
are certain practical difficulties in reducing the total use of
energy and resources. However, the Group will continue to
reduce the consumption of non- renewable energy through
green office means such as the substitution of renewable
energy, optimization of vehicle routes and reduction of travel,
and strive to reduce the energy consumption per unit output
and improve energy efficiency. In terms of water usage, we
continuously publicize the awareness of water saving and
gradually adopt water-saving appliances to enhance the water
efficiency and strive to reduce the water consumption per unit
product.

5.3  Addressing Climate Change

Environmental risks are closely related to climate change.
The development of a low-carbon economy has become the
consensus of the international community to address the
severe challenges posed by climate change. Globally, it is
becoming a consensus for the industry to shift from “electric
first” to “fully electric”.
Holdings has responded to the 73th Five-Year Plan for
National Economic and Social Development and the strategic
deployment of Made in China 2025 and formulated the Medium
and Long-Term Plan for Green Development from 2021 to
2025.

As a pioneer of new energy, Chervon

According to the Medium and Long-Term Plan for Green
Development, we have set:

> Annual quantitative green development target: 15%
reduction in annual average output energy consumption
(kg of standard coal/10 thousand RMB).

> Green development target:
consumption per unit product,
rate of major renewable resources, improve the level of
clean production, and establish a green manufacturing
system.

Reduce energy
improve the recycling

> Guarantee measures for green development:

° The leading group, created by the green factory,
actively work with relevant departments to
improve the working mechanism, combined with
the actual situation to accelerate the promotion
of industrial green development goals and tasks
and work programs.
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° Using the EKP system, we strengthen public
opinion propaganda guidance, carry out multi-
level and multiform propaganda education, and
guide all staff to establish the concept of green
consumption.

° According to the green development target,
the Infrastructure Department is responsible for
decomposing this target to each department and
workshop, and including it in the KPIl assessment
target of each department, with a weight of
no less than 10%, and regularly reviewing,
assessing and evaluating the progress of the
target.

Establishing a Risk Control System

In terms of governance, we have established an ESG
governance structure to cover the overall governance of ESG
related work, including the management of various projects
related to addressing climate change. The Board of Directors
authorizes the ESG Management Committee to carry out ESG
management, and clearly understands the responsibility of the
Board for ESG matters and the support of management (see
more details in ESG Governance section above). We refer to
the TCFD (Climate Related Financial Disclosure) framework to
progressively carried out status review, strategy formulation,
risk management, indicator and target identification and
management on the risks and opportunities that the Group
may face due to climate change.

In 2021, some of our parks are in areas with seasonal tightness
in power supply and will be subject to power restrictions or
blackouts for a period of time by the local power bureau in
case of power shortage. In response to such irregular and
phased power restrictions, combined with the actual operation
needs of the park, we have formulated the Temporary Plan for
Negative Control Emergency Response:

> Set electricity consumption warning level: yellow,
orange and red warning levels according to electricity
consumption intensity

> Implement hourly electricity consumption monitoring:
° When the daily electricity consumption reaches

the yellow warning line, the monitoring data will
be collected once every 1 hour.
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° When the daily electricity consumption reaches
the orange warning line, the monitoring data will
be collected once every 0.5 hours.

° When the daily electricity consumption reaches
the red warning line, a responsible staff will
check the monitoring data in real time and keep
in touch with the electricity room.

> Load control scheduling by warning level:

° Yellow warning: The electrician class enters
a state of readiness and instantly notifies
the production department that electricity
consumption has entered a state of warning
and maintains the status quo of electricity
consumption.

o Orange warning: Start the load control, start
dispatching part of the shutdown area, ask
the production department to reduce the load
according to the dispatching requirements within
15 minutes after receiving the information.

. Red warning: The load control is fully activated
in the park, and generator sets are turned on
to protect the electricity consumption of the
elevated warehouse, data centre and energy
centre.

> Emergency response liaison: Set up primary and
secondary emergency contacts in each power
consumption area to clarify responsibility for
deployment.

As a manufacturing company, we actively cooperate with the
control requirements of the local government departments and
continue to promote the establishment and implementation of
contingency plans for climate related risks. Through a series
of arrangements and initiatives such as reasonable allocation
of power units and timely adjustment of power periods, we
ensure smooth communication among units and ensure that
personnel work in place to minimize the negative impact of
climate-related risks such as power restrictions on our own
production and our customers’ product demand.
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We also actively promote the use of clean energy in our RFIMEGERELINEZERBNER @ 852
operation sites, using it as a backup energy source during EER{EAREHEMNERER  REEXHRLBE
periods of power restrictions, while effectively reducing A EKLEHHR=HEM -

greenhouse emissions in our daily production operations.

O Case: Clean Energy
B EREER

/ We have built a rooftop solar photovoltaic system in Chervon Green Power Industry Park that
generates 2,000 MWh of solar energy per year, which is equivalent to an annual reduction of
730 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions. The solar hot water system in the facility saves about
244 tonnes of standard coal per year. Solar streetlights are also installed in our manufacturing

Blue — facilities, saving approximately 4.5 tonnes of standard coal per year.
EGEE
BMERENERIERTESRTEFUELE2,000KERAMGENETBAGELASY - HERE
R D 730ME Z EALIRBEN o I ZRIE LR KGRERVK RS - BFEREHNL244BEF LK o HA I
REERBTEERGREEE - BEREHAK04 5MEIRER
A “green roof” system is installed in our R&D headquarters building, covering an area of
approximately 7,000 square metres. The system uses green plants as roofing material, and
insulates and filters rainwater, thereby reducing fuel consumption by approximately 35,000
L G litres per year.
BMERBEBRELE SRR R - BEEBELN7,000F 5K - ZXZRERECEYIERETE
ME - ETREANGERRK - BF AR FEmE 435,000 2T
The air conditioning system in Chervon Green Power Industry Park is equipped with an
advanced ground source heat pump system that uses the earth itself as a heat source in winter
and a cooling source in summer, which reduces approximately 839 tonnes of carbon dioxide
Geothermal o
o 24 emissions per year.

BMREREFERIXERANTZRARGTERE T TENBRRARER BT RFRELIFRRR
BERR  HERESFRAHB39M — S LRI -
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Clean Energy Usage (Unit: 10,000 kWh)
BREREAE (BN - BkWh)

0.2%
Solar street Photovoltaic Solar water Ground Cumulative
lights power heating source heat K&t
NCE S generation NCEE- TN pump
IR E HIRER

O Clean energy usage in 2020 (unit:10,000kWh)
2020)5 28ERE A EE (Bkwh)

0 Clean energy usage in 2021 (unit:10,000kWh)
2021/ 2 REAEE (Bkwh)

—®— Ratio of clean energy usage to total electricity
consumption in Chervon Green Power Industry
Park in 2021
20215 2 Rb et RE R AR E L E

RE - LB REARE

CO, Emission Reduction from Clean Energy Use

ERERE AR HCO, R

Solar street
lights
K5 RERE &

O
o

2,340

323 335

Photovoltaic Solar water Ground Cumulative
power heating source heat ES
generation INCEZ-YN pump
Y ARZEE HIRER

CO, emission reduction in 2020 (t)
20205R 2 HICO, BERTE (1)

CO, emission reduction in 2021 (t)
2021 MCO, BERE (1)

Continuously promote the use of renewable energy in Chervon Green Power Industry Park

TSR U 3 BE IR T 36 (B P 15 48 HE HE HT BE IR {2 71
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The usage of renewable energy in Chervon Green Power Industry Park

RIEFRUR TR BB REROERBER
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O Case: Green Products
RO #BER

RIE - dg MEaRE

/ In 2021, Chervon Holdings obtained a patent for the invention of a “Light energy charger and electric

energy system comprising the same,”

which enables the use of light energy to charge battery packs in

power tools, making full use of clean energy to convert electricity, saving electricity and reducing costs for

users.

In the future, we will continue to make efforts to reduce carbon dioxide emissions through green design,
intelligent manufacturing design, and development of new energy products based on our product features

to help China achieve the “dual carbon goal.”
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VI. PUBLIC WELFARE AND COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

6.1 Long-distance Charity Run

Since 2013, Chervon Holdings has organized 8 “Chervon
Charity Run” events, with the goal of enabling CHERVON
employees and their relatives, as well as our cooperative
charity partners from Tzu Chi Foundation, to enjoy running,
challenge themselves and exercise healthily The participants
can enjoy running, challenge themselves and exercise in
the event while contributing to charitable projects. As at the
end of 2021, we donated a total of RMB1.29 million to charity
projects such as “Water Cellars”, “Post-quake Ya'an School
Reconstruction”, “Spring Buds Education Aid” in north Jiangsu
and “New Shoots Education Aid”.

In the 2021 “Charity Run”, a student from the “Spring Buds
Education Aid” charity project also participated, demonstrating
CHERVON's vision of “Better Tools. Better World”.

6.1 ZBLRKE

B2013F 8  RECRFTERMSAIREEW|E
o BENREREETIMEE  UAREBEHE
EEZWTEH - IHERNEREDORE - X
BN AmEZEE - HE2021F K RMEA
[BLKkE][HEBEBRER | M [ EEE]
[FEFBE | SEZHE R BRARE1208 T -

2021FEWMIREER P - EFE UXRE[HFED
B NHBENEPEEDL2HEEF  BMBETEE
BA T [Better Tools. Better World | 8 R IEFES -
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DONATION DETAILS OF EACH CHERVON ZREEWERERIEE
“CHARITY RUN”

Year Donation amount/RMB  Cooperative charity partners Cooperative charity projects

£4 BREE /& RIERBRH REEEER

2013 129,059.7 The Amity Foundation Water Cellar
S BikE

2014 118,900 The Amity Foundation Water Cellar
BEEsE BikE

2015 229,805 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation  Ya'an post-disaster school reconstruction
REREZELASS B BERER

2016 146,099.98 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation ~ “Spring Bud Learning Support” in Northern Jiangsu
REERESSERS HILIEEHE]

2017 212,596.36 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation ~ “Spring Bud Learning Support” in Northern Jiangsu
BHEEEZEELS LI B5EHE]

2018 126,279.64 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation ~ “Spring Bud Learning Support” in Northern Jiangsu
REREEEEDS HILIBEDE]

2019 127,302.74 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation ~ “Spring Bud Learning Support” in Northern Jiangsu
REERERSERY B[ BEEHE]

2021 200,858.51 Buddhist Compassion Relief Tzu Chi Foundation ~ “New Bud Learning Support” in Northern Jiangsu
REEESREERS Bl (#5852 ]

Total 1,290,901.93

st

e L

2021 CHERVON “Charity Run”
2021 F [ RIEE 57 ]
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6.2 Overcoming Difficulties Together 6.2 HREIER

o Case: Pandemic in Nanjing
=0 mRERE

/ During the pandemic period in Nanjing in July 2021, Chervon Industry donated more than RMB200,000
worth of emergency pandemic prevention materials, including medical protective clothing, N95 masks,
goggles, isolation screens, disinfectant solution, etc., and 20 electric tricycles to Jiangning Development
Zone. Support the prevention and control of the epidemic in Jiangning Since the outbreak of the
pandemic, we quickly organized the “pandemic protection group” to respond quickly and deploy carefully.
Employees from all departments enthusiastically participated in volunteer services and actively cooperated
with the pandemic prevention and related work deployment to overcome the difficulties together.

2021 F7 AR AEHME  RERERTIERHEREEEAREK208ETTNZREENE @ 2EEHAHER -
NOSOZE - EHE  [REEE HERSE  UN20MEFH=HE & IEIEZBHIEIIE  BRIBEENK @ &
PR RAR A [ BT A | R LrE BAEEE  SFFE LER2EERRG  BEREASHERBIEDRE - £
FEEER -

“CHERVON pandemic protection group” is taking action
[ RUER B A ETE

o Case: Henan Floods
RH - ARk K

During the Henan floods in 2021, we donated
500,000 RMB worth of power tools through
the local Red Cross Society to support the
rescue and reconstruction of Xinxiang, Henan
Province, which was severely affected by the
disaster, contributing “CHERVON power” to

restore normal production and life in the area.

2021 A /KM > BPBAEMATFEF
HEBAREKSOBTED LR ARXEX KR
EmAmM A ERRELEER - BEMWIKE
ERAEE LEURFEMIRENE] -

Chervon Holdings supports the reconstruction of
Xinxiang, Henan Province
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6.3 Government Inspections

On April 23, 2021, Hu Chunhua, member of the Political Bureau
of the CPC Central Committee and Vice Premier of the State
Council, came to Chervon Holdings for an inspection. Premier
Hu Chunhua listened to the report of Chairman Pan Longquan
about the main business, products, development history, core
competence, personnel employment and corporate culture.
During the visit to the product exhibition hall, Chairman Pan
Longqguan introduced our own brand power tools and outdoor
power equipments, which are independently developed,
designed and manufactured by us, to Premier Hu. In response
to the suggestions given by Premier Hu on the employment of
the Group and the implementation of the policy of stabilizing
the jobs, we will take up the corporate social responsibility,
accelerate the pace of transformation and upgrading, and
continuously improve the competitiveness of the enterprises.

6.3 HFEXE

2021564230 - AHARBIARZEZS - Bk E
BIRAEERFIBITRAR - fEERBRIUESE
FEERENTIEEL ER- BRER U
N ABAIRGEENER EEREESSH
B BREREFRMOPAENBRMEEIE R
o RENEEREES TANEREIAER - ¥
NBBAENCERT  BrRBERESES
BMSAERCELSEM - MRERFAFHEK -
THIESDEBRFEN -

[

Hu Chunhua, member of the Political Bureau of the CPC Central Committee and Vice Premier of the

State Council, came to Chervon Holdings for an inspection
RHAPRBIERES - BFkr B E IR 0A FHE R 1 AR 22
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On 27 April 2021, Leung Chun-ying, Vice-chairman of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) visited Chervon Holdings.
He was accompanied by Huang Lixin, Chairperson of
Jiangsu Provincial CPPCC; Huang Jipeng, Secretary General
of Jiangsu Provincial CPPCC; Zhang Yingchun, Deputy
Secretary of Jiangsu Provincial Committee of the Communist
Youth League and Chairman of the Jiangsu Provincial Youth
Federation; Li Shigui, member of the Standing Committee
of the Nanjing Municipal Committee of the Communist Party
of China (CPC) and Secretary of the Jiangning District CPC
Committee; and Fan Qun, Vice-chairman of Nanjing Municipal
CPPCC. Leung Chun-ying visited Chervon Green Power
Industry Park to understand Chervon Holdings’s technological
innovation, market expansion and core competence. He
spoke highly of Chervon Holdings’s continuous innovation
and rapid development over the years, fully affirmed our
positive contribution to economic and social development, and
encouraged us to seize the opportunity in the construction
of new development pattern for further growth. According to
Chairman Pan Longquan, Chervon Holdings, as the president
entity of the Nanjing Jiangning Fraternal Association, will
continue to uphold our vision of “Better Tools, Better World,”
and is committed to creating corporate value through
continuous innovation and improvement.

Vice Chairman of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC), Leung Chun-ying, visited
Chervon Holdings
2B 8 £ E R IR E DR AR E R
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APPENDIX Bt &%

Hong Kong Stock Exchange Environmental, Social and EEBEXIM(RE  HEREBBRERIDAEER
Governance Reporting Guidelines Content Index 5

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
(RIR - HERERBERES) BERR

A. Environmental

TEHEA R

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : BEHY

A1l General Disclosure 51
— MR
Information relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste on:
BHERIOAERBBYM - M/KR LS  EERESEEVNELSH
(a) the policies; and
KR
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

BTHEITABEAZENRRERRROINER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 5.1
HERUIE SR AR RAHE B -

At1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in 5.1
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

B (FEN) kepRMEE (SE2) AEREHERE (UBEETE) k (WEA) BE (40
LNEESB - BIEXRETE)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 5.1
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEXESEEYRE (UEAE) K (WER) BE (WAEES 8 - BIERE

HHE) -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 5.1
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEAESEEYES (UERE) X (WER) BE (NMASESEL - §1ERE
HE) -

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 5.1
A PTRT BB E B IR R AE RIS L B EATERIA) P8R -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a 5.1

description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
MR EERBEEEEMNT L - RERFIETIHME B 1R M AESE LB Em
ERENEY T BE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide

?‘i&k’r;m #& =]

Report Content

(RE - HEREBHEEES)

A. Environmental

TEHRA. B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2 : EREA

A2 General Disclosure
— M
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BRUEAEIR (BFEEER - KREMRMEL) BB -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

EAEsmEE R SKEEER(WE - felin) BREE UTETERNAE) &
BE(WMAGES S - FERMEE) -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BRKENREE (MASESEN - BRRMHE) -

A2.3 Descnptlon of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

HATRT LB BE IR A e B R RRE DS L B IR PR ERERE) P58 -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FACSKEUEFRKR ERI B EM R - LRI ARG B R R AEIEL R
FRERER ) 278K -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if

applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

HRmAAEERMHNEE (UMFE) k (ER) BEESEUGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : BIERXAER

A3 General Disclosure
— MRk EE
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.
RIEBETALERRERARAABERERERTZEHNBUR ©
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

WX EHHRBERRRERNEAZERCRNEEERTENTD -

RIEER AR AR

BEAR

5.2

5.2

5.2

5.2

5.2

Improving with
progress, plan to
disclosure in future
years

FETE

WEE

AR EFE

5.2

5.2

—FER

_7_

163



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - wgRERHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
(BT - wERERBEES) HEAR

A. Environmental

TEEEA RE

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHEAS : RIZE{L

A4 General Disclosure 5.3
— AR 5R
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRIREHE RS HETAEETENERREHEBEENBE
A4 A Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, 5.3
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.
BB E R EGHETAEEZENEARBEBER - REHTE -
B. Social
FTEEEB. 1 F

Employment and Labour Practices

EEREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : &%

B1 General Disclosure 4.1
— MR
Information on remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other treatment and benefits:
EAFWNRERE BREEEA  THERE R FERE - 2l REBUR
HAF 8 MR
(a) the policies; and
B M
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHBITABERTENBEEERROEER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), 4.1
age group and geographical region.
IR EEER (N2 BEERE) - FRARN RS S HIESER -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 4.1
BRI - FleAARI RME S D EEBIRALL X -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
(BT - wERERBEES]) HEAR

B. Social

TEE\B. HE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 : @EEZ2

B2 General Disclosure 4.1
— M
Information on:
BRRE‘Z2TEREIRERESHEBENLBEN
(a) the policies; and
W M
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BTHBETABEATZENBBERZLRONER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three 4.1
years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BRERFE) SFRATUHOABBILE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 4.1
EIEBEBAIERH -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how 4.1

they are implemented and monitored.
RPN B R R R R L 21 - U RABRBARTRERTE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #EREI

B3 General Disclosure 4.2
— MR
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
BRI EERIT LIFRE & AH AR BUR - HEdES -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. 4.2
senior management, middle management).
RERIREEEN (MR ERE PREEES) ANNXIEEEIL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 4.2
employee category.

BRI REBERE D - BREETKZIIN TR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
(BT - wERERBEES) HEAR

B. Social

TEEH\B. HE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4 : & T %A
B4 General Disclosure 4.1
— AR 5R
Information relating to preventing child and forced labour on:
BRIPT IFE Teaah| s T
(a) the policies; and
B M
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETABEATZENBBERENBRNHNER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 4.1
forced labour.
R BB E e AR R ET Re&H|S4T -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 4.1
R E BRI E R E R ERE BIE R EREA F8R o
Operating Practices

&EES

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

fEmEBS : HAEHEEE

B5 General Disclosure 3.2
— AR IR
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHERNIRE N ERRBUR -

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 3.2
ZwREDNHEEHE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 3.2

where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
HABRIEAHERNEDN  MERTEREINHEREE - URABIENHHR
TRERTE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along 3.2
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

MBS HEET ERENRFE L RRBOED - ARMBERTRERT

% e

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products 3.2
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

R ERER TR RESZBRRERLREOES - ARBEATRERTE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
(BT - wERERBEES]) HEAR

B. Social

TEE\B. HE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEME

B6 General Disclosure 3.1
— AR 5R
Information relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress
on:
BHEFFREERMRBHERERZ S  BE  EREELBEEARBRT AN
(a) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BTHBETABEATZENBBEELROEER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 3.1
health reasons.
PEESDEXERAHPTRLRRERIEAMARKNE DL
B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how they 3.1
are dealt with.
BERNER MRS RIS BB AREH T E
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 3.1
property rights.
g E R RENBEEGENED -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 3.1
HE SR TEREREMEKIET
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they 2.2

are implemented and monitored.

OB B BURRE AL BGR - A RBRRITREERTTE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content

(BIE - HERERMEED) WEASR
B. Social
TEHEB. g

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

B7 General Disclosure 2.2
— AR 5R
Information relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering on:
BRI IERRE - 9% - BEFROERES
(a) the policies; and
B M
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATZENBBERENBRNHNER -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 2.2
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERIAAEETASEREREVEFENESHRARTNEE RFAER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how 2.2
they are implemented and monitored.

SRR RBIZF - ARMEBRITRER = -

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 2.2
HlmERE RS TRENREFE -

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

B8 General Disclosure 6.1
— M 6.2
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BRANHESERTREEMELRFENEREEEZSHEE BIALR MK

% o

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour 6.1
needs, health, culture, sport). 6.2
HIEREE (WHE  RRFEH  BIFK  BF - Xt 85) -

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 6.1
EEIHRBAHAER (N EARRE) 6.2
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FEEDBACK FORM BENE
To our readers: BWMAEE

Thank you very much for reading this Report during your busy — #&4F | BEISERIC 2R HMELARE - A7 TH IR
schedule. To improve the report preparation and enhance the SFMMEREBERFUFELREEATSETIER
responsibility performance of Chervon Holdings Limited, we % @ HMEHAFZENENEEERMER -
particularly hope to listen to your comments and suggestions.  BEMBTHRABARNRWERIZU T A REL T -
Please help complete this page and give us your feedback by

selecting the following methods.

Email: esg@cn.chervongroup.com FBHE U : esg@cn.chervongroup.com

For Chervon Holdings your stakeholder category is:

RIERE - PR E AR T B RIZ ?

LGovernment  [Media LICommunity/Public LINGOs
BT pLe: ] HERR FEBRT 4R A
[OEmployee [JConsumer [IPartner (Suppliers & Distributors)
BT HEE SERH (HUERELHD)

What is your overall evaluation of this Report ?
TCHAREERNER?
[JExcellent JGood LJAverage LIPoor IVery Poor
of e - wE =
How do you think the quality of social responsibility information disclosed in this Report?
ERB/BARSIBENTEREEERES N0 ?

[IVery high LIHigh LlAverage ClLow [IVery Low
] B — iR e 2

What do you think of the structure of this Report?
ERBARME BB ] ?

[JExcellent [JGood [JAverage [IPoor [IVery Poor
uf 47 —f BnE =

How do you think of the readability of this Report?

ERRAR SR B ?

[JExcellent [JGood [JAverage [JPoor [OVery Poor
uf it — BnE =

Which part of this Report are you most interested in?

EE RS BB Sk B ?

[JAbout Us [JSustainable Development [JProduct Responsibility
R T AP A EERER EmAE
IWorkforce Development [JGreen and Sustainable Development [I1Public Welfare & Community Involvement
AT EREER HErRERR UNYNEan L !
What other valuable suggestions do you have for Chervon Holdings Limited’s responsibility fulfilment
practice?

CHREZRBERNTSETEEEENERNES
What other valuable suggest|ons do you have for Chervon Holdings Limited’s ESG report preparation?
TH RIEIERESGHEREMN E R AL

If convenient, please leave your contact information:

WRTE FETENBETR

Name: Occupation: Workplace :

" 5% THEENL

Postal code E-mail : Contact Number : Contact Address :
T im - HAE - B E G - ek Saubilie

We will fully consider your comments and suggestions, and promise to keep your information properly.
B RDZRENBEMER  WEAREZERECNER -

RIEERBR AR —T - —FFR 169



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chervon Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Chervon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 178 to 324, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement,

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

were of most significance in our audit of the

BN 2B AR S

FARENEE

BREFFTHEISRBERMANFTEHE - B 55
FEA ARGV BREAR/ERNFER - %F
FREERMNEFBRBGAMBRRLOARRE
ETRIEN - RMITEHZRSFFTRERERNER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Revenue recognition

LON:

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 216 to 217.

ARG AR ENFARFEL162217 AR EETH R °
The Key Audit Matter
BREEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRBABETEERBSEENSR

The Group’s revenue principally comprises sales of
power tools, outdoor power equipment and related
products.

BEEENBATERREHEEEHTAH  FPHED
BEm -

& 1 & A8

Contracts for different products with different types of
customers have a variety of different terms. Such terms
may affect the timing of the recognition of sales to these
customers. Management evaluates the terms of each
contract in order to determine the appropriate timing of
revenue recognition.

BAFABUEFRTRAERT LSRR ER - %F
ﬁﬁ REFERANSEFHENERERE - &1 Fﬁﬁg

& HEMER - LA T WA TR Y & @A

Revenue from sales of products is recognised when
the control over the goods is transferred to customers,
which is generally at the point in time when the goods
leave the Group’s warehouses, when the goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises or when the
goods are loaded on board of shipping, in accordance
with the terms of sales contracts with customers.

EmHERA :E&m¢ﬂ%%x%%ﬁMﬁw'ﬁﬁf
HEANNGN  ARERE -—ROPIEERBENESE
BB B X R P B TR o B A R B R

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHE R AR ERFEE TS

. obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls in relation to
revenue recognition;

. TR R RHEE I A B WA RE R A B R M BRI B 1
MRET - BREMETARIE

° inspecting customer contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify performance obligations and
terms and conditions relating to the transfer of
control of the goods and assessing the Group’s
timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of prevailing accounting

standards;

. SBIMITEERTE MERERT P AHAHR M
BB R O 7 I FE A Y 7B A0 2 TS DA BR AR R R i A T
HEEBWAERER

RIEERBR AR —T - —FFR
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Revenue recognition

WARER

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 216 to 217.

BRRTFE I BREN F4RE216E217 AR EFTHE °
The Key Audit Matter
BEEtEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMREFTBETEEERSENSRX

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of revenue
recognition by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

BPEEUAERSBREZSE  ARARESRENH

REBEBEZ — WHEEETEEHEBRLBATEREREAZE
%5 E B REHME A RERE
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comparing revenue transactions recorded
during the current year, on a sample basis, with
invoices, sales contracts, customer acceptance
notes, customs declaration forms, sales
statements, and other underlying documents,
where appropriate, to assess whether the related
revenue was recognised in accordance with the
Group’s revenue recognition accounting policies;

BRXHGRAFERNEFHRARER HEAL &
FREE  BEASREK  HERKREMBERXXMH
(@R ) ETHESLL - AFEEBKRARTER
BESBENBAER ST HERRER

comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and after
the financial year end date with underlying
documentation, which included goods delivery
notes, customs declaration forms, goods
acceptance notes, and sales statements, where
appropriate, to assess whether the revenue had
been recognised in accordance with the contract
terms and in the correct financial year;

132 SR BB 4 H TR SIS RO A E IR A BLARRE B 4%
(BRERRXNE BHEAHRK EnBEENEE
WK (WER) ) EITHEE L - AFFEZRARETD
RBHE S DR FRR RN LR B EFE AR
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Revenue recognition

WA TR

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 216 to 217.
BRI E I BREMN F4RE216 217 AR EFTHE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HEEtEE BMREBRPEEFBEEENSX
. confirming, on a sample basis, the amount of

sales transactions for the year ended December
31, 2021 directly with customers and inspecting
underlying documentation to reconcile the
difference between the transaction amounts
confirmed by customers and the Group’s
accounting records; and

. HEEREE2021F12A1B L FEERERERPE
TIHERZNESHE  UBEFEOHRARHEeBEEE
ERB etk M REEZBEABER &

° inspecting journal entries relating to revenue
which met specific risk-based criteria, enquiring
of management the reasons for posting such
journal entries and checking the details of
the journal entries to relevant underlying
documentation.

. BEEATAFERRIFENRAGRNO AR - ME

BESHEMZELERNEH RREABX oL
DRSS
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Ting Yuen.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

March 30, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD"))
BE2021F12R31BILFE  (KEx ([FE7x))37)

Year ended December 31,
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

Note USD’ 000 USD’000

k=3 FEx FET
Revenue N 4 1,757,784 1,200,902
Cost of sales SHER A (1,263,276) (832,190)
Gross profit EF 494,508 368,712
Other revenue EMUA 5(a) 5,180 5,801
Other net gain/(loss) Hpbas 5(b) 37,887 (3,140)

(EB8) F8

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (195,507) (179,447)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR EMEERET (103,610) (82,843)
Research and development costs iR N (50,151) (38,939)
Profit from operations KeERHE 188,307 70,144
Net finance costs B RS AR SRR 6(a) (16,617) (17,357)
Share of profits of associates JE (R & 2 A FI) 17 4,408 6,724
Profit before taxation FR B A U 6 176,098 59,511
Income tax expense FRSRiF 7 (26,377) (11,123)
Profit for the year F R FIHE 149,721 48,388
Attributable to: BAUF AL FEL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RN AR ARR 144,544 44,359
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 5,177 4,029
Profit for the year F R FIHE 149,721 48,388
Earnings per share BRER 11
Basic (USD) BEAR(ZET) 0.36 0.11
Diluted (USD) e (=) 0.36 0.11

The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial % 186%E324 B MM HEKZET HHREN—F»H -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

=IAN
N

B8 M E At 2 E W R

For The Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD”))

HZE2021F12A31BILFE  (UEx ([FEL))FT)

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note USD’ 000 USD’000
et FTEx FEr
Profit for the year FRFE 149,721 48,388
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEZEKE 10
(after tax adjustments) (HRIERER)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BT EEFTHEE
B h)EA
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability, AEEAaEFERE (0 46 (39)
net of tax MREIE) EXETE
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to BETE I EERT T HEE
profit or loss: BammEE -
Exchange difference on translation of financial LAThRE & (T 3EE 8,131 17,451
statements of subsidiaries with functional TT) ME B A EE
currencies other than US dollar (“USD") TR AE =58
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEZEKE 8,177 17,412
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EKEEE 157,898 65,800
Attributable to: BT AL BELS -
Equity shareholders of the Company AAEERE R 152,675 60,221
Non-controlling interests FEIT IR HE = 5,223 5,579
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWRZEE 157,898 65,800

The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
“re ISR LR

At December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD"))
W2021F12 8318 (U ([E7)) 7)

As at December 31,

W12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Note USD’000 USD’000
itz3 TERT T=r
Non-current assets FREEE
Properties, plants and equipment EN LS 12 193,464 143,020
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 48,919 42,629
Investment properties REME 14 - 1,262
Intangible assets BYEE 15 1,459 1,754
Interest in associates i ‘;%EQTE’M%ET& 17 66,492 57,201
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BARE  RESR 22 12,091 4,455
H it YR
Financial assets at fair value through NAR(EBEZEEEE 18 6,011 5,849
profit or loss (“FVPL") BRI b
(U2 BEE
Hﬁ ‘BT ANE iR
HZNEREE
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 28(b) 26,878 24,178
355,314 280,348
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at FVPL @ﬁfﬁfﬁ.ﬁgﬂﬁ 18 38,031 5,372
""""" BETAEHESH
THEE
Derivative financial instruments MTESRIA 19 4,744 5827
Inventories e 20 592,024 288,680
Right to returned goods asset REIEYE E R 3,073 5618
Trade and bills receivables B HRKFERERRE 21 298,379 254,368
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRI RES K 22 43,303 40,170
H i JEUGRIA
Taxation recoverable Al eI IA 28(a) 7,958 21,975
Pledged deposits ERER 23(b) 48,340 22,172
Cash and cash equivalents RekREZEY 23(a) 664,990 166,937
1,700,842 811,119
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER 24 424,948 290,459
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMTA 19 155 289
Lease liabilities MEBRE 25 6,114 3,161
Trade and bills payables BIORNFIBERENRER 26 513,252 247,529
Other payables and accruals HibENRBRESER 27 205,404 130,137
Taxation payable JERTIE 28(a) 8,251 6,628
Warranty provision RIEEE 29 19,655 15,175
Refund liabilities from right of return EEEFARTARE 30 4,252 8,218
1,182,031 701,596
Net current assets RBEEFE 518,811 109,523
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 874,125 389,871

The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial $186E324 B EEKZ ST HHERN—3 5
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
“re ISR IR

At December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD”))
W20214F12 8318 (UET ([T ])57)

As at December 31,

W12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note USD’000 USD’000
o3 TEx T=r
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 24 8,698 47,402
Lease liabilities HERE 25 17,121 13,517
Warranty provision RIEELE 29 32,291 30,775
Deferred income RS 31 4,150 4,152
Defined benefit retirement plans obligation FERMENRTEIEH 32 77 972
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEBE 28(b) 14,077 9,029
77,108 105,847
NET ASSETS EERE 797,017 284,024
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERKHE
Share capital U 34 444,621 50,279
Reserves @& 34 352,396 209,459
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders ERRERRTE 797,017 259,738
of the Company i3ty £k
Non-controlling interests FERER - 24,286
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 797,017 284,024

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on March 30, 2022.

Pan Longquan Zhang Tong
BER (37
Directors Directors
5% Bx

The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\\/T\ Eﬁz N //|b£%§

For The Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD"))
BE2021F12R31BILFE  (KEx ([FE7x))37)

Year ended December 31,
BZE12HA318LEE

2021 2020
20214 2020
Note USD’ 000 USD’000
k=3 e FET
Operating activities SRR
Cash generated from operations WEEHRE 23(c) 166,605 144,846
Tax paid BN 28(a) (23,583) (11,117)
Tax refund BEiRFIIA 28(a) 15,179 -
Net cash generated from operating activities = SEZBABREE®E 158,201 133,729
Payment for the acquisition WHEME  BE & (81,153) (31,557)
of properties, plants and equipment BERTR
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME - HWER 94 542
plants and equipment BAEMFTS A
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEURAREETE 250,567 144,091
measured at fair value through profit or loss BEZHTAZH
BamemEEN
FriS50E
Payment for acquisition of financial assets WL AR EBEE (264,015) (133,541)
measured at fair value through profit or loss BEZHAZH
BamemEE
OB
Disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBAR - F58 23(f) 32,740 -
Disposal of associate, net HEBE NG - FRE 1,287 -
Dividends received B B 540 4,167
Interest received BUF B 1,051 638
Net cash used in investing activities REFBHIARSTE (58,889) (15,660)

The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial 186 %324 B EAZ ST HHEN—EH 5
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\/T\

I/% kS //ILEE‘%

For The Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in US dollar (“USD”))
HE2021F12A31BHILFE  (KUEx ([ ))37)

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
2021F 20204
Note USD’ 000 USD’000
k=3 Ep FEx
Financing activities RE
Capital element of lease rental paid ERHEE ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ f5  23(d) (5,454) (2,517)
Interest element of lease rental paid BEREEESFEEHS  23(d) (878) (603)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRTTEFRMASRIE  23(d) 643,132 604,400
Repayment of bank loans EEBIRTTER 23(d) (552,355) (638,445)
Interest paid BEAFLE 23(d) (19,702) (15,552)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits for RITRVE T (16,111) 2,284
banking facilities (&), md
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W RE FEIT it (28,426) -
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT L MR TS SR 34(c) 7,856 -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares LNERAREERAE  34(c) 401,992 -
by initial public offering TEmAR e PTS FIE
Share issuance costs paid BT BRAD B TR AR 34(c) (15,506) -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of B AR B R 34(b) (15,000) -
the Company o) ds)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEFEHE 399,548 (50,433)
financing activities (FPA)RE&EE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY 498,860 67,636
EnFEEE
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNEER 23(a) 166,937 94,064
the beginning of the year ReZEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MNEERKENTE (807) 5,237
Cash and cash equivalents FREER 23(a) 664,990 166,937
at the end of the year REZEEY
The notes on pages 186 to 324 form part of these financial 186 %E 324 BB Z SV HHEMN—E 5
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

1

(a)

186

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chervon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Hong Kong on February 19, 1999 as
a limited liability company with its registered office at
Unit 04, 22/F, Saxon Tower, 7 Cheung Shun Street,
Lai Chi Kok, Kin, Hong Kong. The Company's shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on December 30, 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”)
are principally engaged in researching, developing,
manufacturing, testing, sales, and after-sale services
for power tools, outdoor power equipment and related
products. The information of the principal subsidiaries
is set out in Note 16.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2021 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest
in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies as set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

(b)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

(&)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies

The group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

- Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

- Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and cash flows
and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 2(q) or (r)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(l)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’'s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see Note 2(l)(ii)). Any the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognized in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognized at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(I)(ii)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

unless classified
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192

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognized
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see Note 35(e). These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which

- amortized cost,

represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see Note 2(v)(iii)).

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognized in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(f)

(1)

(9)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognized in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(v)(v).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedges of net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Any
gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognized in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in Note 2(v)(ii).

Transfers to investment properties shall be made when
there is a change in use, evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied property
to investment property. Since the Group uses the cost
model, transfers between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties do not change the carrying
amount of the property transferred and they do not
change the cost of that properties for measurement or
disclosure purposes.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment property, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (i) ME - BERSRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost Y- BEMREEZNA (REKEHTE
(which is, in the case of assets acquired in a business ANBEMS - ARERBAREE) I -
combination, the acquisition date fair value). ltems of WE - BEMKREHEBEEAREZTE
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less KOREEEYIRR (RHEE2(1)ii)) °
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(1)(ii)).
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant BEME - BERZEHIE B KA EM K
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct KBRS TAA - FHRBRBIER R
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs EIEE FTEM R AN Y S5 (1648 )
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring AR GEE LA B B A R SRR (R
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate 2(y)) °
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs (see Note
2(y)).
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal WENEEYE - WERBHEENDKA
of an item of property, plant and equipment are SESIE T DAMEET RS P B FUR FRE B8 B iR
determined as the difference between the estimated HEeB HANEEETE  WRRENEEZ
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the BEiEam PR o
item and are recognized in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of WEDRAEREEDE - BERKHEOHH
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated Al A E AT E - DAMIGE A AN bR B
residual value, if any, using the straight line method hErFIRERE (WE) - FIBWT :
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Estimated useful life
fE 5T A 62 A E R
Leasehold land (see Note 2(k)) HE T (RHTEE2(K)) over the period of leases
THEA
Plant and buildings = M AEF 20 years or
remaining lease terms
204 S R TH HA
Machinery and equipment H2s MR 5-10 years
5Z10%F
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment RE - EERRARE 3 -5 years
RENE:H
Motor vehicles RE 5-10 years
5Z 104
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents properties under
construction and machinery and equipment pending
installation and is stated at cost (which is, in the case
of assets acquired in a business combination, the
acquisition date fair value) less impairment losses (see
Note 2(l)(ii)). Cost comprises the purchase costs of
the asset and the related construction and installation
costs.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is substantially
ready for its intended use and depreciation will be
provided at the appropriate rates in accordance with
the depreciation polices specified above.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognized
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalized if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalized includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Other development expenditure is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired through business
combination are stated at cost (the acquisition date
fair value) less accumulated amortization (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see Note 2()(ii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized
from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

1))

IN=RRLET e IR
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Estimated useful life

AT EAFEH

Patents =5 10 years
104

Trademarks [EREs 10 years
104

The patents and trademark of the Group is associated
with different products arising from the combination
and acquisition from a third party. The useful lives of
patents and trademark are estimated based on the
remaining period of economic benefits to be derived
from the respective products to be produced relying on
the acquired patents and product trademark.

The Group estimates the period of economic benefits
to be derived from the respective products based on
the expected time period required from its discovery
to commercialization and other factors, including the
patent protection period, the historical life of similar
products, the characteristics of such technologies,
their update frequency and market requirement and
competition. Based on such assessment, the Group
considers that the expected economic useful lives of
the patents and trademark held by the Group are 10
years.

Both the period and method of amortization are
reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date,
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalize the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalized
are recognized as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

the Group

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

(k)

()

EXRETEE (&)

HEEE

AEERGONGEFHEEAORETREE
HBEEHE - WENRBIRREMS TE—
B AR SIE R BRI B ER RN - B
BHEBREELEEEE - EEFPHARE
BEEMOEBIEE  NARBREZKERATES

BT FTE AR - B e o
fEAZAFA
HWEHNBEHERH LIERELRS - AEH

BEMESIFHESH) RESHERS RE
EBIERELD AR AFEHENE—
HEH -

REERMBAS  AEERRBEBREEER
HEEE (HER /12 A EErEEE
ENREEEEEEERI) - EXEE
ﬁﬁﬁéEJiﬂ i AEEREREE
ERRERBEHEEE RN - BAREARNEHE
ERBENHEENRNEE RN R R E LR
aui%ﬁ-ﬂi

BEHECDERL  HESBEMLILEHEN
ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁa WiREEH RS H 7
KEEIH - MWZ M T EEAEEE - BILAN
FABEBHF KRR - RYIFPHERR - HE
%ﬁ&%%&$ﬂ%’ﬁﬂ%ﬁi%ﬁ%§

W%h%iﬂTWT“ﬁEﬁﬁvﬁmﬂﬁ
HEMNFREELN ST HMAERETH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(k)
(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalized is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(i) and

2(1)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents “right-of-use assets” and presents
“lease liabilities” separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognized in accordance with Note

2(v)(ii).

Credit losses and impairment of assets
Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U]

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;
and

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected

to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognizes
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realizing security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is twelve months past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U]

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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(i)

204

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with Note
2(v)(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortized cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U]

(i)

(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- properties, plants and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- investment properties;
- intangible assets;
- interest in associates; and

- interest in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment:

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U]

(i)

(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognized.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials or
supplies to be consumed in the production process or
in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
In the case of work in progress, costs include direct
labour and appropriate share of overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

(U]

(i)

(m)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

EXREFTEE(R)
FEBEREERE (&)

H I e EERE (&)
- B EIRER R

SRR EINNEEN S - MARERE
A EEENETHRANEE - Al
SRERERBRE - AEREZRER
B TEE -

REBERERNEEEAE TR
15 T WO (RSB MO 5 T 8 R 0 B
EIE o (B 6518 1 B R R B R
A -

K

FERERBEHBRETRIFEHE  ERXB
EEHENEEBRET  NELEBETH
RERBEMEAMHIPBTEABENE
o

PR AR B HFEROEREEALR -

AR IAEF R AERT H - BREAARE
BXZR ~ B0 T RS K i 15 48 2 3R B 3 B o
BORMELEWEMRA - MERMME © K
ABEEK S TIANEE LI &K A
(RBERELRENAE)

AE2RFERATEKBRETOMETEER
STRAEEREERFMFRAGE -

FER

REEEARAR T

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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208

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognized.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value and all losses of inventories are
recognized as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognizes the
related revenue (see Note 2(v)). A contract liability
would also be recognized if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognizes the related revenue.
a corresponding receivable would also be recognized
(see Note 2(0)).

In such cases,

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see Note 2(l)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(P)

(a)

(r

(s)
()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2(1)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognized in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
Note 2(y)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Group’s subsidiaries located
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognized as an
expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Defined benetfit retirement plans obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine the present value. The calculation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

(s)
(i)

(1)

(iii)

EXRETEE (&)

BEEEF (&)

%7 R 1E B 18 FI| K 7] SR TE t 30 AR 1K &t &) ¢ 54
(%)

BRESARRERSANFEERANIN - R
BAKEMBRRMERNEEERARS T
HANFOER A B R AR EHER M HRRE
EHIRAERSERRMA -

AU

mIEEAR e AEEE FX A EBER
ZIR S BEREZTEMEL AL - I B A
BRIERILEAIN B RERMIEHEERN
iR o

SRE 18 FIR ket 2|8 75

REBBRATRBARKTEAENEEFE
WAL ERESTE R RATERE RS
BREX ) R R A2 4258 5 B 8 B T 21T AT
B AETHENZENSBETUNE - B
/\T%E’JF“Eﬂiﬁ)ﬂi‘ﬁiﬁrﬁuﬁ,\itﬁﬁ
Ho BBy ASES KT RUE
?EE{%%E%XQ*Jri\JEH*XLmEX%Xﬁ
BRI TRESHLEFRAIRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(s)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benetfit retirement plans obligation (continued)

Service cost and net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised
in profit or loss and allocated by function as part of
“cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
or “administrative expenses”.
measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current period. Net interest expense
(income) for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the net defined benefit liability (asset). The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Current service cost is

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a
plan is curtailed, current service cost for the portion
of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and
when related restructuring costs or termination benefits
are recognised.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income
and reflected immediately in retained earnings.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset))
and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments

The fair value of share-based payment awards granted
to employees is recognized as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date by reference to the
market price or the valuer’s valuation of the underlying
shares. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the shares, the total estimated fair value of the shares is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognized in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the reserve).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

(s)
(iv)

®)

BEXREFTEER (&)

EBEREF (&)

LR AR A5 1T

[ B 4% 8 LA R 00 /B R B0 ST A 28 B RO 18
REERRBREERAS  #amNFHEEERE

e AR BEDINEL A2 EREKN
M EXGEEMGHENE - HEBATAR

JB 10T RE BRI A IR D - RFT R
B ehEBEOAELR BRI

AR BEAENFEBHANED o

BHFBOROBANEBEHANEN - 20
BEFEERNRF A BENERNAFTA
B RENFENERPNR A B
FRBEETRAXNAERBERR/EE  UH
EAREETHERR - CHA/AINHH
ﬁ@#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ”'MﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE%
ERHE (REHREELERORER)

Frig®t

FEMBHERERRBAANLECHAEEE
RAEENEE  EHRBAAREEREEE
REBENEPHINERER - EERE MR
BREERRERNESERN AR EAHE
AIRRSN - MARFRRAT - BEAHED BN
Hip iR e W aE R BN R R o

= AT IR Tk 2 R SR WA O TR HFE S A
B(ERARNERSHRCEMXEERMDN
MR) - Rtz A E R B R AE e )

ég%go



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured
based on the expected manner of realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(t)

(u)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realize the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities
on a net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognized for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognized for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognized under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(v)
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(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods, then the amount of revenue recognized is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

For a sale of goods with a right of return/exchange for
dissimilar products, the Group recognizes all of the
following:

(a) revenue for the transferred products in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue would
not be recognized for the products expected to
be returned/exchanged);

(b) a refund liability (see Note 2(w)); and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales) for its right to recover products
from customers and are presented as right to
returned goods asset.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognized in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognized in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.
measured at amortised cost or FOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

For financial assets

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognized as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position by setting
up the grant as deferred income and consequently are
effectively recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(w)

(x)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all
of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group
ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer.
The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities
(and the corresponding change in the transaction price)
at the end of each reporting period.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognizes such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
USD at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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(2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or a joint
venture of the other entity (or an associate
or a joint venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 18, 19, 21 and 35(e) contains information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
fair value of financial assets and fair value of shares
granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a) Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. Any change
in the assumptions would increase or decrease
the amount of inventories write-down or the
related reversals of write-down made in prior
years and affect the Group’s net assets value.
The Group reassesses these estimates annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(@)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the amount of loss
allowance for ECLs on trade and other
receivables that are measured at amortized
cost based on the credit risk of the respective
financial instruments. The loss allowance amount
is measured as the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit
loss of the respective financial instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument involves high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. When the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or more
than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise,
accordingly.

Warranty provisions

The Group makes provisions under the
warranties it gives on sale of its power tools and
outdoor power equipment taking into account the
Group’s recent claim experience. As the Group
is continually upgrading its product designs
and launching new models it is possible that
the recent claim experience is not indicative of
future claims that it will receive in respect of past
sales. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The determination of the fair values of ordinary
shares granted under Share Incentive Scheme to
the qualified employees of the Group involve the
use of judgment and estimates. The fair values
of share options have been estimated using key
judgmental assumptions set out in Note 33.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDBERE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are researching, AEBNFTEXBSEHTH  PINBIAR
developing, manufacturing, testing, sales, and after- B ABEE R BE - AR HER
sale services for power tools, outdoor power equipment EEIRS - HiE4b)BE T AEBEBEE
and related products. Further details regarding the HIE—FEFIE o
Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WA 2
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with HEFTENNRAREBRIBEET
customers by business lines is as follows:
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A318LEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 UsD’000
FEx FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ERVEREEREISHERR
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEFAITAHHBA
Disaggregated by major products BRXrEZEERHE
— Sales of power tools —HEFTHTE 885,207 661,081
— Sales of outdoor power equipment — HEFPINEY R 864,631 533,691
- Others — HAh 7,946 6,130
1,757,784 1,200,902
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers REBEEFFE]A LRI IR R B 5
were recognized at point in time. R o
The Group's customer base is diversified and 1 (2020: AEENEFPHEZTILHN - BE20214
2) customers with whom transactions have exceeded 12A31HIEFE By X 5BHBBAEE K
10% of the Group’s revenues for the year ended A10%MEF /14 (20204 : 28) B ©
December 31, 2021. The total revenue from the sales MEZEEFHESHTH - PN HRE
of power tools, outdoor power equipment and others REMETBIRABER718 B HET (2020
to these customers amounted to US$718 million (2020: F:537EBEL) BELAA - EERS -
US$537 million) and arose in all three geographical mEFIIENEEEPRBOFRIELER
regions. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising MI5E35(a) °
from the customers are set out in Note 35(a).
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(a)
(ii)

(b)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Revenue (continued)

Revenue expected to be recognized in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at
the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
goods such that information about revenue expected to
be recognized in the future is not disclosed in respect
of revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the contracts for sales of goods that had an expected
duration of one year or less.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines (products and services) and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

. Power tools: sales of power tools and power
tool accessories for consumer, professional
and industrial users. The products are available
under the FLEX, DEVON, SKIL and X-TRON
brands plus original design manufacturer
(“ODM”) customers.

° Outdoor power equipment: sales of outdoor
tools and outdoor tool accessories for premium
or professional and mass-market users. The
products are available under the EGO, SKIL
brands and some ODM private labels.

° Others: sales of parts and components to a
home appliances business.

(a)
(ii)

(b)
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

4

(b)
()

226

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (continued)
Information about reportable segments

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitor the
results attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is gross
profit. Segment profit is used to measure performance
as management believes that such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the results of the respective
segments relative to other entities that operate in the
same industries.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue generated by the
segments in their operations.

Segment assets and liabilities are not regularly
reported to the Group's executive directors and
therefore information of reportable segment assets and
liabilities are not presented in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAR%IM®ME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DH®E (FE)

(i) Information about reportable segments (continued) (i) HESEBER ()
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RBWAERNHYEEPRITNZHMA
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as MD¥E - UARABERS B R EBEET M
well as information regarding the Group’s reportable MASESRITREEABRENEEASE
segments as provided to the Group’s senior executive ENFEERBE TR ©

management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance is set out

below.
Reportable segments
BEDH
Outdoor Total
Power power reportable
tools equipment Others segments
EPIE FIEDRE Hit |ED WA
USD’ 000 usD’ 000 USD’ 000 USD’ 000
EH Txxn EYH Txx
2021 2021 F
Revenue from external customers RENMBEFHBA
Point in time PREFFE B 885,207 864,631 7,946 1,757,784
Gross profit from external customers ~ KEMNBEEHEFN K 236,042 257,716 750 494,508
and reportable segment profit HwESHHE
Reportable segments
wEDH
Outdoor Total
Power power reportable
tools  equipment Others segments
EHTA FPHEDHRE Hit o ba@st
USD’'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’'000
FTERT FET TET TET
2020 2020F

Revenue from external customers RENMBEEHRA

Point in time TABFE 28 661,081 533,691 6,130 1,200,902
Gross profit from external customers R EEFHER K 192,030 175,503 1,179 368,712
and reportable segment profit &N EHFE
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAR%SHME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) EHE(E)
(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment gross profit (i) WESEENEE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 UsD’000
SFESTE FEx
Reportable segment gross profit WEDHEN 494,508 368,712
Other revenue H A 5,180 5,801
Other net gain/(loss) Hip ek /(B1B) F58 37,887 (3,140)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (195,507) (179,447)
Administrative and other operating expenses 1T R H &4 (103,610) (82,843)
Research and development costs IR (50,151) (38,939)
Net finance costs BT RR AN F 5 (16,617) (17,357)
Share of profits of associates FE(EEE 2 N RF)E 4,408 6,724
Consolidated profit before taxation KB AT 4R & IR 176,098 59,511
(i) Geographic information (i) HIBEH
The following table sets out the geographic information TREIAEBPA RS EIFREBEERNM
analyses of the Group’s revenue and specified BERS - BEEEME UE BER
non-current assets including investment property, B FHBREEMERNEE ([FTIERD
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets BE] - E2YHEBERE - HEFWAER
and intangible assets (“specified non-current assets”). BEEFMHIZNE DR EEEREEMNIE
In presenting the geographic information, segment VA=

revenue has been based on the geographic location
of customers and segment assets have been based on
the geographic location of the assets.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARZSH®ME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) oEHE(E)
(i)  Geographic information (continued) (i) HEEN (&)
Revenue from external customers K EINEFEFBILA

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

USD’ 000 UsD’000

FET FET

North Americans b= 1,187,353 798,913
Europe BN 404,210 297,260
China i 105,537 69,295
Rest of the World TR E i [= 60,684 35,434

1,757,784 1,200,902

Specified non-current assets HEFnBEE
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FET
North Americans ik 17,754 10,296
Europe B 24,753 19,790
China H 201,335 158,579
243,842 188,665
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5 HWw AR Habls A (Ei8) B8

(LOSS)
(a)  Other revenue (a) HfbugA

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’ 000 USD’000
FER FExT

Government grants (Note /) BB (Y aEi) 2,831 3,650

Sale of scrap materials BEREE 2,089 1,058

Rental income ikl 260 1,093

5,180 5,801

Note: mat -

(i) During the year ended December 31, 2021, the (i) HZEZ2021F12A831HILEFE » K
Group received unconditional government grants of £ EE152,831,000% 5T (2020 F -
USD2,831,000 (2020:USD3,650,000), as rewards of 3,650,0003 7T ) B G IR B - 1E
the Group’s contribution to technology innovation ARAEEEB R R EREEERRE
and regional economic development. BRE H2E) o
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5

(b)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5 HWw ARHEMWE (FE) 38

(LOSS) (CONTINUED)

Other net gain/(loss)

(&)
(b) Hfsrz (F5R) B8

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEEn FET
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE 518558 (14,126) (11,497)
Net loss on disposal of properties, plants HEWE - BB RERHN (238) (43)
and equipment gVl
Net unrealized gains on convertible bonds AR RE (E 5 ok IR U e H R 19,230 -
Net realized and unrealized gains on financial AR EBETELEZEH A 1,190 165
assets at FVPL other than convertible bonds ERERNEMEERN
EEE R AEIRIRFEE
(AR ESHBRIN)
Net realized and unrealized gains on TEEmIEMNBEEIAR 10,129 8,209
derivative financial instruments KRB =)F58
Loss on disposal of associates HEBE N RMEE (677) (131)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 23(f)) HE—RWB AR 21,969 -
(HtE23(f)
Others EHAh, 410 157
37,887 (3,140)
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 R %1 A0 )
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREATRDE MG (GEA) LT &IB1.15
(crediting): i
(a) Net finance costs (a) BIBERAKFE
Year ended December 31,
BZ12831BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FET
Interest income from bank deposits 1TTFE A B A (1,051) (638)
Finance income U N (1,051) (638)
Interest on bank loans RITEFF & 16,790 17,392
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 878 603
Finance costs IR IDN 17,668 17,995
Net finance costs B TSR AN H 58 16,617 17,357
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBIRK
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
E FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ?& 164,907 130,788
Contributions to defined contribution AEH-FGRIRET B 24,541 21,782
retirement plans
Equity settled share-based payment expenses Az & E AR D BERD - 21,077
(Note 33) NEFEX (H:£33)
Expenses recognized in respect of defined Frige R B e @ FR IRET 2l 9 9
benefit retirement plans obligation EBEMHAZ (HiE32(a))
(Note 32(a))
189,457 173,656
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 6

(c) Other items

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

BRBL AT A ()

(c) HfEE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FEx
Depreciation charge HEER
— owned properties, plants and equipment —BEME  HEREE 23,211 17,858
- right-of-use assets —[FREEE 6,330 3,302
- investment property —REWE 37 206
Amortization of intangible assets B EERH 296 296
Research and development costs (Note i) TEEBAR (W ati) 50,151 38,939
Provision for impairment loss on trade and B 5 K H At FE Y GRIE R B 278 450
other receivables [E5tE BB

Provision for write-down of inventories FERREE 4,803 696

Auditors’ remuneration % BN Fr B
— audit services — TR 1,332 388
- non-audit services — FEEET RIS 182 174
Listing expenses i3 7,873 272
Cost of inventories sold (Note ii) Fr&EF R (M atii) 1,265,063 832,230

Notes:

Hiiz -

(M)

(if)

Research and development costs include amounts
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortization
expenses, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

Cost of inventories recognized as expenses
includes amounts relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortization expenses, provision
for write-down of inventories, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of these
types of expenses.

(i) MERABIEEE TRAK - T8 L#EH
MBS SLMX bt ALt
EEEENAED LM ()P (B
BHXMmE)

(if) BRAAAXNEFEXRABERE TK
A EREHEAY - FEBRERER
HHEE  BUeFEbh A DREBR
BRI EE6 () (SR

o
5)°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #GREBEBRAMSE
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit (a) #HABFRAKERE :
or loss represents:

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
TEx FET
Current tax BIHABi R
PRC Corporate Income Tax oA E e
Provision for the year FREE 5,547 1,101
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years B FEREM (B5E), T- (56) 152
5,491 1,253
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENEH
Provision for the year FNEAE 12,627 2,916
Tax jurisdictions outside PRC and Hong Kong — #/81 & & & 15 /B 75 Al %
EiEkE
Provision for the year FREE 6,696 5,869
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary Ry 2 KA Y B AR B [0 4 1,563 1,085
differences (Note 28(b)) (H17#28(b))
Total income tax expense 8RB A% 26,377 11,123
Notes: BiaE -
(i) Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations (i) REBSENFAESBHEANRER  #HE
of Hong Kong, the Company and the subsidiary in 20204 k2021512 A31HILFE - &
Hong Kong were liable to the Hong Kong Profits NAIRBENE A B EE16.5% KT X
Tax at a rate of 16.5% during the years ended BINBABFIEH -

December 31, 2020 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at a statutory
rate of 25%, except for the following specified
subsidiary:

According to the Administrative Measures
for Determination of High-Tech Enterprises
(Guokefahuo [2016] No0.32), Nanjing Chervon
Industry Co., Ltd. obtained the qualification as
a high-tech enterprise and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years
from 2016 to 2019. Nanjing Chervon Industry Co.,
Ltd. renewed the qualification in 2019 and was
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 2019 to 2021.

According to the prevailing PRC CIT law and
its relevant regulations, non-PRC tax resident
enterprises are levied withholding tax on dividends
from their PRC resident investees for intra-group
earnings accumulated beginning on January 1,
2008, at 10% (unless reduced by tax treaties or
similar arrangements), respectively. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 2008 are exempt from
such withholding tax.

Under the arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the
Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes
on Income and its relevant regulations, dividends
paid by a PRC resident enterprise to its direct
holding company in Hong Kong will be subject to
withholding tax at a reduced rate of 5% (if the Hong
Kong investor is the “beneficial owner” and owns
directly at least 25% of the equity interest of the
PRC resident enterprise for the past twelve months
before the dividends distribution). The Group met
the beneficial owner requirements in 2020 and 2021
and were entitled to a preferential rate of 5% since
2015.

(a)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

REEBRAMES (&)

mEBEERARERE (B

Wizt - (&)

(if)

A& 1 BT B R R 25% HETE
WEGHPREERER ([REME
1) - BLATATHEME A BRI

BB RMEEREEEIVE) (B
RHgEk[2016]325%) * R RIEBERIEA
RAREEEHEMEEERE - 2016
FE2019FZZ15%MATSHER
T MR REREAERARN20194
BHE - WHEEE2019F £ 20214
HEZEZ15%MFAESHERERREX -

RBRIT(CRELERESHE) LA
AR FTEBRFEREZHA
2008F 1 A1 HERFTHEE A
REPEERBERE T ESHRED 5
EU10% M TRINFR (R FF 12 B M 1h 5E =X
B HEIR) - 20084 2 A E £ MK
2 BCU s R B TRIO

RBC A E BRI 17T &R R 8 AT
SREESHMBMD EHRH AL HE)
RERBER  MEBREERIRR
BN RRBEESIKAT®E T —EA
BEREATRERMERD25% MK
B hBEERCEINTHEEEEEE
P& 2 B 69 B 20 1S $2 5 % A BT R B R A
FEHIB « REBMN 20204 2021 F 5
EREMAARELB2015F L HHE
ZH5%HEENEK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

7

(a)

236

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of
the United States, the Group's subsidiaries in the
United States was liable to United States federal
income tax at a rate of 21% and state income tax
at a rate ranging from 0.75% to 9.99% during the
during the year ended December 31, 2020 and
2021.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of
the United Kingdom, the Group’s subsidiary in the
United Kingdom was liable to the United Kingdom
corporation tax at a rate of 20% during the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of
Germany, Chervon GmbH, Flex Geschaftsfuhrungs
GmbH, Flex Verwaltungs GmbH & Co.KG, Flex-
Elektrowerkzeuge Gmb and EGO Europe GmbH
were liable to German corporate tax at a rate
between 22.825% and 26.825% determined by
municipalities during the year ended December 31,
2020 and 2021.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Australia, the Group’s subsidiary in the Australia
was liable to the Australia corporation tax at a rate
of 27.5% during the year ended December 31, 2020
and 2021.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Canada,
the Group’s subsidiary in the Canada was liable
to the Canada corporation tax at a rate of 26.5%
during the year ended December 31, 2020 and
2021.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Netherlands, the Group’s subsidiaries in the
Netherlands was liable to the Netherlands
corporation tax at a rate of 25% during the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.
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(a)

REEBRAMER (&)

meaRBERABEE - (8)

Wizt - (&)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BIEEBFEBUEDI RER - AKETE
ERMME R REE E2020F k2021
F12A31 B IEFEEIE21% 0 EE 1
SRR R F0.75% £9.99% Hy N Fr
BB ERAT -

B HR B ) PTAS BEARGI ROE R - A&
EERBE M ERREEE2020F &
2021F 12 A31 AL FEFEIR20% T
KRG MABNEF o

BREEENOMESHGEN EER
Chervon GmbH - Flex Geschaftsfuhrungs
GmbH - Flex Verwaltungs GmbH &
Co.KG - Flex-Elektrowerkzeuge Gmb
KEGO Europe GmbHZEZE{Z= 20204
2021512 A31 B ILFE B MEE
DA - BLERB22.825%£26.825% -
MR E HEE -

BB AT B AMEDI AR - AKETE
SRR A T8 KB B A RIE B E 2020 F &
2021 12 A31 H L FEEIZ27.5%H)
T R ANBAFE QAN o

RIBEMNEROEG RER - NEEEMN
S RKHE R REHE20204F %2021
F12A31 B IEFEEIZR26.5% 8 &
BAMERRRIH o

RIBET R EA AR - ANEEERH
KB BB A RIE A 2 20204 ) 2021412
A31HIEFEEIZR25% KT R MR
BRI -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ix) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Czech,
the Group’s subsidiary in the Czech was liable to
the Czech corporation tax at a rate of 19% during
the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.

(x) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Belgium, the Group’s subsidiary in the Belgium
was liable to the Belgium corporation tax at a rate
of 25% during the year ended December 31, 2020
and 2021.

(xi) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the ltalia,
the Group’s subsidiary in the Italia was liable to the
ltalia corporation tax at a rate of 24% during the
year ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.

(xii) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the France,
the Group’s subsidiary in the France was liable to
the France corporation tax at a rate of 28% during
the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.

(xiii) ~ Pursuant to the Vietnam Investment Law and the
approval of Industry Zone Committee of Tinh Binh
Duong, the Group’s subsidiary in the Vietnam was
entitled to a tax exemption for 2020 and 2021 and
a preferential income tax rate of 10% from 2022 to
2025.

(xiv)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the New
Zealand, the Group’s subsidiary in the New Zealand
was liable to the New Zealand corporation tax at a
rate of 28% during the year ended December 31,
2020 and 2021.

(a)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

REEBRAMES (&)

meERBERABERE - (8)

Wizt - (&)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

RIEETOEG AR NEBERES
KB B A B EE £ 20204F 2021412
A31BIEFEEIR19% N REME
FARF

R AR L F B B I 0 B0 4R - AR EELL
FIEF KO BT B A RIFE B E 2020 F K 2021
F12A31 8 IEFEREIE25% B R 5
LR R A RIFL o

RIBZEAFOEO AR  AEEER
R FIH I B A RIFE B E 2020 F K 2021
F12A31 B IEFEREIE24% 0T R 5
RMBRFAFH -

RIREBE MR AR - AEEE LR
KB BB A R E A B 20204 N 2021412
A 3181 FEEL28% KT R BN E
B ER

RE(EERERI R TFBETIERE
EERH - AEBTHENMERAR
R2020%F k2021 F =B 2B AFiE LR
2022F E2025F L10%WATSFHER
T RANTR o

RIRFT AR AR AR - AEEER
FARI AP B A R EE £ 2020 F k2021
F12A31 8 IEFEREIZ28% M T T 4
MFTEE A RFL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

7

(b)

238

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation between profit before taxation and (b)

tax expense and at applicable tax rates:

HYH AR

REEBRAMER (&)

BRBLAT RS EMA X U R E R R 2 [

Year ended December 31,
BZE12H318LEE

2021 2020
20214 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
SEESTE FET
Profit before taxation R F5 AT A1) 176,098 59,511
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRERIFIERER - IER 29,641 12,834
calculated at the rates applicable to profits PAERERNEE B RN E
in the jurisdictions concerned %)“L‘—é%ﬁé
Effect of PRC tax concessions obtained 1SR BB O 2 R R 2 (3,234) (729)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (Note) T—Hﬂmﬁfﬁiﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ% - 56 3,098
(K1)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERIN T B2 (1,831) (4,231)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized RERBMBABSBENHBEEE 2,928 1,916
Tax effect of bonus deduction for research HERA RSB HORETE (3,765) (3,420)
and development costs
Provision of withholding tax on RAOBAMETEINF B 2,638 1,503
undistributed profits
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFERE (B8, TR (56) 152
Income tax expense FriS i f sz 26,377 11,123

Note:

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses mainly represented
tax effect of equity settled share-based payment expenses,
expenses incurred by entities without assessable profits

and other non-deductible expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEEMH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BIEEB N EEHE383(1)MIER AR (HE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BE=HMmER) A0IE =35 558 = S
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information ST

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-based 2021
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
#eRE R Ukt A 2021
Eshe  REMAE [3j2A K et BENAR - H

UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000
T TiR TER TER TER TER T

Chairman 3R
Pan Longquan EER 16 1 445 - 632 - 632
Executive directors UiES
Zhang Tong & 16 178 445 - 639 - 639
Ke Zugian e 16 1 445 - 632 - 632
Xiao Jun (resigned on HY(R0215 - 9 - 9 105 - 105
August 4, 2021) 8A4REM)
Cheng Hong Kei (resigned BRiE (021 - - - - - - -
on August 4, 2021) 8F4REMA)
Michael John Clancy (appointed  Michael John Clancy 16 405 409 38 868 - 868
on August 4, 2021) (o021
8R4REZF)

Independent non-gxecutive ~ BUFHTEZ

directors

Tian Ming (appointed on B8 (120215 16 - - - 16 - 16
December 8, 2021) 12A8REZH)

Li Minghui (appointed on ZHIE(R021F 16 - - - 16 - 16
December 8, 2021) 1288BEZT)

Jiang Li (appointed on B (R2021F 16 - - - 16 - 16
December 8, 2021) 12A8REZMA)

112 1,021 1,744 47 2,924 = 2,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8 EEHM (E)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based 2020
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
Bo 24 FySE | WhHA 20205
Ezhe  RENAE BiERA % gt ERORR Eh

UsD’000 UsD'000 USD'000 USD'000 UsD’000 UsD’000 UsD’000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin T Tin

Chairman EER
Pan Longauan AR 12 152 316 - 480 - 480
Executive directors #417Es
Zhang Tong £ 12 196 382 - 590 - 590
Ke Zugian aLiE 12 170 295 1 478 - 478
Xiao Jun EES 12 21 139 8 380 - 380
Cheng Hong Kei )4 12 - - - 12 - 12
60 739 1,132 9 1,940 - 1,940
Note: Mt -
All the executive directors are key management personnel FIABMITEBERE2020F % 2021412 A31
of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2020 AEFEHARESENTIEEEASR » Lil#
and 2021 and their remuneration disclosed above include BRENTNEEEFELAEZEERAESRER
those for services rendered by them as key management BB - B Z=2021F12A31BIEFE @
personnel. There was no arrangement under which a FAREZNEXRENEEMFTIOLHE -

director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, nil
and four is director during the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2021, respectively, whose emoluments
are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals are
as follows:

9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

REHMAL

TN RAZEAY  TERMNEEHZE
2020F K2021F 12 A1 L FEDFIHIE
TES  EHFMENFsPHETE - HHEA
M @EnT

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

USD’ 000 USD’000

FEx FE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYA G 1,302 1,109
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 1,975 898
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET IR 71 75
Share-based payments LARR 7 72 EE i B9 -7 3K - 2,833
3,348 4,915

The emoluments of the five and five individuals with the
highest emoluments during the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2021, respectively, are within the following
bands:

HE2020F K2021F12831HILFE © &
SEHEMNRAZEAZEANFHIBIEUT
HEMN :

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BILLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

EAZE AAZE

USD nil to USD500,000 T EILE500,0003% 7T - -
USD500,001 to USD 1,000,000 500,001%7CE 1,000,000 7T 5 2
USD1,000,001 to USD1,500,000 1,000,001 % T £ 1,500,000 7T - 3

None of the Directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensating for loss of office
during both years.

HE2021F12A31BIEFE - BEARQA
EEREAAFHMH -

RAEFER  ARERENEETR AR
SEMAL (BREERER) N2 - £
RMAR SR E S INA R R E 1 6 B R S
BEERAE(E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Htt2EWKE
Tax effects relating to each component of other HE M P E S S EKE D RN B E

comprehensive income

Exchange

differences
on translation Remeasurement
of financial of net defined

statements  benefit liability Total
REBKE®E REEANAS
WERESE FEEHTE st
uUSD’000 uUsSD’000 USD’ 000
FEx FEx FEx
For the year ended #HZE2020F12H31H
December 31, 2020 IEFE
Before-tax amount A% 17,451 (43) 17,408
Tax benefit I A 2= - 4 4
Net-of-tax amount HMBRBIE 28 17,451 (39) 17,412
For the year ended #HZE2021F12H31H
December 31, 2021 IEFE
Before-tax amount Harem 8,131 33 8,164
Tax expense AR - 13 13
Net-of-tax amount MkiHBE o8 8,131 46 8,177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11
(a)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BRER
Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per BREARAREERANNFAEENARRAIER
share is based on the profit attributable to equity % 5 fE(E F) B 144,544,000 7T (20204 :
shareholders of the Company of USD144,544,000 44,359,00037T) » @A A ANHE T 19 BET
(2020: USD44,359,000) and the weighted average of RN
ordinary shares calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI T8
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Ordinary shares at the beginning of the year RFRHY i AR 390,000,000 390,000,000
Effect of right issues (Note) HENEE (M) 5,781,540 5,536,504
Effect of issuance of ordinary shares under the 1575 RSB AT 212517 X 3B A% 9,016,660 -
Share Incentive Scheme (Note 33) B2 (H17733)
Effect of shares issued by initial public offering A& X AR S 5 R BTN 197,030 -
(Note 34) VB (H1it34)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 74 oK 89 & 38 B% hniE F 15 8 404,995,230 395,536,504

at the end of the year

Note:

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the board of directors
of the Company on March 17, 2021, the Company
issued and allotted a total of 5,844,911 shares by way of
rights issue at the subscription price of HKD1.00 to the
shareholders. The calculations of the basic earnings per
share were adjusted retrospectively to include the effect of
the number of shares issues as if such shares were issued
and outstanding for all periods presented.

Hpit :

RIEARAEEER2021F3 17 BRBHAR
# o AR AR S XA A1.008 TR R
BB BB IT AL 4B5 5,844 011 %D - HE
BERKZOAEETTEPUERE - UBHE
BREHTHENTE  RORZERELIR
BFTA AR B BT ROmim— ik o

FER

SBERARAT —F=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 11 BRER (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFREF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based BEREFSRBNNOFEERAQAERRK
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the BE(LFI B 144,544 0003 7T (20204 -
Company of USD144,544,000 (2020: USD44,359,000), 44,359,00037T) » @A A ANHE T 19 BT
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares BT

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) ZERINEF % (E)

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 4 & 8 & 38 I% hn i S 15 8 404,995,230 395,536,504
the end of the year
Effect of equity settled share-based transactions L‘ME&:\L,E = AR B ETERY 1,800,977 24,072
(Note 33) 2 (B17#33)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR B AR i T & 406,796,207 395,560,576
shares(diluted) at the end of the year (#58)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
#rek

VR aR B R

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

12 PROPERTIES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) REEHK
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Plant and and and office Motor Construction
buildings  equipment  equipment  vehicles  in progress Total
BER BER KB EEB
g RE  RBOARE RE HEIR @t
UsD’ 000 USD’ 000 USD’000  USD’000 UsD’000  USD’000
TER TER TER FEL TR FE
Cost: BA
At January 1, 2020 7202051 K18 105,395 97,904 30,618 2,500 1,958 238,375
Additions NE 389 14,327 6,041 263 10,028 31,048
Transfers #E 247 346 1,133 - (1,726) -
Disposals & - (4,947) (2,225) (33) - (7,205)
Exchange adjustment ERTEEES 8,433 8,595 2,099 181 587 19,895
At December 31, 2020 and #2020F12 A31H 114,464 116,225 37,666 2,911 10,847 282,113
January 1, 2021 K2021561A1H
Additions RE 826 33,866 10,861 1,625 25,042 72,220
Transfers i 1,753 - 1,136 - (2,889) -
Disposals & (151) (5,309) (1,670) (185) - (7,315)
Disposal of a subsidiaries HERB AR (373) - (35) - - (408)
Exchange adjustment B 5 3% 1,150 (358) (447) 194 456 995
At December 31, 2021 2021512 431H 117,669 144,424 47,511 4,545 33,456 347,605
Accumulated depreciation: RIAHE:
At January 1, 2020 7202061818 (39,646) (59,307) (17,819) (1,583) - (118,355)
Charge for the year FEEAR (4,558) (9,891) (3,181) (228) - (17,858)
Written back on disposals HERED - 4,606 1,982 32 - 6,620
Exchange adjustment BN A% (3,292) (4,958) (1,130) (120) - (9,500)
At December 31, 2020 and 720206124318 (47,496) (69,550) (20,148)  (1,899) - (139,093)
January 1, 2021 K2021F1R1H
Charge for the year FEER (5,285) (13,047) (4,420) (459) - (23,211)
Written back on disposals HEREL - 5,294 1,640 167 - 7,101
Disposal of a subsidiaries HERBAR 258 - 32 - - 290
Exchange adjustment X AR (111) 782 140 (39) - 772
At December 31, 2021 2021512 A31H (52,634) (76,521) (22,756) (2,230) - (154,141)
Net book value: BRERE
At December 31, 2020 2020512 431H 66,968 46,675 17,518 1,012 10,847 143,020
At December 31, 2021 ®2021F12A31H 65,035 67,903 24,755 2,315 33,456 193,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

12 PROPERTIES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT 12
(CONTINUED)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a)
Note:
Certain properties, plants and equipment of the Group

were pledged as security for bank loans (see Note 24).
Details are set out as follows:

M - BERRE (&)

SR L (B34 R ()
e

AEENETYE  BERRECERRITE
IR YIEAR (REE24) < FHIBMAT ¢

As at December 31,

MW12A8318
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
FTEx FEr
Plant and buildings BEREF 44,226 44,724
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

13  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13 EAREE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets RIEEEERFE SN REEERTFE
by class of underlying asset is presented below: AT

Plant and Leasehold

buildings Land Total

HMEREF HELTH #st

uUsSD’ 000 USD’ 000 USD’000
FEr FEx FEx
Cost: BN :
At January 1, 2020 R2020F1H1H 21,746 29,399 51,145
Additions NE 3,028 - 3,028
Disposals HE (798) - (798)
Exchange adjustment M 54,38 2 465 2,033 2,498
At December 31, 2020 and R2020F 12 A31H & 24,441 31,432 55,873
January 1, 2021 20211 A1H
Additions NE 11,971 - 11,971
Disposals HE (1,528) - (1,528)
Exchange adjustment b H FA % (12) 726 714
At December 31, 2021 20214128318 34,872 32,158 67,030
Accumulated depreciation: Rt E
At January 1, 2020 R 202041 A1H (6,419) (3,897) (10,316)
Charge for the year FEER (2,707) (595) (3,302)
Written back on disposals o S R R[] 798 - 798
Exchange adjustment PE 5 % (121) (303) (424)
At December 31, 2020 and 2020412831 A K (8,449) (4,795) (13,244)
January 1, 2021 20211 H1H
Charge for the year FEEMA (5,694) (636) (6,330)
Written back on disposals HE R 1,528 - 1,528
Exchange adjustment P& 3 S 54 (119) (65)
AtDecember 31,2021 M2021F12A31A (12,561)  (5:550) o)
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(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13 FERAEEE (&)
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets REREESRNE NG REEEREFE
by class of underlying asset is presented below: AT -

Plant and Leasehold

buildings Land Total
BERETF HE L Bt
USD’ 000 USD’ 000 UsD’ 000
FER FTER FTER
Net book value: BREEE :
At December 31, 2020 #2020 12 A31H 15,992 26,637 42,629
At December 31, 2021 ©K2021412A31H 22,311 26,608 48,919
Notes: et -
0) The Group obtains the right-of-use certain land in 0) REBEFPEBIESE T0OFMNEEEE
the PRC under several operating lease agreements WEEEE T LA ERE - B 2021
of 50 years. As at December 31, 2021, the carrying F12831H HEEHEBAE L
amounts of leasehold land held for own use were BRI 1B 526,608,0003 7T (2020 4F -
USD26,608,000 (2020: USD26,637,000). 26,637,00037T) °
(ii) The Group has obtained the right to use certain (i) REBPR2021F %2020 12 A31 B 1k
office and warehouse properties through tenancy FERBHEENZESE THAEZERE
agreements during the years ended December 31, EMENFERE - HENHAERE A1
2021 and 2020. The leases typically run for a period F134 -

of 1to 13 years.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13 FERAEEE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HRNERERANEERENRZIEE S
recognized in profit or loss is as follows: N

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
SPEE FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by %A & E R 2D &9 &
class of underlying asset: BEWEER
- Leasehold land —HELTH 636 595
- Plant and buildings — B REF 5,694 2,707
6,330 3,302
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HEBERN L (Mit6(a)) 878 603
Expense relating to short-term leases HEBEEEEMNHAS 2,326 1,022
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HEARSREEHEEABRINBLNTNFE
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 23(e) DRI sE23(e) & 25 ©
and 25, respectively.
Certain right-of-use assets of the Group were pledged REBNETEREEEDERBITERE
as security for bank loans (see Note 24). Details are set YR (RHIFE24) o FFBWT

out as follows:

As at December 31,

MW12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 UsSD’000
SFEEm FE
Leasehold land HEL 25,487 25,503
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REWF
Plant and Leasehold
buildings Land Total
BMERETF HE L st
uUsSD’000 uUsSD’000 USD’000
FEr FEr FEx
Cost: A
At January 1, 2020 202061 A1H 4,308 492 4,800
Exchange adjustment P H AR 298 34 332
At December 31, 2020 and R2020%F 12 A31H X 4,606 526 5,132
January 1, 2021 202141 A1H
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWMB AT (4,622) (529) (5,151)
Exchange adjustment M 54,38 % 16 3 19
At December 31, 2021 K2021F12H831H - - -
Accumulated amortization: Rty
At January 1, 2020 7202041 A1 8 (3,217) (199) (3,416)
Charge for the year FEER (196) 10) (206)
Exchange adjustment fE 5 AR (234) 14) (248)
At December 31, 2020 and R20204 12 B31A K (3,647) (223) (3,870)
January 1, 2021 20211 A1H
Charge for the year FEEA (35) (2) (37)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBA A 3,694 226 3,920
Exchange adjustment fE 5 AR (12) (1) (13)
At December 31, 2021 K2021F12H831H - - -
Net book value: MRMENEE !
At December 31, 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 959 303 1,262

250

At December 31, 2021

2021412 A31H

The Group’s investment property is located in the PRC.

The Group leases out investment property under
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of
10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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15

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14 BEWHE(E)

As at December 31, 2021, certain investment properties M2021F12A31H XL (20204 :
of USD nil (2020: USD959,000) were pledged as 959,000 L) VA TIREMEEIERAREE
securities for bank loans of the Group (see Note 24). IRITE IR IR (RIHE24) -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15 H\EEEE

Patents Trademarks Total
=R [k st
uUSD’000 uUSD’000 uUSD’000
FERT FER FERx
Cost: A
At January 1, 2020 R2020F1A1H 894 2,172 3,066
Exchange adjustment e H A% 8 - 8
At December 31, 2020 and R2020F 12 A31BH X 902 2,172 3,074
January 1, 2021 20211 H1H
Exchange adjustment b H JA % (3) - (3)
At December 31, 2021 MR2021F12A31H 899 2,172 3,071
Accumulated amortization: L= £
At January 1, 2020 R2020F1A1H (345) (671) (1,016)
Charge for the year FEEH (79) (217) (296)
Exchange adjustment PE 5 (8) - (8)
At December 31, 2020 and R2020%F12 4318 & (432) (888) (1,320)
January 1, 2021 2021F1A1H
Charge for the year FEEH (79) (217) (296)
Exchange adjustment M 5%, 58 28 4 - 4
At December 31, 2021 R2021412 8318 (507) (1,105) (1,612)
Net book value: BRMEEE !
At December 31, 2020 2020912 A31H 470 1,284 1,754
At December 31, 2021 2021412 A31H 392 1,067 1,459
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(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15 J\BEEE (&)
Note: Mt -
Certain intangible assets of the Group were pledged as AEENETEREECERRITEIERAY
security for bank loans (see Note 24). Details are set out as IR (RKIFE24) - 3BT -
follows:
As at December 31,
A12H31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
USD’ 000 uSD’000
SFEEn FEr
Intangible assets ERAE 1,459 1,754
16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RHBARNERE

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
of the Company which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TREJARBETEIEFEAEEES
BEXBENHEBRBFE - MisknBEE
RER - BRIFRZBHA -

Place and Particulars of
date of issued and Proportion of
Company name establishment paid-in capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEAR
NAER Rt %% A BHEAHE FrERERL TEEH
Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
ARARE WEAERE
Chervon (China) Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC USD100,000,000 100% - Investment holding
(R (B BEBRAT) (Notes (a) August 2, 2016
KB (RE) REERRF (it(a) M 100,000,000% 7T 100% - REER
201658 A2A
Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. The PRC USD144,073,464 100% - Production of tools,
(ARREREARRA) (Notes (a) and (b)) September 26, 1997 research and
development, sales
ARRERBERRA (Wit(a) R (b)) M 144,073 464% T 100% - HETA -HE-#E
199749 A26H
Chervon (China) Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC USD6,200,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
(52 (RE)BHERRAT) (Notes (a)) March 29, 2006 and outdoor power
equipment
R (B BRERAR (Hit(a) M 6,200,000% - 100% HEEHIAR
200653 /29R VIS
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16

INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(CESHES A == F D)

RBARNRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and Particulars of
date of issued and Proportion of
Company name establishment paid-in capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEAR
NAEH Rt %% A Baarzi FrERERELA TEEH
Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
ARARE WELIRE
Chervon (China) Tools Sales Co., Ltd. The PRC Renminbi (“RMB”) - 100%  Sales of power tools in
(R (HE) TEHEBRARF) (Notes (2))  June 28, 2010 66,506,700 the PRC
U () TEHEEERRAR (M52 (a) HE AEE(ARE]) - 100% RPEREEHIA
2010567284 66,506,7007C
Nanjing Bovon Power Tools Co., Ltd. The PRC USD10,000,000 - - Manufacturing, Research
(ARBEEHTAERAA) January 30, 2007 and development and
(Notes (a) and (c)) sales of power tools
and outdoor power
equipment
HRBERYTIRARLA (W (a)R () i 10,000,000% 7T - - HE HEREEIHIA
2007417308 RPN NRE
Chervon (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong 100% - Trading and financial
November 8, 2010 Dollar (*HKD") management
5,000,000
K& (B8 BRAR &k 5,000,000/ 7 100% - ES5RUKER
2010511 A8R Mzl
Chervon Overseas Holdings Co., Ltd. Hong Kong USD7,148,520 100% - Investment holding
August 6, 2013
Chervon Overseas Holdings Co., Ltd. 7k 7,148 520% T 100% - REABR
20138 A6H
Chervon Industry (Vietnam) Company Limited ~ Vietnam Vietnamese - 100%  Production of gardening
January 21, 2020 Dongs (“VND") tools
46,600,000,000
REEX (H8)ERAR b 46,600,000,000 - 100% 4EEZEIA
20201 A218 HrE(EEE])
Chervon Canada Inc. Canada CAD1,500,001 - 100%  Sales of power tools
October 31, 2016 and outdoor power
equipment
Chervon Canada Inc. mex 1,500,001 MEATT - 100% HESHIAR
2016107318 FOgNRE
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16

254

INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

RBARNERE (&)

Place and Particulars of
date of issued and Proportion of
Company name establishment paid-in capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEAR
NAEH Rt %% A Bagrzi FrERERLA TEXR
Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
ARARE WELERE
Chervon Australia PTY Limited Australia AUD1,500,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
July 31, 2016 and outdoor power
equipment
Chervon Australia PTY Limited BAMS 1,500,000 7T - 100% HEEHTARPHENR
201657A318 f&
Chervon North America Inc. United States USD300,000 - 100%  Research in the North
February 25, 2005 American market,
product design, sales
and services
Chervon North America Inc. *E 300,000%7 - 100% EETHHE - EmRE
200552 A25H HE RRH
Flex North America Inc. United States USD1 - 100%  Sales of power tools
December 19, 2005 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex North America Inc. X E - 100% HEEHTARPHENR
20055127198 &
Flex Geschaftsfuhrungs GmbH Germany Euro(“EUR") - 100%  Investment holding
May 3, 2013 25,000
Flex Geschaftsfuhrungs GmbH 28 25,000B1 T - 100% REER
2013F5A38 (T8t )
Flex Verwaltungs GmbH & Co., KG Germany EUR19,000,500 - 100%  Production of FLEX
May 22, 2013 brand, design, sales
and services
Flex Verwaltungs GmbH & Co., KG f2E 19,000,50080 - 100%  HEFLEXREE - &3t - 8
201365 H228 ERR%
Flex-Elektrowerkzeuge GmbH Germany EUR3,580,100 - 100%  Production of FLEX
November 27, 1980 brand, design, sales
and services
Flex-Elektrowerkzeuge GmbH = 3,580,10080 - 100%  HEFLEXQEE - &3 - 8
1980411 A278 ERRB
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16

INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

(CESHES A == F D)

RBARNRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and Particulars of
date of issued and Proportion of
Company name establishment paid-in capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEAR
NAEH Rt %% A Bagrz FrERERLA TEER
Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
ARARE WELERE
Chervon GmbH Germany EUR25,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
July 1, 2016 and outdoor power
equipment
Chervon GmbH 2E 25,0000 - 100% HEEHTARPHENR
201657A18 f&
EGO Europe GmbH Germany EUR50,000 - 100%  Operation of EGO brand,
November 20, 2015 sales, and services
EGO Europe GmbH (e 50,0008 7T - 100% EEEGOMmAE - HERMR
2015511 208 %
Flex Elektrondradi, s.r.o Czech CZK500,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
June 18, 2008 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Elektronaradi, s.r.0 R 500,000 72 8 - 100% HETHTARFNGNR
20086 18R f&
Flex Italia S.r.l. Italy EUR50,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
July 11, 2012 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Italia S.r.l. EAH 50,000E1 7T - 100% HEEHTEARPIGNR
2012F7A118 f&
Flex Electroportatif Machines ET Accessoires  France EUR10,000 - 100%  Sales of power tools
July 11, 2012 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Electroportatif Machines ET Accessoires A 10,0008 7T - 100% HEEHIARPIGNR
2012F7A118 f&
Flex Power Tools BVBA Belgium EUR95,167,585 - 100%  Sales of power tools
May 15, 2005 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Power Tools BVBA il 95,167,585E0 T - 100% HEEHTEARPIFNR
200557158 f&
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INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

RBARNERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and Particulars of
date of issued and Proportion of
Company name establishment paid-in capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEAR
RAER Rt R A BHEAHE FrERREL TEXH
Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
XRAKE HWEARKE
Flex Power Tools B. V. Netherlands EUR31,800 - 100%  Sales of power tools
January 24, 2012 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Power Tools B. V. HH 31,800B0T - 100% HEEHTARFHBIR
20121 A 248 s
Skil B.V Netherlands EUR50,000 - 100%  Do-It-Yourself business
August 12, 2016 design in Europe,
operations and sales
Skil BV 5 50,0008t - 100% EUNEBAEBRT 28
2016587128 k&
Flex Power Tools Ltd United Kingdom GBP1 - 100%  Sales of power tools
November 9, 2020 and outdoor power
equipment
Flex Power Tools Ltd &R 15 - 100% HETHTARFHBIR
2020F11£9A s
Chervon Europe Limited United Kingdom GBP1 - 100%  Sales of power tools
June 7, 2007 and outdoor power
equipment
Chervon Europe Limited F3Gi 158 - 100% HETHTARFHEIR
200756 A7H s
Chervon NZ Subsidiary Limited New Zealand New Zealand - 100%  Sales of power tools
May 3, 2021 Dollar ("NZD") and outdoor power
1,500,100 equipment
Chervon NZ Subsidiary Limited Gl 1500, 1005 &R T - 100% HEEHTARFHNDAR
202155430 (ra%)) &
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16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) These entities are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The official names of these
entities are in Chinese. The English translation of
the Company names is for identification purpose
only.

(b) On January 4, 2022, Nanjing Chervon Industry Co.,
Ltd. (BREWEZEAER AT, a subsidiary of the
Company, completed the renaming process and
made its official name as Nanjing Chervon Industry

Co., Ltd. (ARRERERERAR).

(c) The entity cancelled its registration on September
22, 2021. Before the cancellation of the entity,
the entity was held by the Company and Nanjing
Chervon Industry Co., Ltd. with the proportion of
ownership interest 50% and 50%, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the Group’s non-controlling interests are diverse among
the subsidiaries. None of the Group’s subsidiaries has
a material non-controlling interest.

16

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

RBARNRE (&)

Hiiz -

(a) ZEEBRBRETERINEREER
Al e %Z%TEE E’] EE%@W%EPX%% °
P

(b) H2022F 1 F4H » ARQARKKIEB R A
ERERNEEEARAAERTERTF
B O EATZEERREREARA

Ej °

(c) ZBER2021F9 A22 ALt - »
ZE RS TEAT A,amm A &ER
RIERFER AT D AFE50%K%50%

CIRSK: 2 Eadad F\J

HE2021F K2020F 12 831 HIEFE » &
EEAEERESESHBARZEFES
B o REBEAMNE QR ESE KNIFITE

o

Bk
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(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17 REERTNER
The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s UTHERBEARAEBBERTNFE  HBE
associates, except Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision RREFEBERMBROBERATIN - %F
Technology Co., Ltd., all of which are unlisted corporate NE AR ETRREE  EmiGHRETA
entities whose quoted market price is not available: A

Proportion of ownership interest
as At December 31,2021

®2021512A831H
ity 4 34411
Form of Place of Particulars of  Group’s Held
business incorporation issued and effective by the Held by a
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
SRR EBTR r5E ARE  WEAR
BENRER SBEBKS  EHBHY BHETHE HRER 2] BE IEEE
Nanjing Chervon Auto Incorporated  The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB”) ~ 23.12% - 23.12% Manufacturing,
Precision Technology Co., 201,415,700 Research and
Ltd. (ARREFERTH development
kB BERAR) (‘Chervon and sales of auto
Auto Precision Technology”) parts
(Note i)
MRRERERTRIRG AR FMKL HE ARE(TARE])  23.12% - 2312% BUE HEREEA
RE([RERERERM]) 201,415,7007C BT
(Hiti)
Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang  Incorporated ~ The PRC RMB120,000,000 - - - Investment
Investment Co., Ltd. (B R
TEREREREERAA)
(Note ii)
BRIEREREREBRAR EMAKL i AR 120,000,007 - - - RE
(W)
Nanjing Suguan Investment Incorporated  The PRC RMB58,000,000 - - - Investment
Co., Ltd. (ARERREER
BIRAE) (Note i)
HRBRREERERAA BV i AR 58,000,0007T - - - RE

(Hiitii)

258 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology
Co., Ltd. was established in the PRC with limited
liability on March 19, 2012 and is principally
engaged in the production, sales and research and
development of automotive power systems and
relevant components. Its shares are currently listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603982.SH).

In September 2016, the Group acquired 38.8%
of the equity interest in Chervon Auto Precision
Technology from Nanjing Chervon Industry Co., Ltd.
of USD19,400,000 (RMB129,776,300 equivalent).
In November 2016, Chervon Auto Precision
Technology reduced its registered capital and the
Group reduced its investment to RMB46,560,000
on a pro rata basis. In March 2017, the proportion
of the Group’s interest in Chervon Auto Precision
Technology has been diluted to 31.04% due to the
new financing obtained by Chervon Auto Precision
Technology and further diluted to 23.28% in April
2019 due to the listing of Chervon Auto Precision
Technology on Shanghai Stock Exchange. In
June 2020, the proportion of the Group’s interest
in Chervon Auto Precision Technology has been
diluted to 23.10% due to the new issuance of shares
and increased to 23.12% due to the repurchase of
the shares by Chervon Auto Precision Technology
in 2021.

Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment Co., Ltd.
(AR IEHEmRERERRAT) was established
in the PRC with limited liability on March 31, 2014
with a registered capital of RMB120 million for
the purpose of a proposed investment project in
Nanjing.

The Group acquired 31.25% of the equity interest in
Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment Co., Ltd.
in 2014 through capital injection of RMB50,000,000
and the proportion of the Group’s interest increased
to 41.67% in 2019 due to the withdrawal share
capital of a shareholder. On July 13, 2020, the
board of Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment
Co., Ltd. approved a plan to liquidate of itself. On
October 31, 2020, the Group derecognized the
associate after the completion of deregistration.

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

17 REBEQFNER (FE)

(M

(if)

REEEARAR T

ARRERERTRMBNHERDA
R2012F3A19REPBK L RBAR
RE - FERFREPGHERGREBT
RRFEVAEE - SHE MW - HRME
RIR LBRAERZH LW (REAE
603982.SH.) °

201649 A + AR&EELA19,400,000%
T (HEENARE129,776,3007T) B/
PR IEREBRA AR ERERER
BT e 38.8% MxtE - 20164511 7 -
RERBREEENEREFRER
MAEBEELAEREREEARYE
46,560,0007T ° 2017% 38 * AR R
R E BB MBS RE - AEER
FERBERERIMNOESLIEEES
31.04% » WH2019F4 AR RIEFE
BEREMN EBEER S EmE—4%
BEHZE03.28% © 1202046 A » A
[E A R I YR B8 R 25 i B0 A A bt I 3
THEMEEE23.10% 0 YRARIES
BAE TR TR 2021 F & B B 19 1 1 A0
%23.12% °

BRI EBARBEREARQAARN
2014F3ABTBAEFREKZ/AERA
A EMERAR/ARKE 12088 - A
RERHNEZRREERR -

REBR2014FFBIEARKE
50,000,000 7T Y2 8 9 5UT 20 B P A 1
EERANBINI1.25% MM - MAEE
R IR 2019 F A — & IR R A E
RA MG I ZE41.67% ° R2020%F7 A
130 BRUIEHEREREBERAT
E=eEBEART S - 12020
FI1I0A31H  AEBNREHTHZRE
B IERERZBE AR o

FER
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. was
established in the PRC with limited liability on
February 5, 2008 with a registered capital of RMB58
million. It is an investment holding company and
does not have its own business operations. Nanjing
Yaoquan Investment Management Co., Ltd. which
was a wholly owned subsidiary of Nanjing Suquan
Investment Co., Ltd., was established in the PRC
with limited liability on August 12, 2008 with a
registered capital of RMB10 million and is engaged
in private equity fund management businesses.

Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. was the
subsidiary of the Company before December 28,
2018. On December 28, 2018, the Group entered
into an agreement with Mr. Xiao Jun, a minority
shareholder of Nanjing Suquan Investment Co.,
Ltd. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group agreed
to dispose its 61% equity interest in Nanjing
Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. to Mr. Xiao Jun at
a cash consideration of RMB10,921,300. Upon
the completion of the Group’s disposal on March
12, 2019, the Group’s interest in Nanjing Suquan
Investment Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Yaoquan
Investment Management Co., Ltd. has been
reduced to 24.88% and the aforementioned entities
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group but became
associates of the Group.

On February 24, 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement with Chervon (Nanjing) Management
Services Co., Ltd. (RE(ER) EEREERA
Al) (“Chervon Management Services”), which
is a related party wholly owned by Mr. Pan
Longquan. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
agreed to transferred 19.02% equity interest in
Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. to Chervon
Management Services for a cash consideration of
RMB8,373,300 (USD1,287,000). The consideration
was determined with reference to the valuation of
Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. performed by
independent valuation firm. The remaining 5.86%
equity interest in Nanjing Suquan Investment
Co., Ltd., which was held by Nanjing Chervon
International Trading Co., Ltd., was also disposed
along with the disposal of Nanjing Chervon
International Trading Co., Ltd. on the same date
(see Note 23(f)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

17

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 17

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

Summarized financial information of the material
associate, Chervon Auto Precision Technology,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,

it i A g
AR E

/N

EEH

REtE QA REDS (&)
ERAESASMBRERTHER

A5 A BT R RB T A R
BERESHRERRETTHE  LHE
AMBREPETSBETYE  BHO

and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the ™
consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:
December December
31, 2021 31, 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
USD’000 UsD’000
= FET
Gross amounts of Chervon Auto Precision RIESERBZRMASE
Technology’s
Current assets MBEE 252,668 177,239
Non-current assets IEMBNE E 294,726 164,743
Current liabilities mEAE (182,628) (99,448)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (77,171) (3,488)
Equity HEm (287,595) (239,046)
Revenue WA 250,472 201,006
Profit from continuing operations FELC TS FE 18,912 17,544
Other comprehensive income H 2wk 101 (66)
Total comprehensive income 2HENELRE 19,013 17,478
Dividend received 2R B 540 1,005
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in HASERRESERZEHiTE
Chervon Auto Precision Technology wHER
Gross amounts of net assets of Chervon Auto RIERERBRMEEFELS 287,595 239,046
Precision Technology #
Group'’s effective interest AEBEERER 23.12% 23.10%
Group’s share of net assets of Chervon Auto  AEEBfE(L RIETEREZRIME 66,492 55,220
Precision Technology EFE
Carrying amount of in the consolidated REMBHREANRE ST 66,492 55,220
financial statements
Market value Ti5HRE 343,228 143,643
Group'’s share of Chervon Auto Precision ANEEE (G RIE T BRI
Technology’s
Profit from continuing operations FE T TS FE 4,373 4,053
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w 23 (15)
Total comprehensive income 2HE U ARRE 4,396 4,038
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

UAREBEFTEEESEH T AEHIE
ENERMEE

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at December 31,

262

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 UsSD’000
FEx FET
Financial assets at FVPL — non-current DARBETEEEEEHTA
EHEZNESREE -
JEENER
— Insurance product — RBE R 6,011 5,844
— Unlisted units in investment funds —KREESFHKR ETEM - 5
6,011 5,849
Financial assets at FVPL — current DARBESTEEEEEHTA
EHERNESREE - H
- Structured deposits and wealth — WM R IR E & - 5,372
management products
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 38,031 -
38,031 5,372
44,042 11,221

The Group’s non-current balances of financial assets at
FVPL represent a life insurance product issued by an
independent third-party insurance company and units
in investment funds incorporated in the PRC which are
primarily invested in the manufacturing, healthcare and
new energy sectors.

The Group’s current balances of financial assets at
FVPL as at December 31, 2020 represent structured
deposits and wealth management products issued by
various financial institutions in the PRC with a floating
return which will be paid together with the principal
on the maturity date. The Group’s current balances
of financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2021
represent convertible bonds issued by Chervon Auto
Precision Technology trading securities which are held
by the Group for trading purposes.

The analysis on the fair value measurement of the
Group’s above financial assets is disclosed in Note
35(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

19 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 19 fT4£€mI A
As at December 31,
R12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 UsSD’000
FEx FE7
Assets BE
— Foreign currency forward contracts (Note i)  — SNEREAA 4 (H177i) 4,583 5,697
— Foreign currency option contracts (Note /) — NS ERARES K0 (WY aEi) 161 130
4,744 5,827
Liabilities afE
— Foreign currency forward contracts (Note i)  — SNERHEAA 49 (A7) 86 192
— Foreign currency option contracts (Note /) — NS ERRES K0 (WY ati) 63 97
— Interest rate swap contract (Note if) — MR EBE L (B i) 6 -
155 289

Notes: Bzt -

(i) The Group entered into several foreign currency (i) REEEETFIRITRI L TH TIMNEERH
forward contracts and foreign currency option AW INEERRES A - DARRIKRE S T IA
contracts with certain banks to mitigate the ETNEBTEHERN SR ITE R R EK B
currency risk arising from certain of its bank loans ELENEBERR -
and receivables denominated in USD and EUR.

(i) The Group entered into an interest rate swaps (i) REBF BT T EEEEL - LA
contracts with bank to mitigate the risk of interest WARSE T Y8 Rt B RRITERE
rate fluctuation arising from certain bank loans at H BRI EE o
floating interest rate.

The fair value changes of above derivative financial LTRSS MI AN AR BEEZHNHAMF

instruments were recognised in other net gains and Wz RSB ER -

losses.

The analysis on the fair value measurement of the FHALMSREEN AR BEFESMHEE

above financial assets is disclosed in Note 35(e). RHIFE35(e) ©
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

20 INVENTORIES 20 #E

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of (a) #HAMBERRARTINEFEESRE:
financial position comprise:

As at December 31,

®W12A831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FET
Raw materials JR#4 ¥ 140,451 56,085
Consumables JHFEM 6,565 3,729
Semi-finished goods F R M 53,354 32,997
Finished goods R & 399,088 201,516
599,458 294,327
Write down of inventories FEMA (7,434) (5,647)
592,024 288,680

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) HBRAEBRIRTABZNEFESESI MW
recognized as an expense and included in profit T
or loss is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31HILLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

USD’000 USD’000

FEx FE=T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERAE 1,263,276 832,190
Written-off of inventories FEMOR (3,016) (656)
Provision for write-down of inventories T &R B 1 4,803 696
1,265,063 832,230

IR ER R —FRKRE -

All inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

20 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 20 FE(#)
(c) Certain inventories of the Group were pledged as (c) AEENETEECEABTERERY
security for bank loans (see Note 24). Details are KIF (RF24) - F#ERFIWOT :
set out as follows:
As at December 31,
MW12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 UsSD’000
FEx FET
Inventories eSS 124,040 98,519
21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21 BEZRWFEREREZE
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note USD’000 UsSD’000
Kt EP FET
Trade debtors and bills receivable, EZEWRERERERE -
net of loss allowance MREERE
— measured at amortised cost — REER AT E ()
Trade receivables E 5 EGRIE 168,880 164,475
Bills receivables R EE 10,945 4,746
— measured at FVOCI —NUARrEEFS=ZEHZBFA (i)
Hip2mEl a2
Trade receivables B 5 EWGE 118,554 85,147
208,379 254,368

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Bills receivable primarily represent short-term bank
acceptance notes receivable that entitle the Group
to receive the full face amount from the banks at
maturity, which generally ranges from 3 to 12 months
from the date of issuance. Historically, the Group had
experienced no credit losses on bills receivable.

FT A B 5 BUWIA R B E BB R —F
migmE o

FEU S5 = A5 T AN SR BAE R DA B Hi by
B RTT W B B HY Y 2 B0 T B Y FE S HAERTT
AARE  ZERBRBFERTEHELSH
3E12fAA - BE - AEERBIEKRERE
HREEERNER -
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21 EZ3EWFEREKVERS (&)

(CONTINUED)

(i) As at December 31, 2021, certain trade debtors (i) %2021@12)5]31 B 81156%000%
of USD81,562,000 (2020: USD92,175,000) were 7t (20204 + 92,175,0003% L) MI%&
pledged as securities for bank loans of the TEZEAEGKIAE 5 BIMEFERAR
Group (see Note 24). EERTERHEIR (RIHE24) -

(i) Certain amounts of the Group’s trade debtors (i)  AEBUARAAEEFEEEEZHTA
and bill receivables measured at FVOCI are Hfth 2 35 10 B 5 18 KGR IA K B I
trade debtors factored to banks in accordance REEE Tigﬁﬁmﬁﬁg%mlﬁﬁ%ﬁ
with receivables purchase agreements. These B RIRITIRIZE0 H 5 IR © Bt
factored trade debtors were held for both WEIE KR 2R RIHERT R SRR
collection of contractual cash flows and sales. B E 5 BUGR - H 5 RIKEIRR
The contractual cash flows of the trade debtors BRREREBRERBMNRK - RAE
comprised solely payments of principal and {E“‘@JE/\\E/@%EH&@WE&M F TR
interest. Changes in fair value are recognised HIE BB RN R AR
in other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of ECLs.

Aging analysis R

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis HEREHR  ERERABIANREEE

of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice 1 0 5 5 8 LSRR I B SR AR 0 i e 20 AT A0

date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: L

As at December 31,
M12HA31A
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FET FET

Within 6 months 61E AR 175,598 165,140

Over 6 months but within 12 months 6EANEERI2EAR 3,731 3,153

Over 12 months 1218 A LA = 496 928

179,825 169,221

Trade and bills receivables are due within 30 -180 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are set out in Note 35(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 FEfMFIE RRLSRHMEWTRIE
RECEIVABLES

As at December 31,

R12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
TEx FExT
Current ENEl
Amounts due from related parties FE UL BA S T BOR - 21,487
Value added tax recoverable AT EHEET 34,358 10,633
Other tax recoverable Hoth AT Uy [B1 8 18 495 478
Prepayments for materials and expenses MRTER FE KX 5,445 3,193
Advances to employee M{E B fELH M 2% 865 1,011
Other deposits and receivables EmRES REWRIAE 2,140 4,616
43,303 41,418
Less: loss allowance R B ERE = (1,248)
43,303 40,170
Non-current JE BN ER
Prepayments for properties, plants and Y - WE REEENKIA 9,709 1,944
equipment
Advances to staff ME S EHAEE 2,382 2,511
12,091 4,455
All of prepayments, deposits and other receivables TARFRIA ~ RE S N H A U GRIA R AT A B
current balances are expected to be recovered or MBI RN —F AR E KRB

recognized as expense within one year.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 HReRRESZEYRCEHEER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HERBELEEYERE:
As at December 31,
R12A831H
2021 2020
2021%F 2020
USD’ 000 UsSD’000
SFEaTR T
Cash at bank RITHE 664,926 166,862
Cash in hand FoERE 64 75
664,990 166,937
(b) Pledged deposits comprise: (b) EHREREHE:
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FExT
Pledged deposits for EARIFRK
- issuance of bills payable — BITENERE 21,816 11,759
— issuance of banking facilities — BNIRITRLE 26,524 10,413
48,340 22,172
The pledged deposits will be released upon the BERERERAEEEEERBELENREE
settlement of letters of credit and bills payable and by SMARAIRTT AL A B HA1E AR R o

the Group or the expiry of relevant banking facilities.
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23

(c)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of profits before taxation to cash

generated from operations

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

23 HBRERRSEEYRCEAFR(E)

(c) KRBARNEESLRERENER

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20215 2020F
Notes USD’000 USD'000
His TR TEn
Profit before taxation BrE A FE 176,098 59,511
Adjustments for: RE:
Depreciation of properties, plants and equipment %1% - BE K& EITE 6(c) 23,211 17,858
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6(c) 6,330 3,302
Depreciation of investment property REMERE 6(c) 37 206
Amortization of intangible assets EVEERH 6(c) 296 296
Net finance costs B RSP FRE 6(a) 16,617 17,357
Share of profits of associates [ A RIFE 17 (4,408) (6,724)
Net losses on disposal of properties, HENE BERIBENSEFE  50b) 238 43
plants and equipment
Net unrealized gains on convertible bonds AAREHFRERKEFE (19,230) -
Net realized and unrealized gains on financial WRABEFEEEEHHA (1,190) (165)
assets at FVPL other than convertible bonds EHERNEREEN
BEERAERUETE
(ATAREHRIN
Net realized and unrealized gains on MTESRMIANBERR 5(b) (10,129) (8,209)
derivative financial instruments RERWHFE
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBERRNER 5(b) 677 131
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR MK 5(b) (21,969) -
Equity settled share-based payment expenses RS E ARG AERANTAE 33 - 21,077
(Reversal)/provision for impairment loss on B 5 R E M EWRIER 6(c) 278 450
trade and other receivables RERFE (EE),/ B
Provision for write-down of inventories FEMRHRE 6(c) 4,803 696
Amortization of deferred income fiR e 5 99 91
Foreign exchange loss EXER 11,838 11,497
Operating profit before changes in EEEEBANLERE 183,596 117,417
working capital
Increase in pledged deposits HIRFE M (10,057) (1,263)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEEM,/ B (305,131) 8,318
Increase in trade and bills receivables B S EWGR R KR EEM (44,289) (118,954)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BEHE - RES REMEKFIREM (3,003) (8,616)
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in right to returned WREEEQEFRD,/(Em) 2,545 (3,541)
goods asset
Increase in trade payables B ENFUREM 265,723 83,720
Increase in other payables and accruals Hit R FIE R BT B REM 75,267 40,456
Increase in warranty provision RIGEEE 5,996 22,244
(Decrease)fincrease in refund liabilities from REEMBRTEE (L), Em (3,966) 5,141
right of return
Decrease in defined benefit retirement RERTIRKGEIZERD (76) (76)
plans obligation
Cash generated from operations REmBRE 166,605 144,846
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 HR&RBESEEYREBEHRER(H)
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (d) ®BEEHELENEBEHIR

activities

The table below details changes in the Group's TERAMRTAEEEREETHEENBED
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash g (EEReRIIFREEY) - ETHE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing iE’]E{iﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%mi_}ﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁi\/ﬁiﬁ’\$
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or SEGARERERAEDBHBZLIEAK
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s BRELZFNREREMNEE -

consolidated cash flow statements as cash flows from
financing activities.

Bank Interest Lease
loans payable liabilities Total
BITER EARIE HERE st

usD’000 usD’ 000 UsD’ 000 UsD’ 000

TER Txn TER TER
(Note 24) (Note 27) (Note 25)
(Kizt24)  (Watz7)  (Hfat2s)

At January 1, 2020 7202061818 356,725 1,130 15,815 373,670

Changes from financing cash flows: BEBRESHRELE :

Proceeds from bank loans RITERMS A 604,400 - - 604,400
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (638,445) - - (638,445)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B NHERSHE LRI D - - (2,517) (2,517)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BN HAEMEHFEHD - - (603) (603)
Interest paid ERFLE - (15,552) - (15,552)
Total changes from financing cash flows I & IR & 2 & 84858 (34,045) (15,552) (3,120) (52,717)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 15,181 92 352 15,625
Other changes: Hit# 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTLHEEEEN - - 3,028 3,028
entering into new leases HEBELM
during the year
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) MEFRXZ (KiiF6(a)) - 17,392 603 17,995
Total other changes Hth & 818358 - 17,392 3,631 21,023
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23

(d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

23 HBRERRSEEYRCEAFR(E)

(d) REFDELENEEHR(E)

Bank Interest Lease
loans payable liabilities Total
BITEN EAFIE HESE @t

USD’000 UsD’000 USD’000 USD’000

TER Txn TR TERT
(Note 24) (Note 27) (Note 25)
(Hiat24)  (HfEE27)  (BtEE25)

At December 31, 2020 and A2020F12A318 & 337,861 3,062 16,678 357,601
January 1, 2021 2021F1H1H
Changes from financing cash flows: BERESHEEE :
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFREFHE 643,132 = = 643,132
Repayment of bank loans EERRITER (552,355) - - (552,355)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ EffHEEHEHE LIS - - (5,454) (5,454)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B AEMAEHFEIHHD - - (878) (878)
Interest paid BRFE - (19,702) - (19,702)
Total changes from financing cash flows B¢ & IR & nE 845 90,777 (19,702) (6,332) 64,743
Exchange adjustments BE R A% 5,008 602 40 5,650
Other changes: Hip &5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from FRNFLFHEEER - - 11,971 11,971
entering into new leases HEAEEM
during the year
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) FBEFRX (Kit6(a)) - 16,790 878 17,668
Totalotherchanges  _ AtE®e®m T 16790 12849 20639
At December 31, 2021 7A2021%F12831H 433,646 752 23,235 457,633
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 HRERRESZEEYRSERFR(E)
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(e) Total cash flow for leases (e) HEBRSREHAE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases AHERSRERNSHEAEENTISE

comprise the following:

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214%F 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FEx F=
Within operating cash flows REEHESREN 2,326 1,022
Within financing cash flows REBEREREN 6,332 3,120
8,658 4,142
These amounts relate to the following: ZERIEETSXIERR

Year ended December 31,

BZ12B831BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FE1
Lease rentals paid gfEERS 8,658 4,142
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

23

(f)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries

During the reporting periods, the Group disposed its

interests in certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Aggregate of assets and liabilities at the date of

disposal over which control was lost:

(CESHES A == F D)

RERRESLEYREEFEFR (H)

(f) HERWBARNER

RBEHE - AEELETERPENET

HiE AR A MR ©

'

REERHERERGENEERAER

December 31,
2021
2021%12H31H
(Notes i&ii)

(HtatiRii)

USD’000

FEx

Properties, plants and equipment (Note 12) VI - B KGR (HiE12) 118

Investment property (Note 14) LEWMZE (et 14) 1,231

Financial assets at FVPL Ak BEFEAHEEZSHA 444

EHEENEREE

Interest in a subsidiary R—EME R R M= 672

Cash Be 925

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERREIE - (RES R EH M ERGRIE 12,054

Other payables and accruals HAhpERIB R EETE A (2,184)

Non-controlling interests FEFE R R (1,564)

Net assets disposed BREEEFRE 11,696
Gains on disposal of interests in subsidiaries: HERK B A RR AU

December 31,

2021

2020F12H31H

USD’ 000

FEET

Consideration RIE 33,665

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (11,696)

Gains on disposal of interests in subsidiaries HERH BRSNS 21,969

(Note 5(b))

(H15£5(b))
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)
(U] Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (continued) ()

Analysis of net cash in respect of the disposal of

RERBREEEYRECERER (R

HERKE QA ER (/)
BRLENMBARMNEDNFRE DTN

interests in subsidiaries is as follows: Nk

December 31,

2021

2021F12H31H

USD’000

FEx

Consideration K& 33,665

Less: cash disposed of AW ERERe (925)

Proceeds received for disposal of interests T E R B O 2 U B Y 32,740

in subsidiaries Frissk1a

Notes: Kist

(i) On February 24, 2021, the Group has entered into
an agreement with Chervon Management Services,
which is a related party wholly owned by Mr. Pan
Longquan. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
agreed to transferred 85% equity interest in Nanjing
Chervon International Trading Co., Ltd. to Chervon
Management Services for a cash consideration of
RMB47,813,800 (USD7,351,000 equivalent). The
consideration was determined with reference to the
valuation of Nanjing Chervon International Trading
Co., Ltd. performed by independent valuation firm.

(i) On February 25, 2021, the Group has entered into
an agreement with Chervon Management Services,
which is a related party wholly owned by Mr. Pan
Longquan. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
agreed to transferred 100% equity interest in
Nanjing Jiuhao Electromechanical Industry Co.,
Ltd. to Chervon Management Services for a cash
consideration of RMB171,160,100 (USD26,314,000
equivalent). The consideration was determined
with reference to the valuation of Nanjing Jiuhao
Electromechanical Industry Co., Ltd. performed by
independent valuation firm. The registration of the
transfer was completed on March 8, 2021, upon
which Nanjing Jiuhao Electromechanical Industry
Co., Ltd. ceased to be the Group’s subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24

BANK LOANS 24

The maturity profile for the interest-bearing bank loans
of the Group and the Company at the end of each
reporting period is as follows:

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(KETIZTIFVT - BHBEHH)
RITERK

AEBRARRRNEBERITERNEREN
REVBIHERAT

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
FE5x FET
Short-term bank loans MESRTTE R 367,856 288,227
Current portion of long-term bank loans RERITERHBVAREE 5 57,092 2,232
Within 1 year or on demand 1FASIEELK 424,948 290,459
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBER2FER 784 47,402
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EFERBENSER 5,880 -
More than 5 years HBiEsF 2,034 -
8,698 47,402
433,646 337,861

At the end of each reporting period, the bank loans
were secured and guaranteed as follows:

REBESHR - |RITEFERREROT

As at December 31,

M12HA318
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 UsSD’000
FEx FET

Bank loans RITER
— Secured — 5 40,287 25,076
- Secured and guaranteed — BEBEER 150,570 123,477
— Guaranteed — BER 241,931 187,884
- Unsecured and unguaranteed — EEAEER 858 1,424
433,646 337,861
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=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

24 BANK LOANS (CONTINUED) 24 RITERK(E)
Notes: Htet -
(i) The Group’'s bank loans were secured by certain (i) REBMBOBRTERUNAEEANETEE
assets of the Group. An analysis of the carrying EER - ZZEEENREESTOT -

value of these assets is as follows:

As at December 31,

A12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 uSD’000
Fxx F=
Plants and buildings (Note 12) B RAEF (Hat12) 44,226 44,724
Leasehold land (Note 13) HE L4 (H2F13) 25,487 25,503
Investment properties (Note 14) REME (Hit14) = 959
Intangible assets (Note 15) EBAE (Mi15) 1,459 1,754
Inventories (Note 20) T8 (Ktat20) 124,040 98,519
Trade and bills receivables (Note 21) B 5 WG IE R BRI 81,562 92,175
(Hiat21)
Pledged deposits (Note 23(b)) BT R (H7723(b)) 26,524 10,413
Other assets Hib&EE 4,252 6,801
307,550 280,848
(ii) Certain bank facilities granted to the Group were (i) 20204 K 2021F12 A31H « PR
guaranteed by Mr. Pan Longquan, the ultimate LEEE TRITRHE AR EE R HLIE
controlling shareholder of the Group, Chervon & IR ERE R 5o & - Chervon Global
Global Holdings Limited and pledged with the Holdings Limited#&4{R « W LA RIEHER
shares of Chervon Auto Precision Technology held Bl AR AR AR RIETEE
by Chervon Precision Technology Holdings Limited R B -
at December 31, 2020 and 2021.
As at December 31,
A12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
S=b FET
Guarantees and pledges to banks for BB HRITEE MM TRITH
granting banking facilities EREER - 151,557
Pursuant to the agreements on August 18, 2021 and RIE2021F8A18H K2021F9A9H M
September 9, 2021 with banks, guarantees provided WATEI LM aE - BEERLEE KChervon
by Mr. Pan Longquan and Chervon Global Holdings Global Holdings Limited 2t MERE f#
Limited have been released. B o
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24

25

26

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(CESHES A == F D)

BANK LOANS (CONTINUED) 24 RITEM(E)
Pursuant to the agreements on September 9, 2021 and RIE2021F9 A9H &20214 11 A 23 HEIR
November 23, 2021 with banks, pledged shares of TEIM W - REBERMERBRAF
Chervon Auto Precision Technology held by Chervon Fris A M RIE S ERBE M E MR mE #
Precision Technology Holdings Limited have been fr o
released.
LEASE LIABILITIES 25 MHEAE
At the end of the reporting periods, the lease liabilities RpEER - HEAEEEEBLOT
were repayable as follows:
As at December 31,
M12HA31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FET
Within 1 year 1¢W _________________________________ 6,114 3,161
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRER2FA 5,564 2,642
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBEREFER 6,776 4,704
After 5 years 5%F 1% 4,781 6,171
17,121 13,517
23,235 16,678
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26 EBZENREREMSERE
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FET
Trade payables Z 5 I IE 468,073 217,788
Bills payable FET IR 45,179 29,741
513,252 247,529
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 26 ZEZENZERENZERE (&)
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis HERETHR  EXRERAMNESHEMNK
of trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, ERENZEBENRESTHOT
is as follows:
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
202145 2020
USD’ 000 UsSD’000
FTEx FEx
Within 3 months 3MEAR 458,426 216,913
3 to 12 months 32121 A 54,826 30,616
513,252 247,529
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be FEESENFIERENEZERE R —F
settled within one year or repayable on demand. NEHRBRERKER -
27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27 HtERREBERESER
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
F=75 FET
Amounts due to related parties JE AT BA B 7 5 IE - 8,251
Other payables and accrued charges (Note) b JEA 38 R FERT S (A
it) 165,628 78,357
Salaries, wages, bonus and benefits payable  EfN#EHE ~ T& - JE4L L EF) 28,976 31,726
Payables for purchase of properties, plants and BEZW% - ME LR ERN
equipment FERTF08 2,912 2,849
Interest payables FERTFIE 752 3,062
Other tax payables H b R HIE 7,136 5,256
Receipt in advance — lease prepayment TEURIE — HETE R - 636
205,404 130,137
All of the other payables and accruals are expected to FRE HAth TR IE R B St B R FE At —
be settled within one year or repayable on demand. NEHENRREREE -
Note: Htat -
Other payables and accrued charges primarily comprise HthENREREA SN T EREEHRES
accruals for marketing and advertising fee, utility expenses, B NAEXAY BREBRAMAIOE
service fee and other expenses. FTEM -
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28

(a)

INCOME TAX
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

28 SREUBRRRFOFER

Current taxation in the consolidated statements (a)

of financial position represents:

RE IR R P A EDEABIIR TS ¢

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
SFEag FEx
At the beginning of the year REH] 15,347 13,855
Provision for the year: FREE
- PRC Corporate Income Tax — B EMEH (5,547) (1,101)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENEN (12,627) (2,916)
— Income tax for tax jurisdictions outside — R R EBRING G RE (6,696) (5,869)
PRC and Hong Kong EEENMEH
Effect of withholding tax on dividends MR E RSN E = (1,275)
Over/(under)-provision in respect of ERABAFENBERE 56 (152)
prior years (BETR)
Tax paid: EAIE
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PR EREH 12,351 5,891
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNEH 7,555 200
— Income tax for tax jurisdictions outside PRC ~ — B R EE BN alE 3,677 3,751
and Hong Kong EREMNMEH
- Withholding tax — TEHH - 1,275
Tax refund 2RBIIA (15,179) -
Exchange adjustment M H S 770 1,688
At the end of the year RER (293) 15,347
Represented by: &
Taxation recoverable Al Y Bl FHIE 7,958 21,975
Taxation payable FEI T E (8,251) (6,628)
(293) 15,347
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 #HREMBMRRKRFNHAEHR ()
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized (b) CERIANELEHEEEREEE:
represents:

() The components of deferred tax assets 0 RERE IR R A ERAIEE T IE
recognized in the consolidated statements of BEMNEXRBIREHEBHWT :
financial position and the movements are as
follows:

Fair value

change of

financial

Defined assets at

benefit FVPL and

Provision  Unrealized retirement derivative

forasset profitson Deductible  Deferred  Accrued plans financial
impairment inventories tax losses  income expenses obligation Leases instruments Total

URAEE

fEEH

2HiA

EmEEN

EHEER

byl fieem

B AR THE 24 TAHR
WERE FENE  REEE  BERA  EHEX SEEE HE AEEZD &3t
USD'000  USD'000  USD’000  USD'000  USD'000  USD'000  USD'000  USD'000  USD'000
Tin i i i Tin i i iR Tin

At January 1, 2020 R2020F1A18 1,899 7,239 8,064 59 3,048 161 2 208 21217

Recognized in profitorloss ~ RNEZMED 291 4621 (3,070) (14) 556 - 5 (167) 2,000

Recognized in other REMZERER - - - - - 4 - - 4

comprehensive income i

Exchange adjusiment EyBE 70 - 512 40 9% 16 - 3 735

At December 31, 2020and 120205 12A318 R 2260 11,860 5,506 622 3,698 181 7 4 U1

January 1, 2021 202151A1H

Recognized in profitor loss ~ RERAED 487 5,26 (2,159) (15) (288) - 7 (63) 3,201

Recognized in other REMZENEN - - - - - 13 - - 13

comprehensive income Bl

Exchange adjusiment Ei% (265) - (237) 14 (29) 3 - - (514)

At December 31, 2021 20215128318 2482 17,086 3,116 621 3,381 197 14 (19) 26,878
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 #4SA&HBRRAEXPHTESE (H)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized (b) CEHBRENELEBEEEREMEE @ (#)
represents: (continued)

(i) The components of deferred tax liabilities (i) RERE BIEAR R AR E LR T8
recognized in the consolidated statements of BENERTS REBEBMOT
financial position and the movements are as
follows:

Fair value

change of

financial assets

Depreciation at FVPL and

of properties, derivative

plants, and financial  Undistributed

equipment Properties  instruments profits Total

NRREETE

BEZHITA

EHBENER

EERFTEEHM

nE BER IANARER
REHE nE 25 il by
UsD’ 000 USsD’000 USsD’000 UsD’000 USsD’000
xR Tin TEn TEn Tin

At January 1, 2020 202061 A1H (1,258) (138) (1,302) (2,587) (5,285)

Recognized in profit or loss RERAER (580) 140 (1,364) - (1,804)

Effect of withholding tax on dividends ~ BMHERENTE - - - (1,508) (1,503)

Exchange adjustment EHEE (120) () (52) (263) (437)

At December 31, 2020 and R2020%12 4318 R (1,958) = (2,718) (4,353) (9,029)

January 1, 2021 202151418

Recognized in profit o loss RERNER 54 - (2,180) - (2,126)

Effect of withholding tax on dividends ~ BMFHERENHT 2 - - - (2,638) (2,638)

Exchange adjustment X A% (45) - (68) (171) (284)

At December 31, 2021 #2021512A31A (1,949) - (4,966) (7,162) (14,077)
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 #SA&MBMRRAEXPHTESE (H)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized (b) CEHRRENELEBEEEREMEE @ (#)
represents: (continued)

(iiiy  Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of (i)  EEFABEAR KRR
financial position:

As at December 31,

MW12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
FXx FEx
Net deferred tax assets recognized RiEE BB R AR IR 26,878 24,178

in the consolidated statements of EHIEEEFE

financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognized RERE BN R AER AR (14,077) (9,029)

in the consolidated statements of EBIEBEFE

financial position
12,801 15,149
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (c) HABRRHELBEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in BB 2SN BR - REET
Note 2(t), the Group did not recognize deferred tax EHN2021F 1231 BN EA B EEE
assets of USD8,239,000 as at December 31, 2021 36,436,000 7T (20204 : 21,427,000
(2020: USD5,311,000), in respect of cumulative tax TC) RN 2021F12 A1 HWELEHEE
losses USD36,436,000 as at December 31, 2021 (2020: 8,239,000 jT (20204 : 5,311,0003%
USD21,427,000). It was not probable that future taxable ) c REENBRZEERINEBEAR
profits against which the losses can be utilized will be RERTLFE O] LA S A BB B R AT RE 1T

available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entities. Ko
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IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 #HREHMBMRARIIAER (&)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognized (d) HRBEINWELEHEERE
At December 31, 2021, the Group did not recognize M2021F12A31H  AEBEWHEREAEE
deferred tax liabilities of USD12,167,000 (2020: B X RIEY A 5 R FE 115,946,0005% 7T
USD5,574,000), in respect of distributable profits of (20204 : 20,646,000F T ) FERELEFIE
the Group’s subsidiaries amounted to USD115,946,000 H1%12,167,0003% 7T (20204 : 5,574,000
(2020: USD20,646,000), respectively. Although the E) BEAEEBIRN EWEDIKF
Group expects to distribute profit after listing, the B BA S RAMESEZERGEFBREREE
distributable profits will be principally contributed MIB A RMEEFE o ARASEEESIHEZ
by the operation profits of its PRC and Hong Kong ZEMBATIRRDIRANEE BT R
subsidiaries. As the Group controls the timing of the ElgkE - BEEHEEBEENAIELRRTIK
reversal of temporary differences associated with AR D IR A BB A B AT HRELA K 5K
undistributed profits of its subsidiaries and it has been MEETE S - Bk - 72021512 A31
determined that it is probable that certain portion A $imiER LA KA e R Al FE R R K 5
of the undistributed profits earned by the Group's KBRS IRFEEEREEHIBAE
subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future, therefore no deferred tax liabilities arisen from
above mentioned undistributed profits not probable to
be distributed in the foreseeable future was recognized
as at December 31, 2021.
29 WARRANTY PROVISION 29 RIEEHE
Total
st
USD’000
FER
At January 1, 2020 7K2020%F1H1H 23,640
Provision in the year FREEE 38,624
Utilization of provision EABE (16,380)
Exchange adjustment M H TR 66
At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 R2020F 12 A31H &2021F1A1H 45,950
Provision in the year FERE 24,514
Utilization of provision ElEEcd = (18,457)
Exchange adjustment PE i % (61)
At December 31, 2021 K2021%F12A31H 51,946
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

29 WARRANTY PROVISION (CONTINUED) 29 RIEEME (F)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of LR A B IS AR R FOETBR ¢

financial position:

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2021 2020
202145 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
SFEEE FET
Warranty provision — current RIS HAE — BNER 19,655 15,175
Warranty provision — non-current RIEEAE — IERNES 32,291 30,775
51,946 45,950
Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements, the RBEAEERNIESHEGER - AEEHFYIE
Group will rectify any product defects arising within HEAHERK =FRNEENTMAE®DR
two or three years of the date of sale. The warranty fe - REBFBEEEBEENBIREEAS
provision represents management’s best estimate of EREEEREENRBREMELHRE

the Group’s service commitments arising from products fhET -
sold, based on past claims.

30 REFUND LIABILITIES FROM RIGHT OF 30 (EO#EFNEZERE

RETURN
Total
et
USD’ 000
FER
At January 1, 2020 K2020F1A1H 3,077
Provision in the year FERE 28,883
Utilization of provision EREE (23,742)
At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 2020912 A31H N2021F1A1H 8,218
Provision in the year FEBHE 8,639
Utilization of provision AR (12,605)
At December 31, 2021 R2021F12A31H 4,252
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30

31

32
(a)

REFUND LIABILITIES FROM RIGHT OF
RETURN (CONTINUED)

Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements,
the Group will rectify any product return arising within
six months of the date of sale. The refund liabilities
represent management’s best estimate of the Group’s
service commitments arising from products sold, based
on past experiences.

DEFERRED INCOME

As at December 31, 2021, deferred income represented
unamortized conditional government grants amounting
to USD4,150,000 (2020: USD4,152,000), for land
levelling compensation.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined benefit retirement plans obligation

The Group has defined benefit retirement plans
(“Plans”) for its employees in the German subsidiaries.

The Group provides pension benefits for those
employees who retire in the form of life-long annuities.
These are in-line with usual German market practice
and do not constitute any unusual or company-specific
risks or require any specific regulatory framework to be
taken into account. The costs of the Plans are solely
funded by the Group.

The calculation is performed by qualified staff of Kern
Mauch & Kollegen GmbH, an independent actuarial
firm. The actuarial valuations of the defined benefit
retirement obligation were performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” by actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

30

31

32
(a)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

REEFNRREE (&)

RN 5 B 55 6 s 15k AR - AN SR B AL IE
$HE B HIR N MELA ME £ A E mBRFE
RRABEEEEEENBERLREARER
BEEEMELENRGAENFELOKER

A e
EZEW SR
R2021F12A31H EXKFIEE D

T FEEEAKRE A K RTE
4,150,000 7T (20204 : 4,152,000%J0) ©

B ERHKER
REBMBAKTERE

AEBEBERNEENERRNEERSIERE
BARARET & (T5HE]) -

AEBAREFENTAHERREBIRME
REEA - tLE—ROBEMSME 30
BETBRAEMEFRARFERBRLERE
BERFENEEER - SHEKATEZAA
SEBUT -

FETHRBILREEANAKern Mauch &
Kollegen GmbHHI & EHE B THAT - RER
FRAEBNBEGERBEMRATERNE
UEEERESBEANE19%[EER
FIIATT -
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

32 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32 {ESEKEF (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans obligation (a) HREBEMRKHBES (&)
(continued)

0 The amounts recognized in the consolidated 0 REEMBRARFERNSED
statement of financial position are as follows: ™
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
F==75 FET
Present value of defined benefit ARERIBARTEEZBHIRE 771 972
retirement plans obligation
(i)  Movements in the present value of the defined (i) AEBFBRAKFTERBHRELS) :
benefit retirement plans obligation:
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
USD’ 000 USD’000
F=75 FE7
At the beginning of the year REH] 972 921
Remeasurements effect recognized in  REMEEURZAFERHEF
other comprehensive income .#E%
— Actuarial (gain)/loss —BE (kX)) B (46) 39
- Exchange adjustment - IEREH%% (79) 88
847 1,048
Benefits paid by the plans eI REF (85) (85)
Current service cost BIVER AR 7% X AN 1 2
Interest cost FLERAR 8 7
At the end of the year RER 771 972
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

32 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32 {ESEKEF (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans obligation (a) HREBAEKFEEHE (&)
(continued)

(i)  Amounts recognized in the consolidated (iiy  RAEEE
statement of profit or loss and other & 58

Eis| &ﬁ’rﬁz%ﬁ%é%* MR
[N

pu)

comprehensive income are as follows:

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
USD’ 000 USD’000
SFEaTR FEx
Current service cost BIVER AR 7% X AN 1 2
Interest on defined benefit retirement REBFRKFTEIEB R 8 7
plans obligation
Total amounts recognized in RIEEZANERNESE 9 9
profit or loss (Note 6(b)) (Hizt6(b))
Actuarial (gain)/loss BE (Ukzs),/ B8 (46) 39
Exchange adjustment b H FA % (79) 88
Total amounts recognized in other RE M2 RS ER (125) 127
comprehensive income BEEE
Total defined benefit costs AEBNKAMEE (116) 136
(iv)  The current service cost and the interest on (iv)  BNERRRFE AR R R ERAKREBHNER
defined retirement obligation are recognized FEEmEA NIEE RRER

in the following line items in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss:

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’ 000 UsSD’000
FEx FET
Cost of sales HERK AR 9 9
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

32 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32 {ESEKEF (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans obligation (a) HREBEMRKHBES (&)
(continued)

(v)  Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (v) BERWBERRE (CAIEFEIH8ET)
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are RGRESHTHOT
as follows:

As at December 31,

M®12831H
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
USD’ 000 UsD’000
SFERT FEx
Discount rate AL IR = 0.70% 0.75%
Rate of pension increase RIR &I N 1% 1%
Death rate A mp:d RT 2018 G RT 2018 G
Retirement age IRIRNF R age 65 65%5%
Staff turnover BT RAR 0.00% 0.00%
The below analysis shows how the defined TH DR R T RE RN E B WA
benefit obligation would have increased/ EAEIR R B E20% ZE) MG M, Ol

(decreased) as a result of 20% change in the )
discount rate:

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in 20% in 20% in 20% in 20%

#1n20% M 420% £ 120% A 20%
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

FEx FEx FET FEx
Discount rate ARIR = 17) 17 (15) 16
The above sensitivity analysis is based on EXHRBRESTHBREBEREEE)
the assumption that changes in actuarial EAEEE KA AR REERRE ZHE
assumptions are not correlated and therefore HIMRRAME o

it does not take into account the correlations
between the actuarial assumptions.
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32

(b)

33

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
participate in defined contribution retirement plans
(the “Schemes”) organized by the local authorities
whereby the entities are required to make contributions
to the Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2021. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits
of existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.
There is no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

The Group’s subsidiaries in jurisdictions other than the
PRC, make contributions to local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in
the jurisdiction in which such subsidiary located.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of
the Company passed on December 30, 2020, a Share
Incentive Scheme (“Share Incentive Scheme”) was
adopted for purpose of providing incentives to the
qualified employees of the Group. The Share Incentive
Scheme granted to qualified employees of the Group
for the right to subscribe a total of 11,670,500 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Share Awards”). As there
is no service condition of the Share Incentive Scheme,
the Share Awards were fully vested on December 30,
2020.

Under the Share Incentive Scheme, the Share Awards
were granted to 429 employees of the Group through
12 shareholding platforms at a price of HKD4.7529
(equivalent to USD0.6093) per share.

32

(b)

33

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

EERKEN ()

REMRFBRAKE

R YR R B /9 AR R &5 B0 A AR S G - AR S
R BB B A B2 B i 5 B 4R A O SR E 3R
RORETEI(TFHE1]) - BB - BlE2020F &
2021F12A31HILFE - EHEREEER
GEREEFEHRE—@AE S LM EEDR
B - WEFEWEL MBI R B - IRIRET
2 T EE B AR NBREERERIKE
BRIRIKER - BREERTI - AEEWE
T — S ET o AEEIEA] ALK
BEFOKFRSUAESR ©

AEBERFERINRDEE SR OB A BIR
BZMBARMERDEZEEROABSEX
RGP R & R RET BIE R AR -

UREREEUARDRERNRS

REARREZEEZTSHN2020F 12 A30HE B
FURZB R - —IERE BB ([IRE B T
2 )RR BERAASEENEEIESIRE
BE o RERBFERTAEESGERESR
A 11,670,500 A A R) @A (TR D
228 ]) MRET o BRI SUE AT BN & AR S
&1 - B%D 2B E 202012 A30 B &H
SR o

RIZAERENGTE - RO BEICER12(87F
f%F &R EH4.752978 7T (FH57720.6093%
TL) BERR T AEEMN429%EE -

FER

SBERARAT —F=
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=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

33

290

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of shares granted

The fair value of the Share Awards granted was
calculated based on the fair value of underlying
ordinary shares as at the grant date. The directors have
used the income approach to determine the fair value
of the underlying shares of the Company.

Grant date
®EEBH

33

LESEEURO/ERNR S
(&)
EREBRONAAEE

ERGBBRNZBNA A BEEREL A HA
EEBRNAAEBEMNE EBFRDEMAKRE
FEEANRARBERNOAAEE -

o\

&>

Grant date fair value

RHBHNAABE

December 30, 2020
202012 A30H

Share-based payment expense of RMB138,358,000
(USD21,077,000 equivalent) is recognized as staff costs
(Note 6(b)) in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The discounted cash flow derived by management
considered the Group’s future business plan, specific
business and financial risks, the stage of development
of the Group’s operations and economic and
competitive elements affecting the Group’s business,
industry and market. The discount rates used for the
grant date fair value were 13.56%.

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of Chinese government bonds with maturity
of 30 years. Weighted average cost of capital was
estimated based on selected comparable companies.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

RMB185,093,000
AR #185,093,0007T

Ll BERMOMSRAIARE
138,358,000 (21,077,000 E T E1E) I E
F2020F12A31 B L FEMGFEERRN
RABIHA (MFE6(b))
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34
(a)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 34

Movement in components of equity (a)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

BEX - RERRE
IRERARIDTHEE

A Bl A W S 4B A5 B R R
MREBZIHEERRGAEREDE -
AR T ERIE AR EH RENRERY

statements of changes in equity. Details of the changes B EE BRI T ¢
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company A a]
Reserves
4]
Share Other  Retained
Note capital reserve profits Total
Mzt A& HinfEE  REFE it
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
TEn TEx TER FER
At January 1, 2020 #2020 1818 50,279 - 159,053 209,332
Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 F i)
Profit and total comprehensive FRFAEREEAKEEE - - 4,186 4,186
income for the year
Equity settled share-based DESEE ARG AEMS 33 - 21,077 - 21,077
transactions 5
Appropriation of dividends BIRE 34(b) - - (3,691) (3,691)
Balance at December 31, 2020 202012 A31H K 50,279 21,077 159,548 230,904
and January 1, 2021 20214F1 A1 A&
Changes in equity for 2021 2021 F R E
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREERGERE - - (12,799)  (12,799)
income for the year
Issuance of ordinary shares RBEHRETERR 34(c)(i) 749 - - 749
under right issues
Issuance of ordinary shares under RIFREDERTEIZTER 33 7,107 - - 7,107
the Share Incentive Scheme &
Appropriation of dividends BARE 34(b) - - (15,000)  (15,000)
Issuance of ordinary shares by NBERAFAREFAEITE 34(c) 386,486 - - 386,486
initial public offering, net of B (R EATAAR)
issuance costs
Balance at December 31, 2021 72021412 431 B#)& &4 444,621 21,077 131,749 597,447
FRIERBARAR —E-—FFR 291
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=R RLET ek

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

34 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 34 ¥ - ##&RES (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Dividends by RE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the #HE2020F 2021 F12A31BIEFERE
Company attributable to the previous financial years, I S LB FES AR R Bl i s R SR A B 1 B IR
declared and approved during the years ended FERBMOT

December 31, 2020 and 2021 is as follow:

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A318LEE

2021 2020
2021F 20204
USD’ 000 UsD’000
F=Ex FEx
Dividends in respect of previous financial years B &k &IER BTN BEE
declared and approved &) 15,000 3,691
(c) Share capital (c) B=X
Number of
Note Shares HKD’ 000 USD’ 000
et RHEE FET FER
Ordinary shares, issued and EER  BRITRAZ
fully paid:
At January 1, 2020, December 720201 A1H * 2020 390,000,000 390,000 50,279
31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 12 431 H &20214F1
A18
Issuance of ordinary shares RIBHAR TS BR (i) 5,844,911 5,845 749
under right issues
Issuance of ordinary shares RIZRE B T8I 31TE 11,670,500 55,435 7,107
under the Share Incentive AR (K77733)
Scheme (Note 33)
Issuance of ordinary shares by A B X AREETNEIT (if) 71,916,000 3,014,591 386,486
initial public offering, net of LBk (NBREITHA)
issuance costs
At December 31, 2021 R2021%F12A31H 479,431,411 3,465,871 444 621

292 Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34

(c)

(d)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to a written resolution dated March 17,
2021, the Company issued and allotted a total
of 5,844,911 shares by way of rights issue at the
subscription price of HKD1.00 to the shareholders.

(i) On December 30, 2021, the Company issued
71,916,000 shares at an offer price of HKD43.60
per share by way of public offering. Net proceeds
from these issues amounted to HKD3,014,591,000
(USD386,486,000 equivalent) (after offsetting
costs directly attributable to the issue of shares
of HKD120,947,000 (USD15,506,000 equivalent),
which were recorded in share capital.

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company'’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Other reserve

Other reserve primarily represented the portion
of the grant date fair value of shares granted
by the Share Incentive Scheme to the directors
and employees of the Group that has been
recognized in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 2(s)(iv).

34

(c)

(d)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

X - RERKRE (8)

R ()
e

(i) RIFEHHA2021F3 A17 BN EE RS
= AR B A IR RIEE1.008
TR R EIT RS 5,844,911 /%

ftn o

(ii) R2021F12A308 © AR FAAF
BEMNFNIREEETRA3.60BTHE
11771,916,000 /%17 - ZEEHTH
FT{8 3/ IB /%% 53,014,591,0008 T
(386,486,000 L& E) (EHEHET
B8 7 B9 B #2 FE A5 AX A5 120,947,000 7T
(15,506,000 c%E) 1) + WHARZA
FRRCER o

RAEE B R BEPIE 13515 -
WEEE °

AR EE R

ERBRFEABRERTRHERNKE AR
ARBEZLAERBROER —REEE -
RARBMRBREENS - MEERERES
EES::fvat

REEERAH
(i)  EfbiEeE

HEHEEZERBHRT2(s)(iv) 5t
VARR 1) A ERE ) St AF BRI B & 5T IBUR
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

34

(d)

294

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(1)

(iif)

PRC statutory reserve

Statutory reserve is established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and
the articles of association of the companies
comprising the Group which are incorporated in
the PRC.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law,
certain subsidiaries of the Group which are
domestic enterprises are required to allocate
10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory reserves
until the reserves reach 50% of their respective
registered capital. For the entity concerned,
statutory reserves can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to the
existing equity interests of investors, provided
that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the entity’s
registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations with
functional currency other than USD. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in Note 2(x).
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34 EHX  HERKRE (H)

(d) REHEERBWE)
(i) FEEEFE

VA TE (7 (5 1R R AR B o B AR B A0 3R 1 A
REREEMRINAEEBETER
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34

(e)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintaining a balance between
the higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines
net debt as total current and non-current bank loans
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. The Group defines capital as
including all components of equity.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

34 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 34 ¥%X - f#EKKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXEE(H)
The Group's net debt to capital ratio are as follows: REERFEBEARLENT -
As at December 31,
MW12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
TEx FET
Current liabilities: mENBE
Bank loans RITER 424,948 290,459
Lease liabilities HEaE 6,114 3,161
431,062 293,620
Non-current liabilities: EMBIAE
Bank loans RITER 8,698 47,402
Lease liabilities HEEE 17,121 13,517
25,819 60,919
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRkBeEED (664,990) (166,937)
Pledgeddeposits ... BEEX (48,340) (22,172)
Adjusted net debt (Note) RARTFEY (F2E) - 165,430
Total equity AR 797,017 284,024
Net debt to capital ratio BEBERLER 0% 58%
Note: Hist -
Net debt to capital ratio is zero when the amount of cash EAEENBESRBESEYREAGERNE
and cash equivalent and pledged deposits of the Group is BRBESBER  FEBEEAALEAT -

higher than gross debt.
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35

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below:

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties are
reputable financial institutions with high credit standing,
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in Note 37, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 37.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 to 180 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at December 31, 2021, 30% (2020: 36%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and 68% (2020: 67%) was due from the
Group's five largest customers respectively.

35

(a)
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

35

(a)

298

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

35 HMEBEEMEERESMIANAAEE
(&)

(a) FERRE
E SRR ()

AEBEZBSR2HRREEE RN B
EESREGABREE  FRSBIER
BEEEFESH  ENAEENBEREER
BRERIT BRI TIAEPINEEAER
PEIRELRE - URB AR R E R B IEEE
TEEAEETREPREEE —FED -

TRERTAEBEMEERNE S EYFIAE
ERkRIRREEEENER

At December 31, 2021
72021128318

Gross

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

FEH R E R FREA%E EERE

% USD’ 000 USD’ 000

% FEx e

Current (not past due) BUER (R El) 1.00% 148,298 (1,480)

Less than 3 months past due BEA=E A AT 1.02% 17,566 (180)

More than 3 months but less than B R = 1A A 5.59% 4,415 (247)
12 months past due BAR12EA

More than 12 months but less than mAEAEE R 1218 A 10.78% 436 (47)
24 months past due BAR241E A

More than 24 months but less than i ERER 24 18 A 20.13% 149 (30)
36 months past due BAR361EA

More than 36 months past due 0 BRER 5 36 1E A 100.00% 242 (242)

171,106 (2,226)
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35

(a)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 HEEBREERESMIANAAEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued) (a) f=ERR(E)
Trade receivables (continued) B BN (&)
At December 31, 2020
72020412 A31H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TE AT 18 FRE 4878 B R
% UsSD’000 UsD’000
% TET TET
Current (not past due) BNER (R Hg) 1.05% 137,947 (1,446)
Less than 3 months past due BEI=E AT 1.09% 24,555 (267)
More than 3 months but less than EHEA—EAE LR 3.84% 3,337 (128)
12 months past due 1218 A
More than 12 months but less than wHAEE R 12{E A B DR 10.21% 519 (53)
24 months past due 2418 A
More than 24 months but less than wHR @24 B A B DR 26.67% 15 (4)
36 months past due 361 A
More than 36 months past due E HAR R 36 1E A 100.00% 254 (254)
166,627 (2,152)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEEEXERNBTIFENEREBLRS
experience over the past years. These rates are e ZERERSERABRUIRMBERELH
adjusted to reflect differences between economic BREAR OB R - SRR EREEEE
conditions during the period over which the historic Wk A TR R F AN B MO B R ) & o

data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.
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(UZETT[FET 137 - BIESEIEH)

35

(a)

(b)

300

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BREREEREMIAENAAEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) (a) =ERE (&)

Trade receivables (continued) B Z W ()

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade EHABZENFIENBERBE ST -

receivables is as follows:

As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FExT

At the beginning of the year REH) 2,152 2,239

Impairment loss recognized EHERBEEE 278 (103)

Amounts written off during the year FERKENESEE (207) (63)

Exchange adjustment TE i FA % 3 79

At the end of the year RER 2,226 2,152

The following significant changes in the gross carrying B S RWRIERE LN T EXNFEEH

amounts of trade receivables contributed to the change EEREEE)

in the loss:

- origination of new trade receivables net of those — EENEFERFIE (NREEES)
settled resulted in an increase of USD278,000 EHIEHN278,0003 7T (20204 : A
(2020: a decrease of USD103,000). 4>103,0003%7T) °

- change in past due trade receivables resulted - B RN B BB BREE
in a decrease in loss allowance of USD207,000 A 4>207,0003 7T (20204 : 63,000
(2020: USD63,000). EIPI

Liquidity risk (b) RENERMR

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 B HEREERESHMIENAIAREE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RENEREEE (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TR AEESREBENRTEHIHIB
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities, which o EDEREHNRBERSTE (BIER
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows ERFEAERNZRZBFERAE - BIERA
(including interest payments computed using WEAHMERNEAENT M) A
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current SEENROREAE :
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
At December 31, 2021
#2021%128318
More than More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than More than December 31,
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2021
R2021%
15/ BB1E #82f 128318 M
REX BoReE BHR5E 2855 it BEE
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USsD’000
EY Txn TEn S EY EY
Bank loans FITER 440,705 1,934 7,649 - 450,288 433,646
Lease liabilities HEgR 6,926 6,138 7,112 5,181 25,957 23,235
Trade and bills payables BHRITEREARE 513,252 - - - 513,252 513,252
Other payables and accruals  EfEFIEREFER 205,404 - - - 205,404 205,404
Refund liabilities from BOREFNEAEE 4,252 - - - 4,252 4,252
right of return
1,170,539 8,072 15,361 5,181 1,199,153 1,179,789
Financial guarantees issued: B EBHER :
Maximum amount guaranteed  SBIERE R (47357 10,038 - - - 10,038 =
(Note 37)
Derivatives settled gross: ETERRAE
Foreign currency forward and  SMEREREAL)
option contracts (Note 19)  (H/#19)
- outflow — i (291,409) - - - (291,409) -
- inflow -mA 296,004 - - - 296,004 -
RIEEBEARAT — T —FFR 301
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 HMKEKBEEREBMIANAAREE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RENVEREEE (&)
At December 31, 2020
#2020%12 4318
More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount at
Within 1 year less than less than More than December 31,
or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020
R2020F
1ER BRE BoE 12R318
BEX EPR2F [ESRoE HiloE st HREE
US] UsD'000 UsD'000 USD'000 UsD'000 USD'000
TEL T T TEL T T
Bank loans BOER 298,219 47,690 - - 345,909 337,861
Leas liabilities HERRE 3,782 3,086 5,636 6,777 19,251 16,678
Trade and bills payables B HEMNFEREMNZR 247529 - - - 247,529 247529
Other payables and accruals  EHERFAREHER 130,137 - - - 130,137 130,137
Refund liabilities from right of REERIERZEE 8,218 - - - 8,218 8,218
return

687,855 50,776 5,636 6,777 751,044 740,423

Financial guarantees issued: B EETHER :
Maximum amount quaranteed & EREHE (/#57) 9,808 - - - 9,808 -
(Note 37)

Derivatives settled gross: ~ fTATEEREE -
Foreign currency forward and JMERE R HEAL
option contracts (Note 19)  (#fz19)
- outflow — (231,113) - - - (231,113) -
- inflow -mA 225,575 - - - 225,575 -
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IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 B¥EREERESHIANAANER
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (c) FEER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEEMFERBRETERGEHERHAE
short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued Koo HFENF R R EEF EEMNERS
at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to SE EEReRENERAR R AREE
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate MERRE - EEEEEOAREEF RN
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as RTR3() -
monitored by management is set out in (i) below:
Interest rate profile (i) FIERER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the RN IR E ARARE B EREEOF
Group’s total borrowings as at the end of the reporting B
period:
2021 2020
20214 20204
Effective Effective
Interest rate Amount Interest rate Amount
BT &8 B = &%
% USD’ 000 % USD’000
% FEx % FET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFIRERK
Bank loans RITEK 1.2000%- 254,871 1.4073%- 76,911
4.6000% 6.6000%
Variable rate borrowings: FEIFIRE :
Bank loans RITEK 0.7000%- 178,775 1.6439% 260,950
5.1450% -3.3939%
Total borrowings B 4azE 433,646 337,861
Fixed rate borrowings as & F| & (&5 59% 23%
a percentage of total EfERBE
borrowings Bt
RIEREARAR - —FFR
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(c)
(if)

(d)

(i)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At December 31, 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately USD1,332,000 (2020:
USD1,944,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of each reporting
period and had been applied to floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The impact on
the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualized impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. Fixed rate financial
instruments are excluded for the above analysis. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2020.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchase and borrowings which give
rise to receivables, payables, cash balances and bank
loans that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily USD.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure as at
December 31, 2021 to currency risk arising from the
recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purpose, the amounts of
exposure are shown in USD translated using the spot rate
of the end of each reporting period. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of the
Group’s subsidiaries with functional currency other than
USD into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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M=ER ()

R2021412A318 » Bfhst  FlkEE L
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BAEMBERLT » AEERNBRHEEFERR
ERER A #A1#91,332,0003% 7T (2020
£ :1,944,000%7T) °
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(d)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZETT [T /57 - BRI H59)

BEEREERESMIANAAEE

(&)

Currency risk (continued) (d)y E¥RR(E)
Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) B RO (&)
As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the group considers RRABITHEETE - NEBRABTHEE
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the ToZ EMEREEREBRTK -
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.
As at December 31,
MW12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
FTEx FEr
UsD ES
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSFEY 44,288 63,925
Trade and bills receivables E 5 WK R R R & 205,030 209,209
Bank loans RITE N (75,078) (53,323)
Trade and bills payables B 5 e IR MR R (36,352) (3,714)
Other payables and accruals H b FETFRIE R FEEH B B - (96)
Gross exposure arising from recognized ERREERBEEEMHO 137,888 216,001
assets and liabilities HE
Notional amounts of forward exchange PR E S R RHASNES 4 (136,000) (87,000)
contracts and foreign currency option RONEHRS AN EESRE
contracts used as economic hedges
Net exposure arising from recognized assets CBHREENLBEEANKO 1,888 129,001
and liabilities F R
RIEERBRAE — T —FFR 305
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 HMKEKBEEREBMIANAAREE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) ErE O (&)
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
FX73 FEr
EUR BT
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBReEEY 4,358 3,997
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REUGRIA K e R & 148,896 37,485
Trade and bills payables B 5 IR ENRE (59,011) (13,682)
Other payables and accruals Ho A JE T RRE X B S B R = (445)
Gross exposure arising from recognized ERREERBBEEN 94,243 27,355
assets and liabilities WO 4258
Notional amounts of forward exchange R B R R INES &) (15,457) (19,592)
contracts and foreign currency option MONEHARES AN EESRE
contracts used as economic hedges
Net exposure arising from recognized ERREERBREEN 78,786 7,763

assets and liabilities WO ERE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BRRAKREERSMTANARERE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
Currency risk (continued) (d) Ex¥@RR(E)
Sensitivity analysis (i) BEERESIT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TREATMMIAEBNRERRFTAZERR
in the Group’s (loss)/profit after taxation (and retained SRINEE RN Z B HAEHRE - AEEN
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to BrBifE (B18), 7B (KRB FHE) /B
which the Group has significant exposure at the end 2y (REMAEMRRESHIZTE) o
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
2021 2020
2021 20205
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) in profit after
in foreign taxation and foreign taxation and
exchange rates retained profits  exchange rates retained profits

MEERLET S HERBEABE  MNEEREH S HBRHEFER

(T%) RENBEHTE (T&) REBFEHEE

% USD’ 000 % USD’000

% FEx % FEL

usD T 1% 15 1% 968
(1%) (15) (1%) (968)

EUR BT 1% 725 1% 57
(1%) (725) (1%) (57)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group subsidiaries’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into USD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purpose.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk as at December 31, 2021, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of entities
whose functional currency is not USD. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the years ended
December 31, 2020.

EREFNDWERDIAEEBETSMBE R
BIHY BRI 1R R H R A ot T 2 BB 32 28 1) 40 B0
(REEWIEEEE)  WIRBEHRD
BRERGERET - MERFIZA -

BREDTRE - INEEXZHDEAR
BN EASERENESRIA (S4A%HE
©K2021F12 A31 HEERINERRK - BiEX
EEAREENUE T S E I EEE B LGN
MEBTEMNENRBRERRIEA) - %5
MIABEREBENGEEBWIEETNER
N BRREENERE - ZOMHEREE
2020F 12 A31 H L FEM MR AELERTT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of each reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using

only Level 1 inputs i.e.

unadjusted quoted prices in

active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant
unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market
data are not available;

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable

inputs.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIEERTERSBIANAAEE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continued) (e) ADAREEFEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DA EEER (E)
Analysis on fair value measurement of derivative EERMIANAREEFEOMNAT

financial instruments are as follows:

Fair value at
December 31,
2021
20215 Fair value measurement at
12A31HK December 31, 2021 categorized into
ANREE R2021512A31 BN AAEBEFESA
USD’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
S F1R F2 FEIR
Recurring fair value measurement  EEMAAEENE
Financial assets at FVPL LAREEFEEHS
B AEHBERENS
MEE
- Insurance product — RIZE M 6,011 = = 6,011
— Convertible bond — AR ES 38,031 38,031 = =
Derivative financial instruments fTE€mMIA
— Foreign currency forward contracts — JMERHIAH 4,497 - 4,497 -
— Foreign currency option contracts  — 9MEHES 4 98 - 98 -
~ Interest rate swap contract RIS (6) o (6) -
Trade receivables B 5 EWRE 118,554 - - 118,554
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

35

(e)

Fair value at

December 31,

B ERE
(&)

EREMIANAAREER

>

REETE (&)
A 1EEER (&)

5

2020
20204 Fair value measurement at
12A31 B/ December 31, 2020 categorized into
AnBE 2020612 A31 BRI D A BEERA
USD’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F=rn ER Rl 3
Recurring fair value measurement  ZEMAAEBEHE
Financial assets at FVPL NARBEGEEES
B AERERENSG
MEE
- Unlisted units in investment funds ~ — REEESFHR L 5 - - 5
mEf
— Insurance product —RBEM 5,844 - - 5,844
— Structured deposits and wealth — BRI 5,372 - - 5,372
management products Em
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA
- Foreign currency forward contracts ~ — SMN&ERHIA 4 5,505 - 5,505 -
— Foreign currency option contracts ~ — SMNEHREA 4] 33 - 33 -
Trade receivables B 5 EWRE 85,147 - - 85,147

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2021,
there were no transfers, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level
2 is determined by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward
price. The discount rate used is derived from the relevant
government yield curve as at the end of the reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread.
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(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements (continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to transfer
the swap at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

EERM

35

(e)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

BEEREERESMIANAAEE

(&)

N

N AEEE (F)
A 1EEER (F

EBEFEFEANGBERT LR
)

5

BN

2 %

2 AN

o=

>

il

MEEHNAABEAREERNREHR
BRI MMPRMAIANEFEE &
FERBITH R RIEEF I EANGER -

EMEBAR EEGROER

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTEERABE

Unlisted units in investment funds

REESPARLEMEN

Insurance product
RREmR

Structured deposits and wealth management products
EEMER RS ER

Trade receivables

Net asset value (Note i)

BEFE(MZI)

Cash value (Note ii)

ReBE (W)

Discounted cash flow (Note iii)
BRI RE (A atiii)

Discounted cash flow (Note iv)

Net asset value of
underlying investments

HERENEEFE

Expected return rate
jEEEEES

Expected return rate
FEHIE =

Expected return rate

B SN FE BIRBRERE (Witiv) TEHE 3R &
Notes: Htat -
(i) The fair value of unlisted units in investment funds (i) KERSHFNALEMENAREBEESRS

is determined referencing net asset value of
underlying investments. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to net asset value of
underlying investments. As at December 31, 2020
and 2021, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in net asset
value of underlying investments by 5% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit for the year
by USD nil, and USD nil, respectively.

HEEENEEFEET - AN EBE
EHEBEEANEAEFETEER - ®
20204 [ 2021812 A318 » fA5H7EFT
BHEMEETENBERT HEREN
BEFEEM HP5%  NEBHE
WFEES RGN, R TETRTE

JT °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The fair value of insurance product is the cash
value that can be recovered from insurance
company. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to expected return rate. As at December
31, 2021, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in fair value
of insurance product by 5% would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the year by
USD221,000 (2020: USD215,000).

The fair value of structured deposits and wealth
management products is calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to expected
return rate. As at December 31, 2021, it is
estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in fair value of structured
deposits and wealth management products by 5%
would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
for the year by USD nil (2020: USD201,000).

The fair value of trade receivables is calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to
expected return rate. As at December 31, 2021,
it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in fair value of trade
receivables by 5% would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit for the year by USD4,950,000
(2020: USD3,172,000).

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

35

(e)

Bt 75 [ By

(&)

(iii)

(iv)

EEREMIANAAEE

FIMAREEFENEN (BE)

RBERNAREBEATURKRBR AR
KEIHRREE - AR BE=HEEH
[B1 %R & [E#HRF - R 2021F 12A31H
HETEAMBEMEETEMNBERT - R
BERNALBEEM, WMPE5% » &
SEMFARFEBE M H L 221,000
%7t (20204F : 215,00037T) °

HERMGERRENERNAAEBEER
%ﬁﬁ%*%ﬁﬁmiﬁﬁ%m°@
AEEASEBHOFRIERR - B
2021@12%315 hEHERTA Hith 2

""""" E"J‘ //EF‘J—F l\\DT%lETTf\&EEE]J‘E
uua’a ARBEEMBPE5%  NEE
BF RFDE G, RZEZE T (2020
£ : 201,000 7T) ©

B RWHIEN AR BEEBBRTEH
KFBEREFTESE - AAEEE
£ 78 HA (0] ¥R % [E AHREE - JEA2021$12H
318 - EHEFEEMBEETENIE)

%J@iuﬁzmlﬁa’\mﬁﬁﬁi‘éﬂu//ﬁx
L5% + AEBEFERFEEEM
44,950,000 7t (20204 : 3,172,000
ET) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

35

(e)

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BEEKREERESMIANAAEE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued) (e) 2AREEFE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) DA EEER (E)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BRAESR IR EBEAENEN (B)

(continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the
beginning balances to the ending balances for fair
value measurement for Financial assets at FVPL in

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

BE

TRETAANBEERAEIRTURIAEE
AEREFPHITAEHERANSHEEND
n EERF 20 RV R RER BN Y

Financial assets

at FVPL

RAREESE

BESFHTA

EHEEN

SRMEE

USD’000

FEx

As at January 1, 2020 K2020F1A1H 20,851
Net realized and unrealized losses on AR EEFEBEEEHTAZHERD 165

financial assets at FVPL SREENDEREAEEEHIEFHE
Purchases BE 133,541
Sales and settlements HENREE (144,080)
Exchange difference MEHZERE 744
As at December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 722020912 A31H &2021F181H 11,221
Net realized and unrealized losses on NWAARBEFZEAEEEHT A HER 544
financial assets at FVPL MEmEEND SR K REREBEF
25
Purchases EE 244,139
Sales and settlements HEREE (250,567)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB A A (474)
Exchange difference PE N ZE%R 1,148
As at December 31, 2021 720214612 H31H 6,011
RIEREARAR - —FFR 313
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35

(e)

36
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 H¥EREERESHMIENARERE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (continued) (e) ADAREEFEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) R BEER (E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements EHAEIR AR EENENER (B)
(continued)
Trade receivables carried at FVOCI are not materially HR2020F 2021 F 12 A31H ° UAREE
different from their values as at December 31, 2020 and AEREZEALMEAREMNE ZEK
2021. FERHEEBETESEAEER -
All financial instruments carried at cost or amortized R20204F K 2021412 831 8 » 17k A5k
cost are at amounts not materially different from their HR A RN BRI ANESENEAR Y
values as at December 31, 2020 and 2021. BETESEREE -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36 EBEARKIE
Capital commitments outstanding at the respective REFRRGETBRERATIREBNRE
year end not provided for in the consolidated financial TTEARRENT -
statements are as follows:
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
USD’000 USD’000
PR FET
Contracted for REIE:S) 2,203 47,326
Authorised but not contracted for DEREERETN 465,462 2,153
467,665 49,479
Represented by: 5
Construction of plant and buildings ERMERET 461,211 46,900
Acquisition of machinery and equipment EERELRE 6,454 2,579
467,665 49,479

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37 HEAR
(a) Guarantee to Chervon Auto Precision Technology (a) [RIESERZFIMIZEENER
The Group has issued guarantees in respect of loans RFEE ARBEEREToREBERR
made by certain financial institutions to the Chervon R AT MR A B AR (R
Auto Precision Technology in the reporting periods (see F£38(c)) °
Note 38(c)).
(b) Guarantee to customers (b) MEEFRMHEMER
2021 2020
20214 20204
Maximum Maximum
guarantee Guarantee guarantee Guarantee
amount issued amount issued
EeEREHE BEHERER ZaERSE B AR
USD’ 000 USD’ 000 uUSD’000 USD’000
TER FERT FETT FETT
Bank A RTTA 8,626 2,113 8,429 1,137
Bank B #R17B 1,412 33 1,379 790
10,038 2,146 9,808 1,927
38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 ERBHIRS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) A= N =
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REFBRETEAEFHN (BEENAD T
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s EEMRE(ABRERMZTS) REMET
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the SEHREMZE (EEHELWEE)) M
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as T:
follows:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20214%F 20204F
uUSD’000 uSD’000
TER FE7T
Short-term employee benefits HHES R 5,262 4,471
Contributions to defined contribution retirement 55 { ZUR AR 2 it 5% 215 159
plans
Equity settled share-based payment expenses A& E RN BERED - 2,877
BB
5,477 7,507

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
6(b)).

HINEEA ATEIRA ] (RKFE6(b)) °

FER

RIEZBRBERRE —F=
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38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38
(CONTINUED)

EXBBMLIRZ (&)

EAREEHMEARS BB LM%

(b) Names and relationships of the related parties (b)

316

that had other material transactions with the £/ BBRBE
Group

Name of related party Relationship

BEAHS 28 %

Mr. Pan Longquan

Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group

ERERLE REBNRRERER
Ms. Zhang Tong Director of the Group
B AEEES

Mr. Ke Zugian Director of the Group
R E AEEE=S

Mr. Xiao Jun Director of the Group
Hita AEEE=S

Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment Co., Ltd. Associate of the Group
AR IERERERERRAA AEENBE R
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd.  Associate of the Group
ARREAERERMRNERAE AEEMBERE
Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd. Associate of the Group
HRERREEEERAA AEBENEE QT
Nanjing Yaoquan Investment Management Co., Ltd. Associate of the Group
HRRRREERARR AEENBERA

Cheng and Cheng Corporate Services Limited
EENERBERRA

Cheng and Cheng Taxation Service Limited
BHHREERANA

Chervon Global Holdings Limited

Chervon Global Holdings Limited

Chervon (Nanjing) Management Services Co., Ltd.

R (BR) EERBAERD

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Controlled by a director of the Group

mAEEN —EEE T

Controlled by a director of the Group

RSB —ZE =2

Controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group
F AN 5 B ) B A P AR A SR A

Controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group

R AN 5 B ) B AR R R A SR A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

(c)

(d)

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))

(AZET [T IT - B = EEE)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 EXBHBAERS (&)
(CONTINUED)
Guarantees issued by related parties (c) BIEAHANER
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
EY FET
Banking facilities granted to the Group with BRI AREENRITHE - 151,557

guarantees and pledges issued by related
parties

(BAREDT AR FE R R E )

Pursuant to the agreements on August 18, 2021 and
September 9, 2021 with banks, guarantees provided
by Mr. Pan Longquan and Chervon Global Holdings
Limited have been released.

Pursuant to the agreements on September 9, 2021 and
November 23, 2021 with banks, pledged shares of
Chervon Auto Precision Technology held by Chervon
Precision Technology Holdings Limited have been
released.

BIER2021F8 A18H &2021F9 A9 H &4
BITEIM Mt - BBER AL KChervon
Global Holdings Limitedi2 ftE{ER D7
@ °

RIER2021F9 A9H K2021411 A23H &
RITRISL W - RIEBEREMIERER A
AIATHENRIERERRRIITNERBRGE
fERR o

Guarantees issued to related parties (d) MEEBSHENER
As at December 31,
M12831H
2021 2020
20214 2020
USD’ 000 USD’000
FEx FET
Guarantees issued to Nanjing Chervon Auto [ AR ST B R R R AR D - 8,706

Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

BRQAHARER

At December 31, 2020, guarantees were issued to
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
for its bank facilities.

All guarantees issued to Nanjing Chervon Auto
Precision Technology Co., Ltd. were released in
September 2021.

R2020F12A31H ' B RRIBTERER
i mBERATNRITHRENEHATA
BAEIR -

MR RESEBREMROERARHA
P A &R R 202149 A f#k -

FER 317
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38

(e)

318

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38

(CONTINUED)

Other significant related party transactions

The Group had following transactions with related

parties:

EXBBMLIRZ (&)

() HMEXBEBIRS

RES B B Ty

ETTUATRS

Year ended December 31,
BZ12831HLFE

2021 2020
20214 20206
USD’000 USD’000
Em FET
Purchase of goods and service BEERKRERHE
Cheng and Cheng Taxation Service Limited BEHEBR AT 11 9
Cheng and Cheng Corporate Services Limited EENERBERRF 32 6
43 15
Lease payment from UTEANEELR
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision FARRIETERT ARG 328 76
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAR
Nanjing Yaoquan Investment ARRERREEEARAT 17 17
Management Co., Ltd.
345 93
Lease payment to FFUTEFOEESR
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision ARRIETERBERMRN ER - 114
Technology Co., Ltd. NC]
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries and associates HERH B A TR EE A T M-S
Chervon (Nanjing) Management Services Co., Ltd. FIE (R EBREBRAT 33,665 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W R R
Pan Longquan EEER 14,236 -
Zhang Tong R 8,514 -
Ke Zugian AE R 5,676 -
28,426 -
Acquisition of Convertible bond WS IR E S
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology Co., Ltd. FRRIEAEBZRMKH 18,300 -

BRAE

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 BEABHAIXS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(e) Other significant related party transactions (e) HMtEABEBAIRS (&)
(continued)

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
USD’000 USD’000
FX5x FEx
Dividends received BWRE
Nanjing Jiangning Lianshang Investment AT EBERIERE = 3,162
Co., Ltd. BRAA
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision SR U S B RS A B AT AR 17 540 1,005
Technology Co., Ltd. BRATA
540 4,167
Payments made on behalf of related parties XX T EL AR
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision P SR U ST B S A B AT AR A7 1,631 1,169
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAR
Receivables made on behalf of a related party X 3k B8 77 & H 19 FE WL 7 T8
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision P SR B ST RS A B AT AR A7 153 110
Technology Co., Ltd BRAF
Advance to related parties BTG S
Chervon Global Holdings Limited Chervon Global Holdings 781 505
Limited
Pan Longquan EBER - 472
Zhang Tong R - 257
781 1,234
Repayment from related parties BB
Pan Longquan EBER 508 -
Zhang Tong B2 277 -
785 -
RIEERABRAE —TZ—FFR 319
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38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 EXBHBAERS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Significant related party balances (f) EXBEBLTE

The Group had following in nature balances with related

parties:

REBB AT B MR AR -

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2021 2020
2021 4% 2020%F
USD’000 USD’000
E FEx
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{JFIE - RF & R HAbFEU
(Non-trade) (Note 22) MIE(EEZ) (Hat22)
Nanjing Chervon Auto Precision Technology R 8T E RS B AR D 204 -
Co., Ltd. BRAF]
Nanjing Yaoquan Investment Management HRRREEEEERAA - 9,475
Co., Ltd.
Chervon Global Holdings Limited Chervon Global Holdings - 9,502
Limited
Pan Longquan ERER - 556
Zhang Tong R - 302
Xiao Jun B - 1,652
204 21,487
Other payables and accruals (Non-trade) Hit A RERETER
(Note 27) (kEH) (Kit27)
Pan Longquan EBER - 3,980
Zhang Tong &Y - 2,094
Nanjing Suquan Investment Co., Ltd ARMHRIEEEEAERAR - 2,042
Chervon Global Holdings Limited Chervon Global Holdings - 135
Limited
- 8,251
Guarantees issued to Nanjing Chervon Auto MR RERIESERHRMBRHG - 9,196

Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

BRARHANER

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the NEBEBEAMAANTEETNHEPEE K
Company was a party and in which a director of the BEBEEEAREREZINEEARLS  THEEE
Company had a material interest, whether directly or %4 o

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

MERIFATARRE - AREHEFT 7 H
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39 ATFEEMNHBRIE

POSITION
As at December 31,
M12A31A
2021 2020
202145 20204
Note USD’000 USD’000
k23 SEEPT FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries o NG o 248,192 212,677
248,192 212,677
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE - (REBE S REALE 8,235 18,704
receivables WA
Pledged deposits [REEECEF ¢ 403 403
Cash and cash equivalents HekReZEY 393,025 4
401,663 19,111
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b RIE R EFTE R 52,408 884
52,408 884
Net current assets RBEEFEE 349,255 18,227
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBAEE 597,447 230,904
NET ASSETS EEFE 597,447 230,904
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRHE
Share capital [N 34 444,621 50,279
Reserves Gl 34 152,826 180,625
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 597,447 230,904
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of M202263 A0 EES S A RERET
directors on March 30, 2022. %K o
Pan Longquan Zhang Tong
EBER (3
Directors Directors
o= o

RIEZEBRARAT — T —FFR 321
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IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At December 31, 2021, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate parent of the Group is
Panmercy Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, while as at December 31, 2020, the
immediate parent of the Group is Chervon Global
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in BVI.

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Pan
Longquan, Chairman of the Group. Panmercy Holdings
Limited and Chervon Global Holdings Limited do not
produce financial statements available for public use.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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HK2021F12A8318 * ARAEESERE &
SENEET AR ABEBIERERAR - &
REIREBFTMAL - MK 2020%F 12 A31
B KNEBMHEHEEM AR AChervon Global
Holdings Limited * & A RN 4 REF S
AL e

REBNEEERFAAEEESREESR
o o BTN AR AR & Chervon Global
Holdings Limited 3 47 84 7] £ 2 8 A &Y
B REE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41

IN=RRLET e IR

(Expressed in US dollar (“USD’) unless otherwise indicated))
(UZET[ETT 137 - BRIESEHEH)

BZE2021F12A31 B L EECEH
B RERNIERT - TEARREN

ey

L

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 41
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Up to date of issue of these financial statements, the BEEZSUVBMEREMAE  EESHQ
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a BEMT ZIEBIT R—IERER - BIE B
new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which BMEERF1TRREEL - ZFET R
are not yet effective for the year ended December HERAEZE2021F12 A1 HIEFEHARE
31, 2021 and which have not been adopted in these BN ERZEM B RMEPERN - HBIE
financial statements. These include the following which ARE R R E AR R LA 818 -

may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT B#RBR 2R

HETHBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework
BB EERNEIRZEF] - B2 1EHES

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
BREGTERECRZNER] - WX  BERRE - (ERTEHEZFIRATE5E

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

BREHEAFEITR ZER]  BIREA — EITE A

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle
BB & 2ER2018F FE 2020 F R F [F 2

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BB EUNF VR ZER] WRESBERREBXIFTE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies

ARG ENF IR REEYBERELENEBREF 2R ZER]  RESHHE

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

EERIRRER 23] - Bif it TR

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

B RUNF12R 2 ER]  HE-XGELNEERR AR FAFELFHE

1 January 2022
202241 A1H

1 January 2022
202241 H1H8

1 January 2022
2022%1A1H

1 January 2022
202241 H1H8

1 January 2023
2023%F1A1H

1 January 2023
202341 H1H

1 January 2023
2023%F1A1H

1 January 2023

20231 A1H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an No mandatory effective

investor and its associate or joint venture
EEVBMELNE10RRBEBGAERE28R 2 E5]  KEZHAHE R GlstE &%
2 Ay EE M E 2T A

SBERARAT —F=
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUEDBUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant event took place subsequent
to December 31, 2021:

(a) On January 21, 2022, the Company issued and
allotted additional 10,787,400 shares at an offer
price of HKD43.60 per share by way of public
offering pursuant to the over-allotment option.
Net proceeds from these issues amounted to
HKD452,656,320 (USD58,032,862 equivalent)
(after offsetting costs directly attributable
to the issue of shares of HKD17,674,320
(USD2,265,938 equivalent), which were recorded
in share capital).

(b) On January 28, 2022, Chervon (China)
Investment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a subscription
agreement, conditionally agrees to subscribe for
A shares of Chervon Auto Precision Technology
through non-public offering with a total
subscription amount up to RMB500,000,000.

Chervon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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BZ£2021F12A31 AL FEECHEMH
BERERNVIERT - FEARZEN

wRERE (&)

RE BB LR 4% S 3 RN V6 E A
HRNEE - 25 ARERRREMZFE
A HAIRZRBEIKRAIR G BiR A MBHRK
EREATE -

HEEH
HR2021F 12 A31 HEBEAN NEREHS ¢

(a) H2022F1A21H  ARAERE
BERRELARASEMN N IRE
EETKA3.60B LT RACEEE
SN10,787, 4008 (% 15 © ZEEHITHY
FT{8 FIB F % A 452,656,320 7T
(58,032,862 L 5B ) (FLIRHEELT
B0 B B PG RR AN 17,674,320 7T
(2,265,938% LE(E) &8) + WK
AR

(b) 2022491 H28H » ANRQ A E
NAIRIE(FE)EEERAAE
L REHE BRHERESA
FEAFAEERERERERE RN
WA BRBIFEEZAARE
500,000,0007T °
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